
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 

Date: 7 December 2022 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Accounts and Governance Committee Agenda - 15 December 2022 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Accounts and Governance Committee will be 
held at 6.45 pm on Thursday, 15 December 2022 in The Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Corney Place, Penrith, CA11 7QF. 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Minutes of Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

To sign the minutes AGc/18/10/22 to AGc/25/10/22 of the meeting of this Committee 
held on Thursday, 29th September 2022 as a correct record of those proceedings 
(copies previously circulated). 
 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered. 

 

4   External Audit Update  (Pages 9 - 48) 
 

To consider report no: DoR96/22 of the Assistant Director Finance, which receives 
the External Auditors (Grant Thornton) Audit Plan for their audit of 
the 2021/22 accounts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee note the report. 
 
 

5   Annual Governance Statement and Local Code of Governance 
2021/2022  (Pages 49 - 106) 
 

To consider report no: DoR83/22 of the Assistant Director Finance, which sets out 
the detail supporting the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Local 
Code of Governance (Local Code). Members are asked to confirm that the AGS and 



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

Local Code fairly reflects the corporate governance arrangements in place at the 
Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that Accounts and Governance Committee propose any 
amendments and endorse: 
 
1. the AGS for 2021/22, as presented at Appendix A 
2. the Local Code of Governance for 2022/23, as presented at Appendix B; and 
3. the Action Plan 2022/23, as presented at Appendix C. 
 

6   Informing the Audit Risk Assessment  (Pages 107 - 140) 
 

To consider report no: DoR97/22 of the Assistant Director Finance, which seeks to 
provide the External Auditors, Grant Thornton, with assurance that the Management 
Responses to the Audit Risk Assessment Document in Appendix A are a true and 
fair representation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee approve the 
management responses included in Appendix 1 as being consistent with their 
understanding, and make any further comments to the auditors in relation to the 
report. 
 

7   Internal Audit: Summary Progress Report 2022/2023  (Pages 141 - 194) 
 

To consider report no: DoR95/22 of the Assistant Director Finance, which seeks to 
inform the Committee of the progress of the Council’s internal audit plan for 2022-
23. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee: 
 
1. Note the report and the Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2022/23 at 

Appendix 1. 
 

2. Note the finalised reports at Appendix 2 and Follow-up Report at Appendix 3. 
 

8   Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 2022/2023 - Six-monthly 
Review  (Pages 195 - 204) 
 

To consider report no: DoR89/22 of the Assistant Director Finance, which seeks to 
provide Members with a half-yearly report on the Strategy and Plan for Treasury 
Management during the financial year 2022/2023. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee: 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 3 

1. Note the report; and 
 

2. Endorse the decision to amend the upper limit for long-term investments to 
£8000k in Section 10.1 of the Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 2022/23, 
as set out in Section 3.4 of this report, and recommend to Council. 

 

9   Work Programme 2022/2023  (Pages 205 - 208) 
 

To consider report no: DoR84/22 of the Assistant Director Finance, which sets out 
the work programme for the Accounts and Governance Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee approve the Work 
Programme as set out at Appendix 1. 
 

10   Any Other Items Which the Chair Decides are Urgent   
 

11   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   
 

To confirm the date of the next scheduled meeting of the Accounts and Governance 
Committee as Thursday, 9th February 2023. 
 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 
or telephone: 01768 212266 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chair – Councillor M Eyles (Liberal Democrat Group) 
Vice Chair – Councillor S Lancaster (Independent Group) 
 
Councillors 

A Armstrong, Conservative Group 
R Briggs, Conservative Group 

N McCall, Liberal Democrat Group 
W Patterson, Independent Alliance Group 

mailto:cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk


www.eden.gov.uk 4 

A Connell, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Lawson, Green Group 
 

D Wicks, Conservative Group 
 

 
Standing Deputies 

C Atkinson, Conservative Group 
P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Banks, Independent Alliance Group 
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group 
A Meadowcroft, Conservative Group 
 

A Ross, Green Group 
D Ryland, Independent Group 
D Smith, Liberal Democrat Group 
A Todd, Conservative Group 
 

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and 
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public 



 

 
1 

Eden District Council 
 
Accounts and Governance Committee Minutes 
 
Date: 29 September 2022  Venue: Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Penrith  Time: 6.45 pm 
 
Present: 
 

Chair: Councillor M Eyles 

Vice Chair: Councillor S Lancaster 

Councillors: A Connell 
K Greenwood 
A Armstrong 

N McCall 
W Patterson 

Officers Present: Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance 
Lisa Tremble, Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 
Services 

Others Present: Paul Harrison, TIAA  

Democratic Services Officer: Lewis Powell 

 

AGc/18/10/22 Apologies for Absence  
 
No apologies for absence were received.  
 

AGc/19/10/22 Minutes of Previous Meeting  
 
Proposed by Councillor Eyles  
Seconded by Councillor Greenwood  
 
and RESOLVED that AG/11/08/22 to AGC/17/08/22 of the meeting of this Committee held 
on the 10 August 2022 be confirmed and signed as a correct record of that meeting.  
 
 

AGc/20/10/22 Declarations of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were made.  
 

AGc/21/10/22 Internal Audit Update  
 
Members considered Report No: DoR70/22 of the Assistant Director Finance & HR which 
seeks to inform the Committee of the Council’s Internal Audit Annual Summary Progress 
Report for 2022-2023.  
 

Page  5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
2 

A Member queried why on page 20 of the pack that there was no comments from 
management. 
 
Mr Harrison explained that this section was blank as findings identified here were no longer 
be applicable in the face of Local Government Reorganisation. 
 
A Member mentioned that they had noticed an increase in the number of phishing emails in 
circulation.  
 
Mr Harrison mentioned that these sorts of emails were currently rife. 
 
The Assistant Director Finance explained that she had asked brokers about the availability 
of cybersecurity, she highlighted that it would take approximately 10 days of work to provide 
enough information to be considered for a quote. In addition, it was noted that another 
authority had had their cyber insurance cancelled due to the insurance provider not 
agreeing with the level of Microsoft licences which are comparable to ours 
 
A Member asked how Officers were alerted to phishing/ fraud issues. 
 
The Assistant Director Finance stated that Finance staff attend fraud awareness briefings. 
 
Mr Harrison stated that TIAA issue fraud alerts. 
 
A Member queried if the TIAA remits includes seeing if the rent being charged fully complies 
with the legal obligation if rents are set in line with the rent standard.  
 
Mr Harrision stated that in the reports TIAA haven’t looked at this and have purely looked at 
property compliance. They could look into this to make sure the costs are in line with the 
rent standard.  
 
A Member queried in relation to Heart of Cumbria how the actual tracking of the various 
certifications works. 
 
Mr Harrison responded that we have various property compliance schemes. He commented 
it is important that the Council keeps on top of when the inspections are due.  
 
The Assistant Director Finance clarified that there is an excel spread, this does not have an 
automatic reminder system and relies on people coming into the spreadsheet and checking 
the due dates.  
 
A Member asked who is responsible for monitoring this.  
 
The Assistant Director Finance clarified that Heart of Cumbria has the landlord are 
responsible for this, with the property team undertaking this.  
 
A Member asked in relation to Heart of Cumbria how many properties do we currently have 
and how many are we committed to buying. 
 
The Assistant Director Finance stated that they had currently bought 58 and were 
committed to buying 81. 
 

Page  6



 

 
3 

A Member asked what was happening in relation to the Leisure Management Contract 
Review. 
 
The Assistant Director Finance explained that the new Assistant Director Communities has 
taken on the review of the GLL contract.  
 
Proposed by Councillor Patterson  
Seconded by Councillor Lancaster  
 
and RESOLVED that the Committee:  
 
1.    Note the report and TIAA’s updated Annual Report 2021/22 at Appendix 1; 
2.    Note the Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2022/23 at Appendix 2; 
3.    Note the finalised reports at Appendix 3 and follow-ups report at Appendix 4. 
 

AGc/22/10/22 Complaints and Compliments - Ombudsman's Annual 
Report and the Council's own Procedure  
 
Members considered Report No: DoR68/22 of the Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 
Services which sought to To advise Members of the contents of the annual report which has 
been received from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (the Ombudsman) 
upon complaints relating to the Council for the year ended 31 March 2022 and on 
complaints raised under the Council’s own procedure. 
 
A Member commented that considering the amount of work undertaken by the Council he 
believed that the relatively low level of complaints received was excellent. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Connell  
Seconded by Councillor Patterson 
 
and RESOLVED that that Members note the comments made by the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman in the Annual Report. 
 

AGc/23/10/22 Request for a Dispensation for Attendance at Council 
Meetings  
 
Members considered Report No: DoR67/22 of the Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 
Services which seeks to advise Members of a request for a dispensation to a Member who 
is currently unable to attend any Council meetings due to personal circumstances and to 
ask Committee to consider granting a dispensation. 
 
The Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services clarified that due to the 
postponement of the report some of the dates in the report needed amending, at 3.3 the last 
meeting Councillor Fearon attended was the 22 September 2022. Furthermore at 6.2.1 the 
date where she would reach 6 months of non-attendance should read 22 March 2023. 
 
It was suggested by a Member that the duration of the dispensation from attendance be 
extended to 31 March 2022 to bring it in line with vesting day.  
 
Proposed by Councillor Eyles 
Seconded by Councillor Greenwood  

Page  7



 

 
4 

 
and RESOLVED that a dispensation be granted to Councillor Helen Fearon from attending 
meetings of the Council until 31 March 2023 by reason of her personal circumstances.  
 

AGc/24/10/22 Any Other Items Which the Chair Decides are Urgent  
 
No items of urgent business were raised.  
 

AGc/25/10/22 Date of Next Scheduled Meeting  
 
The date of the next scheduled meeting was confirmed as 10 November 2022 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.17 pm 
 
 
 

………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Page  8



 

 

Report No:  DoR96/22 

Eden District Council 

Accounts & Governance Committee 

15 December 2022 

External Audit Update 

Portfolio: Resources 
Report from: Assistant Director Finance 
Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To receive the External Auditors (Grant Thornton) Audit Plan for their audit of 
the 2021/22 accounts. 

2 Recommendation 

It is recommended that Accounts & Governance Committee note the report. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 The statutory timescales for completing the 2021/22 closedown process, for 
Local Authorities, have been amended due to issues in the audit sector. This 
has been undertaken through the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) 
Regulations 2022. 

3.2 This amendment recognises that local authority audit appointees have 
capacity issues and there is a backlog of work. The impact of the change in 
legislation is to delay the two main closedown deadlines by three months. This 
moved the draft accounts deadline to 31 July 2021 and the Audited Accounts 
deadline to 30 November 2022. 

3.3 Due to the delay in auditor approval of the 2020/21 accounts, which were not 
approved until August 2022, officers were unable to start preparing the draft 
accounts until September 2022. This has caused a delay in the publication of 
these accounts. The draft accounts are now complete and have been 
provided to the auditors. They will now be published on our website. 

3.4 We have continued to work with the auditors to arrange a revised time to 
perform their audit and have agreed that this will start in December 2022. 

3.5 The External Auditor has produced and agreed its audit plan with the Interim 
Director of Resources and it is attached at Appendix 1. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 
 Healthy, safe and secure; 
 Connected; and 
 Creative 

Page  9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 No consultation has taken place. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources. 
6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications. 
6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no human resource implications. 
6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental considerations, including significant effects on 
carbon emissions and ecosystems. 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no implications. 
Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

There are no implications. 

Crime and Disorder There are no implications. 
Children and 
Safeguarding 

There are no implications. 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Reputational risk of not 
publishing audited 
accounts by the 
deadline 

Reputational damage EDC will continue to 
publish information 
about the publication of 
its accounts on its 
website. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

Page  10



 

 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 This is recommended due to the requirement to have the annual accounts 
audited. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Relevant Assistant Director 29/11/22 

Background Papers: None 
Appendices: Appendix 1 - External Auditors Audit Plan 2021-22 
Contact Officer: Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance 

Page  11



P
age  12



Commercial in confidence

P
age  13



Commercial in confidence

P
age  14



Commercial in confidence





P
age  15



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age  17



Commercial in confidence

P
age  18



Commercial in confidence

•

•










P
age  19



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  21



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age  22



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age  23



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  24



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  25



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age  27



Commercial in confidence

P
age  28



Commercial in confidence

18

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

•

•

P
age  29



Commercial in confidence

P
age  30



Commercial in confidence

20

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  31



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 
2019)

P
age  32



Commercial in confidence

P
age  33



Commercial in confidence

P
age  34



Commercial in confidence

24

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 
information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 
purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 
management

Effective management and oversight of 
requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 
complete data populations

P
age  35



Commercial in confidence

25

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age  36



Commercial in confidence

P
age  37



Commercial in confidence

P
age  38



Commercial in confidence

P
age  39



Commercial in confidence

P
age  40



Commercial in confidence

P
age  41



Commercial in confidence

P
age  42



Commercial in confidence

P
age  43



Commercial in confidence

P
age  44



Commercial in confidence

P
age  45



Commercial in confidence

P
age  46



P
age  47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report No: DoR83/22 
Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee 
15 December 2022 

Annual Governance Statement and Local Code of 
Governance 2021/22 

Portfolio: Resources 
Report from: Assistant Director Finance 
Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 
1.1 To set out the detail supporting the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 

(AGS) and Local Code of Governance (Local Code). Members are asked to 
confirm that the AGS and Local Code fairly reflects the corporate governance 
arrangements in place at the Council. 

2 Recommendation 
It is recommended that Accounts and Governance Committee propose any 
amendments and endorse: 
1) the AGS for 2021/22, as presented at Appendix A 
2) the Local Code of Governance for 2022/23, as presented at Appendix B; 

and  
3) the Action Plan 2022/23, as presented at Appendix C. 

3 Report Details 
 Process 
3.1 Publication of an AGS is a requirement under the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015. The purpose of the AGS is to set out the annual review of 
effectiveness of the Council’s systems of internal control (governance 
arrangements). This is set out at Appendix A. 

3.2 The purpose of the Local Code is to set out the main features of the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements. This can be found at Appendix B, along 
with cross-references to evidence that the arrangements, as set out, were in 
place during 2021/22. 

3.3 As part of the annual review, where elements of the Local Code or 
effectiveness of the controls could be improved, these have been included in 
the Action Plan at Appendix C. This also includes the items raised from 
2020/21. 

3.4 At this stage, Accounts and Governance Committee are being consulted on 
the content of the draft AGS and Local Code. The AGS will be signed by the 
Leader and Chief Executive and published alongside the unaudited Statement 

Page  49

Agenda Item 5



of Accounts by no later than 31 December 2022. Officers will continue to 
monitor and update the documents for any issues arising between the date of 
this report and 31 December 2022. 

3.5 The Accounts & Governance Committee will have a further chance to approve 
the final version of the AGS as part of the approval of the Annual Accounts for 
21/22. 

 Audit of Local Code of Governance 
3.6 During the year, an internal audit review of the Local Code of Governance 

was performed. This was reported on to the Accounts and Governance 
Committee on 16 March 2022.  

3.7 The action points from this considered as important were: 
3.7.1 Each of the 21 sub-principles of the CIPFA/Solace publication “Delivering 

Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)” be specifically 
mentioned in the Council's Local Code of Governance. 

3.7.2 Local arrangements mapped to the same principle be unique. 
3.7.3 When determining its self-assessment responses in accordance with the 2016 

Framework, the schedule provided in Chapter Five of the related Guidance 
Notes be followed. Alternatively, reasons for deviation from the Framework be 
detailed in the annual report to Accounts and Governance Committee on the 
extent of the Council's compliance with its Local Code.  

3.7.4 When determining the extent of its self-assessment compliance in accordance 
with the 2016 Framework, a numerical scale of compliance be followed as 
suggested in Chapter Five of the Guidance Notes.  

3.7.5 The Action Plan 2021-22 be amended to track all of the actions identified from 
the Review of Compliance with Local Code of Governance April 2020 to 
March 2021. 

3.8 Following these recommendations the following actions have been taken: 
3.8.1 the Local Code has been re-written to include reference to the sub-principles 

of the CIPFA/Solace publication. 
3.8.2 Non-unique arrangements mapping to the same principle have been removed. 
3.8.3 The review of the Local Code of Governance for 2021-22 has mapped the 

local code to the schedule provided in Chapter Five of the related Guidance 
Notes. 

3.8.4 When reviewing compliance with the code, a scale of 1-10 has been used to 
assess compliance with the code. 

3.8.5 The Action Plan has been amended to include all actions in relation to 
governance including all those from the review of the local code of 
Governance. 

3.9 The proposed Local Code of Governance, including these recommendations 
is provided at Appendix B. 
  

Page  50



 Findings of Review 
3.10 There have been no significant changes to the external governance 

requirements since 2020/21. 
3.11 A number of items were raised within the Action Plan following the 2020/21 

review. A large number of these and other governance improving measures 
have been implemented. More detail on progress is provided in Appendix C 
and Appendix A (section on Local Code of Governance).  

4 Policy Framework 
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 
 Healthy, safe and secure; 
 Connected; and 
 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the sustainable corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 
5.1 There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors, or Portfolio Holders. 

Relevant Officers have fed into the annual review. Presentation of the draft 
AGS/Local Code to this Committee is part of the consultation process, with 
the final version to be approved when the accounts are approved. 

6 Implications 
6.1 Financial and Resources 
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 

must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

6.1.2 There are no direct financial implications. However, the AGS and Local Code 
set out a number of key financial controls. 

6.2 Legal 
6.2.1 It is a statutory requirement that all local authorities produce an AGS. 

Approval of the AGS is a function that is delegated to the Accounts and 
Governance Committee. 

6.3 Human Resources 
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications. 
6.4 Environmental 
6.4.1 There are no environmental implications. 
6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity Proper governance arrangements will ensure that 
equality and diversity issues are appropriately 
addressed. 

Page  51



Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

There are no implications. 

Crime and Disorder There are no implications. 
Children and 
Safeguarding 

There are no implications. 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 
There is a risk that 
Members and senior 
officers do not properly 
own the AGS and 
Local Code 

The documents are 
agreed without proper 
review and scrutiny. 

Reporting on the AGS, 
with supporting detail:  
To Corporate 
Management Team; 
and  To the Accounts 
and Governance 
Committee as a 
separate document 
and not as part of the 
annual accounts. 

7 Other Options Considered 
7.1 No other options have been considered. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 
8.1 To ensure that the AGS and Local Code are properly supported by evidence 

and fairly reflect Members’ understanding of the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Relevant Assistant Director 20/10/22 

Background Papers: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
 CIPFA: The Role of the Chief Finance Officer in Public 

Sector Organisations 
 TIAA Internal Audit Review of Local Code of Governance 

(reported at AGC on 16 March 2022) 

Page  52



Appendices: Appendix A: Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
2021/22 

 Appendix B: Action Plan 2022/23 
 Appendix C: Local Code of Governance 2022/23 
 Appendix D: Review of the Local Code of Governance 

2021/22 
Contact Officer: Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance 

Page  53



1 

Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 

Executive Summary  

Governance is about how local government bodies ensure that they are doing the 
right things in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest 
and accountable manner. It comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values 
by which local government bodies are directed and controlled and through which 
they account to, engage with and where appropriate, lead their communities.  

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a public report by the Council on the 
extent to which it complies with its own local governance code, including how it has 
monitored the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year, and on any 
planned changes in the coming period.  

This document describes our governance arrangements and assesses how closely 
we align with good practice. In overall terms this is a positive statement for the 
financial year 2020/21. This document relies on several assurance mechanisms 
including the internal audit annual review, internal audit reports throughout the year, 
the work of the Accounts and Governance Committee, the overview and scrutiny 
process and external audit. This is further strengthened by the Finance Scrutiny 
Committee, which has year round scrutiny responsibilities for managing and 
monitoring the budget and budget monitoring processes.  

External audit is undertaken by Grant Thornton and this provides assurance on the 
controls the Council has in place. Where the auditor identifies weaknesses in the 
Council’s arrangements, these are highlighted in the Annual Audit and Inspection 
Letter. The Council received an unqualified audit opinion on its 2020/21 accounts, 
the latest published.  

Impact of Covid-19 Global Pandemic 

The Council has significantly affected by the Covid-19 Global Pandemic from March 
2020, and has had to adapt significantly, however the principles of the Council’s 
governance framework are unchanged. The Council continued to adapt and work 
under new measures, including maintaining a flexible and risk based approach to 
hybrid working as restrictions around the pandemic eased. 

The Council continued to be involved in the local response to the pandemic and this 
included monitoring compliance with restrictions, administering business support 
grants. Eden District Council are an active part of the Cumbria Resilience Forum, 
who share information and co-ordinate local action to emergencies, including 
responding to Covid-19 outbreaks. 

Local Government Re-organisation 

On 21 July 2021, the UK government announced that it intended to proceed with a 
two-unitary local government re-organisation (LGR) model within Cumbria. This 
means that from 31 March 2023, Eden will merge with Barrow Borough Council, 
South Lakeland District Council and approximately half of a disaggregated Cumbria 
County Council to form a new unitary authority to be known as Westmorland and 
Furness. 

Eden District Council is working collaboratively with the other Councils to ensure a 
smooth transition to the new authority. The Council’s existing governance, risk 

Appendix A

Page  54



2 
 

management and internal control framework will remain unchanged until 31 March 
2023, though clearly some plans, strategies and longer-term projects and priorities 
have been curtailed or suspended where considered to be appropriate to do so as a 
result of the government decision. 

A comprehensive communication and briefing programme has been in place 
throughout 2021/22 to keep staff updated on progress against the LGR project. This 
includes regular corporate communications, staff briefings and a dedicated intranet 
page. 

Financial Position 

As stated the Council’s financial position remains robust and this was reflected in the 
report to Cabinet on 18 October 2021 (Q4 Outturn and Q1 Monitoring Report). The 
Council continues to look to a medium term position, reflecting that whilst it only has 
the current financial year remaining, the new authority will need to be placed in the 
best possible position by the current authorities. 

Internal Control 

In addition, this statement shows that the Council has a strong system of internal 
control, performance and risk management and action plans are in place to address 
issues. Actions proposed will be considered alongside progress on LGR and where 
appropriate, considering risk and resources, decisions made on whether to progress 
in the current year or postpone and integrate into the new Authority’s governance 
arrangements. 

Scope of Responsibility 

Eden District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards. It is also responsible for ensuring that 
public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government 
Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, incorporating the system of internal control. This 
includes arrangements for the management of risk. The Council has established a 
Local Code of Governance which details these arrangements and is structured 
around the 7 Principles of Good Governance, as set out below. The AGS focuses on 
the effectiveness of these arrangements and so should be considered alongside the 
Local Code of Governance.  

A copy of the Local Code of Governance is available on the Council’s website.  

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require every Council to agree 
and publish an Annual Governance Statement. CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy) have produced guidance to Delivering Good Governance 
in Local Government Framework (2016). In producing this AGS, this guidance has 
been considered.  

  

Page  55



3 
 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework  

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values 
by which the Council is directed and controlled. It also comprises the activities 
through which it accounts to, engages with, and leads the community. It enables the 
Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate and cost-effective 
services. The current Council Plan sets out four priorities which are:  

 Sustainable  
 Healthy, safe and secure  
 Connected  
 Creative  

These priorities help to shape the policies and allocation of resources towards a 
strategic vision for the District. The system of internal control is a significant part of 
the overall framework to ensure those priorities are delivered and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, priorities, aims and objectives, and can therefore only provide reasonable 
and not absolute assurance, of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based 
on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of 
the Council's policies, priorities, aims and objectives. It also evaluates the likelihood 
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 
March 2022 and up to the date of approval of this Statement.  

The Principles of Good Governance  

The CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
sets out seven core principles of good governance, these are:  

 Principle 1 – Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values, and respecting the rule of law.  

 Principle 2 – Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement.  

 Principle 3 – Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits.  

 Principle 4 – Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes.  

 Principle 5 – Developing the entity's capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it.  

 Principle 6 – Managing risks and performance through robust internal control 
and strong public financial management.  

 Principle 7 - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 
audit to deliver effective accountability.  

  

Page  56



4 
 

The Governance Framework  

The following sections align to the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework’ (CIPFA/SOLACE) and provide evidence against each of 
sections contained within that document.  

Identifying and communicating the Authority’s vision of its purpose and 
intended outcomes for citizens and service users  

The Council’s long term strategic objectives are set out in the five year Council Plan 
which is supported by the annually reviewed business plan. Progress is monitored 
via the Council’s Corporate Performance Framework which integrates financial and 
service planning. Our annual financial planning process is driven by the Council’s 
medium term financial strategy and resources planning process to ensure our future 
priorities and ambitions are resourced.  

The Council Plan identifies and communicates the vision of its purpose and intended 
outcomes for citizens and service users through a variety of media including its 
website, the local media and social media. 

The Council’s five year strategy sets out the organisation’s vision and key strategic 
priorities. The business plan is refreshed on an annual basis and the updated 
version published. It sits alongside the budget as a key corporate document and is 
subject to the same public consultation process.  

The Council’s service and financial planning process incorporates substantial 
consultation with all sections of the community. A budget consultation process that is 
focused on qualitative research with stakeholders. In addition we target harder to 
reach groups (older people, younger people, people with disabilities and people from 
minority ethnic communities) to ensure that all sections of the community are able to 
participate in the budget consultation.  

The corporate agenda is communicated to staff through regular briefings from the 
Chief Executive, a “cascade” system and the staff bulletin board and newsletter as 
well as through staff engagement in the service planning process. Additional 
communication activities are also undertaken in relation to key projects.  

Reviewing the Authority’s vision and its implications for the Authority’s 
governance arrangements  

The Council reviews its vision and the implications for its governance arrangements 
by regularly updating its five year strategy, reviewing the annual business plan and 
major strategy documents.  

The Council has a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) in place to ensure future 
ambitions are resourced. The MTFS is the Council’s key financial planning 
document. It is driven by our five year strategy and annual business plan and the 
four strategic priorities which lie at the heart of it:  

 Sustainable  
 Healthy, safe and secure  
 Connected  
 Creative  

Page  57



5 
 

This strategy sets clear targets to ensure balanced resources are set and focus on 
front line services in a time when government funding has been reduced.  

The Council manages this through a comprehensive and regularly reviewed 
Constitution setting out how the Council operates. Officers and Members ensure that 
the protocols in the Constitution and other relevant statutes, regulations and 
guidance are both followed and lead to transparent, ethical and legal decision 
making. This ensures effective accountability and strong financial management.  

Measuring the quality of services for users, ensuring they are delivered in 
accordance with the Authority’s objectives and ensuring that they represent 
the best use of resources  

Mechanisms are in place to measure the quality of services for users, ensuring they 
are delivered in accordance with Eden District Council’s objectives and that they 
represent the best use of resources. The Council continues to improve performance 
management within the organisation. Service quality and best use of resources is 
ensured via:  

 Quarterly Review of Performance - monitoring and recording performance 
indicator data and business plans) responsibility of managers to report on a 
monthly and quarterly basis.  

 Quarterly Review of Financial Performance Reports  

The Council recognises that to drive improvement it needs to closely monitor and 
review its performance. The Council routinely monitors it’s spend against budgets, 
and its performance against Performance Indicators and also against service plans 
and strategies.  

Financial reporting is delivered quarterly through monitoring meetings and reports. 
This provides a mechanism for monitoring budgets and effectively challenging or 
addressing the variances identified with the relevant budget holder.   

There is no doubt that the current Financial Management System hampers the 
efficiency and the effectiveness of the budget management process. It is not user 
friendly and thus not widely used outside of Finance. However, with Local 
Government Re-organisation on the short term horizon, it is not considered a viable 
or value for money project to introduce a new system at this time. Improvements in 
the use of the current system are being considered and opportunities for efficiencies 
outside the system taken where possible. 

The external audit Annual Audit Letter gave an unqualified Value for Money 
conclusion in for 2021/22. This means that the Grant Thornton are satisfied that the 
Council has adequate arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources.  

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non- 
executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements 
and protocols for effective communication  

A clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of the Cabinet, the 
members and the senior officers are held within:  

 The Constitution (available on the Council’s website)  
 Officer job descriptions  

Page  58



6 
 

The resources planning framework is determined by full Council. The Cabinet has 
delegated authority to take most decisions within that framework other than legally 
specified non-executive decisions such as those relating to regulatory and staffing 
matters. Cabinet decisions are subject to scrutiny. All meetings are open to the 
public unless confidential or exempt items, as defined by the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended, are discussed.  

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has overall responsibility for the performance 
of all overview and scrutiny functions (under the Local Government Act 2000 and 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007) on behalf of the 
Council. In particular it is responsible for scrutinising decisions and decision making, 
developing and reviewing policy, exercising call-in procedures and investigating 
matters of local concern. The Committee can establish ‘Task and Finish’ groups to 
undertake particular reviews in accordance with the annual overview and scrutiny 
work programme.  

The Finance Scrutiny Committee makes recommendations to the Cabinet on matters 
relating to the finances of the authority. Its role is to provide a strategic overview of 
all matters affecting the current and future finances of the authority and it also plays 
a key role in supporting the budget setting strategy and process.  

The Standards Committee has responsibility for ensuring the highest standards of 
councillor behaviour. This meets when needed to consider reports on investigations 
into complaints of breach of the Councillors’ code of conduct by councillors of this 
authority or any Town or Parish Council in the district. The Assistant Director Legal & 
Democratic Services, in their role as monitoring officer, has extensive delegated 
authority from the Committee to process and determine complaints.  

The Accounts and Governance Committee has responsibility for risk management 
and financial probity, and signs off the Council's annual Statement of Accounts.  

The Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer meet informally as necessary to 
review the governance arrangements of the Council and provide input into this 
Annual Governance Statement. The senior officer management team is the 
Corporate Leadership Team which meets formally each week.  

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 
standards of behaviour for members and staff  

The key documents and techniques used to develop the code of conduct and high 
standards of behaviour that we achieve within Eden District Council comprise:  

 The Constitution  
 Codes of conduct and associated protocols  
 HR policies and procedures  
 Internal / External Communications Policy  
 Whistle blowing policy  
 Recruitment policy and Appraisal processes  
 Registers of member interests  
 Complaints policy and procedures  
 Internal Audit work  
 External Audit Reports  
 All Staff briefings  
 Staff Induction Programme  

Page  59



7 
 

 Staff appraisal process 
 Intranet and Website Messages  

The Council has adopted codes of conduct for members and officers. The codes and 
protocols of the Council are included in the constitution. The code of conduct for 
councillors is a mandatory requirement and includes provision for the registration 
and notification of disclosable pecuniary interests backed up by criminal sanction.  

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a 
scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly 
define how decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to 
manage risks  

Under the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, the Council is able to delegate 
decisions to committees or officers but is required to have a scheme of delegation 
setting this out. The scheme of delegation is part of the Council’s constitution.  

An accurate up to date constitution reduces the risk of challenge to the Council’s 
decisions.  

One of the key aspects of the internal control environment is the management of 
risk. The Council has a risk management strategy which is updated annually. 

Assistant Directors are responsible for maintaining the risk management system and 
ensuring risks are appropriately mitigated and managed. All Assistant Directors 
review and update their strategic and corporate risks quarterly. Assistant Directors 
and managers are responsible for managing their operational risk registers and 
escalating as and when necessary to the corporate register. For each risk noted on 
the register, responsible officers are required to identify controls that are in place to 
mitigate the risk.  

The risk register is considered by the Corporate Leadership Team, and ensures that 
identification and consideration of risk corporately and across services is 
emphasised and highlighted. The risk register is considered as part of the Quarterly 
Performance Monitoring which is reported to Cabinet and Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. This oversight of risk ensures there is senior officer level and political 
commitment to effective risk management.  

The inclusion of risk registers within service plans and risk logs in key programmes 
and projects seeks to reinforce the importance of assessing and being aware of the 
risks associated with each service and major projects.  

The Council has staff with specific responsibility for health and safety, and operate 
Integrated Management Standards, ISO 14001:2004 Environmental Standard and 
ISO 45001 Health and Safety Management Standard covering all aspects of the 
Councils work. Both these standards are audited twice a year by external auditors.  

The Council participates in the National Fraud Initiative, an exercise that matches 
electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies to prevent and 
detect fraud. The Council also participates in data matching exercises through the 
Housing Benefit Matching Service. This matches data held by the Council with that 
of other agencies such as DWP, to identify cases where fraud may have been 
committed.  

Page  60



8 
 

The Authority’s financial management arrangements do conform to the 
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief 
Financial Officer in Local Government (2010).  

In June 2009, CIPFA launched its ‘Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) in Public Service Organisations’. The Statement supports CIPFA’s 
work to strengthen governance and financial management across the public 
services. CIPFA’s Statement sets out five principles that define the core activities 
and behaviours that belong to the role of the CFO and the governance requirements 
needed to support them.  

The statement advocates that the CFO in a public services organisation:  

 Is a key member of the leadership team, helping it to develop and implement 
strategy and to resource and deliver the organisation’s strategic objectives 
sustainably and in the public interest  

 Must be actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, all 
material business decisions to ensure immediate and longer term 
implications, opportunities and risk are fully considered, and alignment with 
the organisation’s financial strategy  

 Must lead the promotion and delivery by the whole organisation of good 
financial management so that public money is safeguarded at all times and 
used appropriately, economically, efficiently and effectively.  

To deliver these responsibilities the CFO:  

 Must lead and direct a finance function that is resourced to be fit for purpose  
 Must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced.  

For each principle, the Statement sets out the governance arrangements required 
within an organisation to ensure that CFOs are able to operate effectively and 
perform their core duties. The Statement also sets out the core responsibilities of the 
CFO role within the organisation. Many day to day responsibilities may in practice be 
delegated or even outsourced, but the CFO should maintain oversight and control.  

CIPFA has issued its ‘Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (2010)’. The statement draws heavily on the ‘Statement of the Role of 
the Chief Financial Officer in Public Service Organisations’ and applies the principles 
and roles set out in that document to local government.  

The Interim Director of Resources is the Council`s nominated Section 151 Officer.  

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s 
Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities  

The Council’s Accounts and Governance Committee undertake the core functions of 
an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit Committees – Practical Guidance 
for Local Authorities. In particular it has an on-going role in ensuring a responsive 
and effective internal audit function and the effective management of the Council’s 
risks and provides ‘robust challenge’ to the internal control and other governance 
arrangements of the Council.  

In order for a councillor to sit on the Committee they must first have received training 
on all aspects of the Committee’s responsibilities.  

Page  61



9 
 

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful  

Chief Officers and Assistant Directors take responsibility for ensuring compliance 
with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and that 
expenditure is lawful.  

Eden District Council observes all specific legislative requirements and adheres to 
the general principles of good administrative law – rationality, legality and natural 
justice.  

The Assistant Director Legal & Democratic Services is designated as the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer and it is their responsibility to ensure that the Council’s business is 
conducted in a legal and proper fashion and in accordance with council policies. All 
reports that go before Council and Cabinet are reviewed by the Monitoring Officer to 
ensure the legality of the Council’s actions. Additional external legal advice is sought 
where appropriate.  

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the administration of the Council’s 
finances under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and ensures financial 
management of the Council is conducted in accordance with the Accounting & Audit 
Rules (part 4 (g) of the Constitution). Financial management facilitates service 
delivery through the five-year Medium Term Financial Strategy and the annual 
budget process, underpinned by the Budget and Policy Framework (part 4 (d) of the 
constitution) and Treasury Management Strategy.  

Eden District Council actively recognises the limits of lawful activity implicit in the 
ultra vires doctrine, and strives to employ its powers to the full benefit of its 
communities.  

Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan  

In accordance with the “Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption (CIPFA, 2014)”, the Council has an Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and 
Corruption Strategy and Response Plan to ensure that the Council's approach to any 
identified fraud, theft, or corruption, is clearly set out so that appropriate action is 
taken if necessary. 

Training on Fraud & Corruption are provided to key staff during the year through e-
training and written updates.  

The strategy and response plan are updated on an annual basis and approved by 
the Accounts and Governance Committee. The Committee also receive an Annual 
Fraud report, which sets out the measures taken to prevent fraud as well as any 
frauds that have occurred and the actions taken.  

Whistle blowing and receiving and investigating complaints from the Public  

The Council has well-developed processes for whistle blowing and for receiving and 
investigating complaints both internally and from the public. The Confidential 
Reporting Code is available on the internet and intranet and the corporate 
complaints procedure is available on the internet. All new Councillors and members 
of staff receive a copy of the Confidential Reporting Code and it is reviewed and re-
published to all Councillors and staff on an annual basis.  

Page  62



10 
 

There were no incidents of whistleblowing reported in 2021/22. Complaints can be 
made by telephone, in writing or by visiting the Council. The Council aims to resolve 
all complaints at the point of contact wherever possible. Where this is not achievable, 
the Council’s corporate complaints procedure (available on the website) outlines a 
formal two stage process for rectifying issues. The definition of a complaint is:  

 a service being delivered at a lower standard than is set out in council policy 
or SLAs  

 the attitude of staff  
 neglect or delay in responding to customers  
 failure to follow agreed procedures/policies  
 evidence of bias or unfair discrimination.  

The council reports its performance on a quarterly basis and complaints including 
Ombudsman investigations are included within this report. An annual summary is 
provided to the Accounts and Governance Committee.  

Managing Data and Control over Data  

Data is managed in accordance with the law. The key information management and 
security policies in place are: The Data Protection Policy, Data Quality Statement, 
Access to Information Policy, Information Security Policy and Personal Data Breach 
Policy.  

Information Sharing protocols are in place when sharing data with third parties. 
Strategy ownership rests with Executive Committee who are responsible for 
agreeing, monitoring, promoting and reviewing its implementation.  

Monitoring also includes reports to Cabinet, internal / external audits and Information 
Commissioner reviews, as appropriate.  

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation 
to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training  

The Council is committed to both officer and member development and support. A 
member training programme is developed annually to provide the appropriate 
training and support for members to effectively carry out their roles.  

Members and officers are invited to suggest topics for development sessions at any 
point during the year. The development programme for elected members offers a 
range of formal and informal learning events including conferences, briefings, 
seminars, workshops and forums.  

The training sessions are categorised to help members choose the appropriate 
training to suit their individual requirements. There are six training categories:  

 essential, which cover the broad skills for being a councillor, providing 
information on some of the basic principles of local government such as 
finance, and statutory issues around planning and licensing;  

 internal knowledge, which provides information specific to Eden District 
Council;  

 Committee skills, which are targeted at specific committees and roles;  
 Portfolio Holder, which focus on the knowledge and skills required in these 

roles;  
 engagement, which relate to members’ responsibilities as community leaders;  

Page  63



11 
 

 information, which refer to briefings on specific subjects as required.  

In 2021/22, training was provided, either formally or informally, on all the above 
areas. Outside of training for particular committees, formal training was also provided 
on Social media, domestic abuse awareness and chairing skills. 

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the 
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging 
open consultation  

There is a Consultation Policy and Programme with guidance for staff on how to 
undertake effective consultations. The Council undertook six public consultations in 
2021/22:  

 Public Spaces Protection Order extension 
 Regulation 18: Eden Local Plan Partial Review 
 Environmental Permit 
 Gambling Act 2005 Review of Statement of Policy 
 Economic Prospectus – Inspiring Eden 
 Appleby Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan 
 Budget Consultation 2022/23  

In the main, accountability and consultation is achieved using the following methods:  

 Website  
 Committee Management Information System (Modern Gov) (where the public 

reports are available for inspection).  
 Corporate Improvement Programmes  
 Medium Term Financial Strategy  
 Statement of Accounts  
 Budget Book  
 Customer Satisfaction Surveys  
 Press releases  
 Intranet  
 All Staff Briefings  
 Corporate Communications Strategy  
 Performance Management Reports  

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and 
other group working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the 
governance of partnerships and reflecting these in the Authority’s overall 
governance arrangements  

The Council’s aim is to fully exploit the opportunities for partnership working and 
strengthen the governance and performance management arrangements. The 
Council’s key strategic partnerships are included as part of the performance 
management framework and performance is reported quarterly.  

The Council maintains a database of key partnerships and a partnership protocol to 
provide guidance to officers and members when engaging with a new partnership.  

The LEP is a key partnership for the Council, and there are clear terms of reference 
in place to cover membership, roles and responsibilities and the objectives of the 
partnership. The LEP Board provides the leadership and decision making body for 

Page  64



12 
 

the partnership that plans the work programme of the board and coordinates 
performance management and action planning. The Management Group is chaired 
by the LEP Board member with the role of performance champion.  

To ensure the partnership listens to the wider views of the local community, it holds 
an annual conference which is open to all stakeholders and provides an annual 
report of its activity. Where appropriate the LEP sets up sub-committees to co-
ordinate work programmes, examples include the Business and Economic Response 
and Recovery Group established to establish a strategic response to the impact of 
the Covid19 pandemic. Sub-partnerships have their own terms of reference, agreed 
by the LSP Board, and report back to the Board with performance and progress 
updates on a regular basis.  

There are clear arrangements for Member roles on partnerships and outside bodies 
and this has been supported by relevant training and a process of annual review.  

Review of Effectiveness  

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal control. 
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Chief Officers within the 
Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
governance environment, TIIA’s annual report, the work of the Scrutiny and 
Accounts and Governance Committees and also by comments made by the external 
auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.  

Key roles in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness is performed via the 
Constitutional Framework and key statutory roles and responsibilities:  

The Council  

The Council has responsibility for the Budgetary and Policy Framework. A balanced 
budget was set for 2022/23, consistent with the prevailing Council Plan. Council also 
reviews and approves amendments to the Constitution.  

The Cabinet 

The Local Government Act 2000 and regulations made thereunder set out the 
functions which the Cabinet may perform. The Cabinet is not permitted to carry out 
any regulatory or staffing function. The Leader of the Council selects the Cabinet 
giving ‘Portfolios’ to the individual Members of the Cabinet.  

Accounts and Governance Committee  

The Committee acts as an audit committee, in line with Audit Committees: Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA 2013). The Committee approved 
the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21, considered all audit reports and receives the 
annual report assessing the effectiveness of the system of internal audit. The 
Committee has monitored implementation of the recommendations of internal and 
external audit.  The AGS is reviewed by the Accounts and Governance Committee 
alongside the supporting evidence which is set out in a public report. The Committee 
has also considered all Standards and constitutional review matters.  

  

Page  65



13 
 

Overview and Scrutiny  

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has overall responsibility for the performance 
of all overview and scrutiny functions (under the Local Government Act 2000 and 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007) on behalf of the 
Council.  

In particular it is responsible for scrutinising decisions and decision making, 
developing and reviewing policy, exercising call-in procedures and investigating 
matters of local concern. This work is delivered by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which can establish ‘Task and Finish’ groups to undertake particular 
reviews in accordance with the annual overview and scrutiny work programme.   

The role of scrutiny in following up recommendations: At every meeting of each 
scrutiny committee, there is a standard agenda item: ‘Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Work Programme’. This includes a follow up schedule for all previous scrutiny 
reviews. The committees normally review progress on the implementation of their 
recommendations at six month intervals, unless the nature of the review suggests a 
shorter or longer timescale is appropriate. The Lead Member and relevant Director 
and/or Service Head are asked to provide a written progress report and to attend the 
meeting to brief the committee.  

Finance Scrutiny Committee 

The Finance Scrutiny Committee has responsibility for overseeing the Council’s 
budget and treasury management functions throughout the year. This includes 
responsibility for scrutinising the Council’s Budget and Budget preparation process. 

In particular the committee will provide strategic overview of all matters which could 
significantly impact upon the finances of the Council including considering the 
medium term planning horizon. 

Standards Committee  

The Localism Act 2011 required the Council to adopt new arrangements for ensuring 
the maintenance of high standards of councillor conduct, including a code of conduct 
which is consistent with the Nolan principles of good conduct in public life with effect 
from 1 July 2012. A new code was duly adopted and the Standards Committee was 
re-constituted so that its membership met the requirements of the 2011 Act.  

Statutory Roles - Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer  

The Council complies with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) in Local Government (2015). The CFO reviews the AGS and the Local 
Code as part of Corporate Leadership Team. In the 2021/22 financial year, the 
Interim Director of Resources was designated as the person responsible for the 
administration of the Council’s finances under section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 and ensured the financial management of the Council was conducted in 
accordance with the Financial Regulations and Corporate Financial Procedures.  

The Council also has a Monitoring Officer to ensure the Council acts within its legal 
powers and statutory framework.  

  

Page  66



14 
 

Internal Audit  

An effective Internal Audit Service (IAS) is a fundamental element of the overall 
system of internal control. In 2019/20, CIPFA performed an external review of the in-
house element of the IAS and judged that it was generally compliant with Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards. This was reported in detail to the Accounts and 
Governance Committee in February 2019.  

The work of internal audit is set out in an annual plan. The 2021/22 plan was agreed 
by the Accounts and Governance Committee in April 2021. The IAS submits an 
opinion statement to the Accounts and Governance Committee on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's internal control environment.  

The Council’s internal audit arrangements comply with the CIPFA Statement on ‘The 
Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010)’. TIAA are contracted to supply the whole of 
the IAS.  

The annual report for 2021/22 on Internal Audit was presented to the Accounts & 
Governance Committee in September 2022. This was an unqualified opinion. 

External Audit  

The external audit of the Council is provided by Grant Thornton LLP for the main 
accounts (including group accounts) and value for money opinions. Assurance over 
the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim is provided by Mazars LLP. Whilst external 
auditors are not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's risk 
and control procedures, their work does give a degree of assurance.   

Regular meetings take place with Officers to cover progress on the external audit 
plan and other key audit related issues. The external auditor also regularly attends 
Accounts and Governance Committee to update them on progress and to provide 
topical sector updates. The Council ensures it provides timely support, information 
and responses to External Auditors and fully considers their findings and 
recommendations.  

Governance Actions: Review of 21/22 and Future Priorities  

Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 

The 2021/22 AGS Action Plan focussed on the key actions from the Local Code of 
Governance review and also actions raised in relation to governance from other 
audits. 

Actions completed during the year included: 

 Independent Remuneration Panel convened to recommend a Member 
Allowance Scheme for 2021 to 2023 

 Procurement Updated and approved by Resource Portfolio Holder in May 
2022 

 Risk Management Strategy and Corporate Risk Register, updated and 
published June 2021 

As recommended by an internal audit review, the Action Plan for 2022/23 has now 
been extended to include all actions from the Local Code of Governance. 

Page  67



15 
 

Local Code of Governance 

A full review of the compliance of the council against its own Local Code of 
Governance was performed and showed significant improvements from the prior 
year. Improvements made during the year not included in the AGS Action Plan 
included: 

 Extended Leadership team meetings formalised and minutes taken 
 Full review of the constitution with approval by Council in November 2021 
 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Guidelines and Policy reviewed and 

approved by Cabinet in November 2021 

The following actions were completed after year end, but before the issuing of this 
statement: 

 Emergency Planning group re-instated and meeting quarterly from June 2022 
 Performance and Appraisal process updated and launched June 2022 
 Records Management and Retention Policy approved by Cabinet October 

2022 
 Council’s partnership protocol approved by Extended Leadership Team and 

Partnership database updated July 2022 

Items added to the AGS actions list this year include:  

 Business Continuity plans for each critical activity are prepared, updated and 
tested. 

 Several policies have not been reviewed for over 3 years. Although this has 
been added to the action list, due to LGR it is not considered value for money 
considering the risk to review these policies in the time remaining to EDC. 

 Several policies mentioned in the Local Code have not been created. 
Although this has been added to the action list, due to LGR it is not 
considered value for money considering the risk to review these policies in the 
time remaining to EDC.  

 Partnership database to be reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny annually 

Outstanding items at 31 March 2023, will be notified to the new Unitary to ensure 
that they are included in their governance arrangements and review. 

Conclusion  

This document has described our governance arrangements and assessed how 
closely we align with good practice. In overall terms this is a positive statement for 
the financial year 2021/22. The Council has a good system of internal control and 
plans in place to address the issues highlighted in the internal audit report and seek 
to ensure continuous improvement of the systems is in place.  

There remain significant challenges ahead, which could impact upon the Council’s 
ability to maintain its levels of governance. The introduction of Local Government 
Reorganisation overlapping with the job market challenges is affecting resources and 
capacity across all services.  

  

Page  68



16 
 

Financial sustainability does though remain robust as shown in the report to Cabinet 
on 18 October.   

 

To be signed by Leader of the Council and Interim Chief Executive 

Page  69



Appendix B 

Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 
Reference 

Issue to address Responsible Due by Progress 

Existing items 
Local Code Principle 7, Assurance 
and Effective Accountability  

Accounts and Governance Committee received a report 
from CIPFA on the effectiveness of the Committee. A 
number of improvement opportunities were raised and 
suggested to be considered by the panel proposing 
constitutional amendments. 
The details of the recommendations can be found on AGC 
agenda for February 2019 with a response at the April 
AGC. The recommendations agreed were: 

1) AGC to perform a self-assessment annually and
report to Council

2) The committee be provided with enhanced
regular training and supporting materials

3) Consideration is given to subscribing to CIPFA’s
better governance forum

Chair of AGC, Chief 
Finance Officer, 
Monitoring Officer  

31/3/2020 
31/3/2022 

Regular Training – this has been 
provided when required - 
COMPLETE 

CIPFA’s better governance forum 
– this has not been progressed

Self- Assessment – due to 
resources and the pandemic this 
has not been able to be 
progressed and remains 
outstanding. 

Local Code Principle 2. Engaging 
with individual citizens and service 
users effectively.  

The Local Code includes reference to a consultation policy 
and programme. This was not updated for 2018/19 or 
19/20. Consideration should be given the value this adds 
and how it sits with other new arrangements around 
communications.  

Corporate Leadership 
Team  

31/9/2019 
31/3/2022 

A large volume of consultations 
have taken place in 2021/22. 
Given the short timescale 
remaining before LGR, it is not 
now considered economic to 
progress this separately for Eden 
District Council. This 
recommendation will be passed to 
the new Unitary for progressing.  

Local Code Principle 6, 
Maintaining robust control. 

The Council has a significant number of services 
contracted out. Notice has been received that a contract 
will expire during 2019/20 which the Council had wanted to 
extend. The strict terms of the contract require written 
confirmation for it to be extended. This was not provided 
by the Council to the Contractor. Two previous extensions 
had been commenced without written confirmation. The 
contractor has now exercised their right to not extend for a 
further period in the absence of written confirmation. This 
could have a significant financial impact in 2019/20. 

Corporate Leadership 
Team 

31/9/2019 
31/3/2022 

Completed September 2022 - 
Following the One Eden 
Reorganisation at EDC, the 
procurement and main contract 
management functions were split. 
This has allowed for oversight of 
contract end dates and impartial 
advice and review of renewals. 
Renewal of contracts will be 
arranged in conjunction with the 
legal department. 

P
age  70



Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 
Reference  

Issue to address  Responsible  Due by  Progress  

Processes for management and oversight of contracts 
need to be reviewed and improved.  

Local Code Principle 6, 
Maintaining robust control.  

The Council currently has vacancies or interims in two of 
its four Corporate Leadership posts. Turnover of staff and 
vacancies can have an adverse impact upon the standard 
of Governance. The Council has plans to restructure the 
organisation through the One Eden Transformation 
Programme, which will consider staffing matter throughout 
the organisation 

Corporate Leadership 
Team 

31/5/2021 One Eden Staffing Transformation 
programme completed in 
November 2021. However there 
remain interims in two of its four 
Corporate Leadership posts due to 
LGR. 

Local Code, Principle 4, Financial 
Management Code 

CIPFA published a Financial Management Code in 
October 2019. An assessment of compliance with this 
code has not yet been completed 

Chief Finance Officer 31/3/2022 Due to resources, this has not yet 
been able to be completed 

Local Code Principle 6, 
Maintaining robust control 

The Local Government Re-organisation has created 
significant financial pressures for the Council. Whilst it has 
current plans in place the financial implications in both the 
short and medium term may change. The Council will 
need to use its Medium Term Financial Strategy, and 
balance its Corporate Priorities to deliver a balanced 
budget for 2022/23 and a sustainable medium term 
financial forecast. 

Chief Finance Officer 28/2/2022 Complete 

Local Code Principle 1, respecting 
the rule of law 

The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) was due to 
meet in 2020/21 to review the Member Allowances 
scheme and provide recommendations to Council for the 
21/22 and 22/23 years. This was delayed due to Covid19 
and LGR. 
The IRP needs to meet to provide a recommendation to 
Council. 

Chief Finance Officer 31/12/2021 The IRP has met and provided 
recommendations Council  

Local Code Principle 3, defining 
outcomes in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and 
environmental benefits 

Pressures due to Covid19 have left Strategies and Policies 
out of date and in need of review in areas including 
Procurement, Communication, Access to Services, 
Efficiency & Value for Money, Asset Management, 
Records Management and Retention 

Director of Resources 31/3/2022 Procurement Policy updated May 
2022, Records Management 
Policy updated October 2022. 
Other policies are not considered 
effective to update before LGR. 

P
age  71



Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 
Reference  

Issue to address  Responsible  Due by  Progress  

Local Code Principle 6, Managing 
Risk and Performance 

An audit of Risk Management Framework at the Council 
identified that the Risk Management Strategy needed to 
be updated and approved by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
The Extended Leadership Team should review the 
Strategic Risk Register monthly 
 

Director of Resources 31/7/2021 The Risk Management Strategy 
and the Corporate Risk Register 
have undergone a fundamental 
review to bring them up to date. 
Completed July 2021 

Local Code Principle 5, developing 
capabilities of individuals 

Significant changes in staffing including changes in 
management structure, combined with Covid19 have 
delayed annual appraisal and performance reviews with 
staff. These reviews need to be re-instated with guidance 
provided to new managers 

Director of Resources 31/12/2021 Annual appraisal and performance 
reviews updated and relaunched 
in June 2022 

New Items     

Local Code Principle C5, having a 
comprehensive approach to 
emergency and disaster planning 

A corporate level business continuity plan has been 
developed but needs further supported by critical activity 
register and critical activity business continuity plans at 
service level 

Assistant Director, 
Finance 

31/3/23 In Progress 

Local Code Principle D, 
Determining the interventions 
necessary to optimise the 
achievement of intended 
outcomes, Sub-principle: Planning 
Interventions 

The draft Emergency Response plan to be completed and 
published 

Assistant Director, 
Delivery 

31/12/22 In Progress 

Local Code Principle F, Managing 
Risks and performance through 
robust internal control and strong 
public financial management. Sub-
priniple: Managing data 

The Data Protection Policy was last updated in December 
2018. The policy should be updated and published 

Assistant Director Legal 
and Democratic 
Services 

 As part of the creation of the new 
Unitary Council, new policies will 
be developed and adopted. It is 
therefore not considered effective 
use of resources to update this 
policy for the short period 
remaining. 

P
age  72



Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 
Reference  

Issue to address  Responsible  Due by  Progress  

Local Code Principle F, Managing 
Risks and performance through 
robust internal control and strong 
public financial management. Sub-
priniple: Managing data 

The Data Quality Statement was last updated in March 
2016. The state,emt should be updated and published 

Assistant Director, 
Housing, Customers 
and Performance 

 A data quality statement is a policy 
on how we will ensure that our 
data is accurate and transparent. 
As part of the creation of the new 
Unitary Council, new policies will 
be developed and adopted. It is 
therefore not considered effective 
use of resources to update this 
statement for the short period 
remaining. 

Local Code Principle G: 
Implementing good practices in 
transparency, reporting and audit 
to deliver effective accountability. 
Sub-principle: Assurance and 
effective accountability 

The report of the external auditors should be considered 
by full council  

Assistant Director, 
Finance 

31/3/23  

Local Code Principle A: Behaving 
with integrity, demonstrating 
strong commitment to ethical 
values and respecting the rule of 
law. Sub-principle: behaving with 
integrity 

The confidential report code / Whistleblowing Policy has 
not been updated since November 2018 

Assistant Director Legal 
and Democratic 
Services 

 As part of the creation of the new 
Unitary Council, new policies will 
be developed and adopted. It is 
therefore not considered effective 
use of resources to update this 
policy for the short period 
remaining. 

Local Code Principle B: Ensuring 
openness and comprehensive 
stakeholder engagement. Sub-
principle: engaging stakeholders 
effectively, including individual 
citizens and service users 

It is recommended that a Consultation Policy, including a 
statement of Community Involvement be created and 
published 

Interim Director of 
Resources 

 As part of the creation of the new 
Unitary Council, new policies will 
be developed and adopted. It is 
therefore not considered effective 
use of resources to create this 
policy for the short period 
remaining. 

Local code Principle D: 
Determining the interventions 
necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended 
outcomes. Sub-principle: planning 
interventions 

A partnership register should be prepared and maintained 
containing all major partnerships. This should be reviewed 
by Overview and Scrutiny annually 

Assistant Director, 
Finance 

31/12/22 In progress. Due to be considered 
in December 2022 

P
age  73



Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 
Reference  

Issue to address  Responsible  Due by  Progress  

Local Code Principle B: Ensuring 
openness and comprehensive 
stakeholder engagement. Sub-
principle: engaging stakeholders 
effectively, including individual 
citizens and service users 

A communication strategy should be developed and 
published 

Interim Director of 
Resources 

 As part of the creation of the new 
Unitary Council, new strategies will 
be developed and adopted. t is 
therefore not considered effective 
use of resources to create this at 
this time. 

Local Code Principle C: Defining 
outcomes in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and 
environmental benefits. Sub-
principle: Sustainable economic, 
social and environmental benefits 

An access to services policy should be developed and 
published 

Interim Director of 
Resources 

 As part of the creation of the new 
Unitary Council, new strategies will 
be developed and adopted. t is 
therefore not considered effective 
use of resources to create this at 
this time. 

Local code Principle E: Developing 
the entity’s capacity, including the 
capability of it 
s leadership and the individuals 
within it. Sub-principle: Developing 
the entity’s capacity 

The Efficiency and Value for Money policy was last 
updated April 2017.  

Assistant Director, 
Finance 

 As part of the creation of the new 
Unitary Council, new strategies will 
be developed and adopted. It is 
therefore not considered effective 
use of resources to create this at 
this time. 

Local code Principle E: Developing 
the entity’s capacity, including the 
capability of it 
s leadership and the individuals 
within it. Sub-principle: Developing 
the entity’s capacity 

An annual efficiency report be prepared and approved by 
Finance Scrutiny 

Assistant Director, 
Finance 

31/12/22 Due to resources during Covid this 
was not prepared. It will be 
considered for 2021/22. 

Local code Principle E: Developing 
the entity’s capacity, including the 
capability of it 
s leadership and the individuals 
within it. Sub-principle: Developing 
the capability of the entity’s 
leadership and other individuals 

Employment Policies which have not been reviewed for 
over 3 years should be reviewed and updated where 
required. 

Interim Director of 
Resources 

 Employment Policies required 
Union consultation and hence the 
timescales involved are often over 
6 months. As part of the creation 
of the new Unitary Council, new 
policies will be developed and 
adopted. It is therefore not 
considered effective use of 
resources to updated these at this 
time. 

 

P
age  74



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

Eden District Council 

Local Code of Governance 

April 2022 

Amendments 

1) Updated to refer to sub-principles per Framework guidance 

2) Updated to add in provisions to meet CIPFA guidance on Local Code of Governance 

3) Removing duplicate provisions within the same principle (A10 (A3), F25 (F1))

4) Ensuring consistency between provisions occurring under more than one principle 

5) Removed extra provisions not relevant to section (eg where also included elsewhere)

Appendix C

Page  75



Table of Contents 
 

1 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................. 1 

2 The Council commits itself to the following principles: ............................................................................................. 1 

 Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting 

the rule of law ............................................................................................................................................................. 1 

 Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement .................................................. 3 

 Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits .............. 4 

 Principle D: Determining the Interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes .................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

 Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals 

within it ....................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

 Principle F: Managing Risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial 

management ............................................................................................................................................................... 7 

 Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to delivery effective 

accountability .............................................................................................................................................................. 8 

3 Annual Review of Corporate Governance ................................................................................................................. 9 

Page  76



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

Introduction 

 

This Local Code of Governance has been developed from a framework document produced by The Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior 

Managers (SOLACE). The CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) 

defines governance as follows:  

“Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for stakeholders are 

defined and achieved.  

To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals working for public sector 

entities must try to achieve their entity’s objectives while acting in the public interest at all times.  

Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for society, which should result in positive 

outcomes for service users and other stakeholders.”  

The framework contains seven principles. These are as follows:  

Principle A – Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of 

law  

Principle B – Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement  

Principle C – Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits  

Principle D – Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes  

Principle E – Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  

Principle F – Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 

management  

Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability  

The Council is committed to these principles and has adopted them into its Local Code. The remainder of this 

document sets out the local arrangements that support the achievement of these principles. The Council will review 

the effectiveness of these arrangements against the Framework on an annual basis. 

1 The Council commits itself to the following principles: 
 

 Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law 

Sub-Principle A1: Behaving with Integrity 

A1) Enabling Scrutiny to ‘call-in’ any Executive decisions contrary to the Budgetary and Policy Framework 

A2) Having Codes of Conduct for Officers and Members in which there is guidance on Officer Member Relationships 

Page  77



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

A3) Maintaining an Accounts and Governance Committee that meets regularly and takes an active interest in the 

maintenance of standards across the Council. In particular, it is responsible for monitoring of the Corporate 

Complaints Procedure and Members Code of Conduct 

A4) Maintaining an Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) to advise the Council on allowances to be paid to 

Members 

A5) Having a Corporate Leadership Team, which includes the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Directors’ 

Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, which has access to papers to meetings.  

A6) Having an Extended Leadership Team which includes all Assistant Directors as well as the Corporate Leadership 

Team meeting bi-weekly.  

A7) Having a constitution which sets out clearly the roles and duties of the Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer (Director of Resources) and the Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution sets out key aspects of the Council’s internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit rules, the Procurement rules and the Scheme of Delegation.  

A8) The Constitution is reviewed annually. 

A9) All reports have to be seen by the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer. Completion of these 

governance checks has to be noted on the report. The Monitoring Officer and s151 Officer sign off every 

committee report. 

A10) Having clear documented approach to fraud and whistle-blowing, which is regularly updated and communicated 

to staff and is in accordance with the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 

2014). 

A11) Having a policy on the Regulation of the Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA). 

A12) Having a clear complaints procedure. 

A13) Using complaints and compliments as a positive improvement tool. 

A14) Giving effective induction training to new Elected Members and staff including Senior Officers 

A15) Having a performance and appraisal system so that all members of staff know what is expected of them. In 

addition, an annual training plan is agreed as part of the appraisal process 

A16) Communicate and promote shared values to members, staff, the community and partners 

A17) Declarations of Interest made at meetings 

A18) Having an up to date Register of Interests (members and staff)  

A19) Having an up to date Register of Gifts and Hospitality 

A20) Members and Officers Code of Conduct refers to a requirement to declare interests 

A21) Minutes show declarations of interest were sought 

Sub-principle A2: Demonstrating Strong Commitment to Ethical Values 

A22) Appraisal Process takes account of values and ethical behaviour. 

A23) Provision of ethical awareness training 

A24) Procurement Policy includes ethical values 

A25) Protocols Exist for Partnership Working 

 

Sub-principle A3: Respecting the Rule of Law 

A9) The constitution is reviewed annually. 

A12) Having clear documented approach to fraud and whistle-blowing, which is updated and communicated to staff 

and is in accordance with the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014). 

Commented [MB1]: Same provision as E12, brought in here to 
meet CIPFA guidance note 

Commented [MB2]: Same provision at E14, brought in here to 
meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB3]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB4]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB5]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB6]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB7]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidance 

Page  78



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

A11) All reports have to be seen by the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer. Completion of these 

governance checks has to be noted on the report. The Monitoring Officer and s151 Officer sign off every 

committee report 

A26) All Officer roles have clear job descriptions including responsibilities 

A27) Providing job descriptions for all Member roles within the Constitution 

A28) All Committees, Sub-Committees and Task & Finish Groups have clear Terms of Reference 

A29) Support is provided to Committees including on matters of compliance and legal requirements 

A30) Legal Advice provided by Officers is recorded 

A31) There is a Protocol on the Monitoring Officer 

 

Removed: 

Having published procedures to demonstrate compliance with the Freedom of Information Act and the Environmental 

Information Regulations. (moved to B13) 

 

 

 Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Sub-principle B1: Openness 

B1) Publishing An Annual Report each year 

B2) Having published procedures to demonstrate compliance with the Freedom of Information Act and the 

Environmental Information Regulations. 

B3) Publishing information on our website on Council Tax 

B4) Communicate and promote shared values to members, staff, the community and partners 

B5) Providing full information on the Council’s business on its website 

B6) The Council meets 9 times per year. The Executive meets monthly; the committees and panels meet regularly as 

set out in the Constitution. Apart from exempt items, all formal business is open to the public. Reports and 

Minutes are publically available 

B7) Clear recording of the reasons for member decisions  

B8) Having clear consistent report pro-formas which include evaluation of options and professional advice received 

B9) Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports is adhered to  

B10) Actively consulting through a range of channels 

B11) Holding a Community Conference, which includes a wider range of public, private and voluntary organisations to 

inform the Council Plan 

B12) Using a range of customer feedback mechanisms including satisfaction surveys 

B13) Having published procedures to demonstrate compliance with the Freedom of Information Act and the 

Environmental Information Regulations 

 

Sub-principle B2: Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders 

B14) Communicating to the public through effective use of the media, as set out in the Council’s Communication 

Strategy 

B15) Having a community engagement and Consultation section on the website which includes using the County 

Council hosted Consultation Finder on our website. 

Commented [MB8]: Added to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB9]: Same provision as E9, brought in here to 
meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB10]: Added to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB11]: Added to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB12]: Added to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB13]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidance 

Commented [MB14]: Moved from principle A to meet CIPFA 
guidance 

Commented [MB15]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidelines 

Commented [MB16]: As per A17, inserted to meet CIPFA 
guidelines 

Commented [MB17]: Not required, met by other arrangements 

Commented [MB18]: Inserted to meet CIPFA Guidelines 

Commented [MB19]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidelines 

Page  79



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

B16) Maintaining and regularly updating a database of all major partnerships that the Council is involved in and that 

these are in accordance with the Council’s Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is reviewed in public annually 

B17) Protocols Exist for Partnership Working 

 

Sub-principle B3: Engaging Stakeholders effectively, including individual citizens and service users 

B5) Providing full information on the Council’s business on its website 

B10) Actively consulting through a range of channels 

B12) Using a range of customer feedback mechanisms including satisfaction surveys 

B13) Communicating to the public through effective use of the media, as set out in the Council’s Communication 

Strategy 

B16) Protocols Exist for Partnership Working 

B18) Having a Statement of Community Involvement 

B19) Having a Consultation policy and programme 

B20) Having a published Customer Charter 

 

 

Removed: 

 Having a clear Complaints Procedure (included in A13) 

 Using Complaints and compliments as a positive improvement tool (included in A14) 

 Ensuring all inspection and audit reports considered by Members are public documents. Any recommendations 

from such reports are tracked through regular reports to the Accounts and Governance Committee (alternative 

included at G13) 

 Promoting citizenship by active involvement with local schools (not relevant) 

 Encouraging prospective candidates for election to come forward (not relevant) 

 

 

 Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 

environmental benefits 

Sub-principle C1: Defining Outcomes 

C1) Having a Council Plan including Strategic Targets 

C2) Having a comprehensive approach to emergency and disaster planning. The Council regularly updates its 

Business Continuity Plan and the Emergency Response Plan, both of which are regularly tested through an 

exercise 

C3) Having a regular Emergency Planning Group which is responsible for maintaining the Eden Emergency Response 

Plan 

C4) Having an ‘out of hours’ response service 

C5) Having an Access to Services Policy 

C6) Having a statement of Community Involvement 

C7) Considering the economic, social and environmental benefits as part of the decision making process 

Commented [MB20]: As per A26, inserted to meet CIPFA 
guidelines 

Commented [MB21]: As per A26, inserted to meet CIPFA 
guidelines 

Page  80



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

C8) Regularly monitoring key service delivery indicators through regular reports to the Corporate Management 

Team and the Leader. Where below target performance is seen as significant, explanations and proposed 

corrective actions are requested 

Sub-principle C2: Sustainable Economic, social and environmental benefits 

C9) Having a Consultation Policy and Programme 

C10) Maintaining and updating a triennial Asset Management Plan 

 

Removed: 

 Having an annually updated Corporate Procurement Strategy, based on the National Procurement Strategy for Local 

Government (moved to D12 and A24) 

 Council considering its Resources Plan annually (considered as part of budget approval) 

 Principle D: Determining the Interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes 

Sub-principle D1: Determining Interventions 

D1) Having clear consistent report pro-formas which include evaluation of options and professional advice received 

D2) Having a clear Constitution which sets out how decisions are made 

D3) Having a consultation policy and programme 

Sub-principle D2: Planning Interventions 

D4) Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports is adhered to  

D5) Providing strategic management through the monthly meeting of the Executive and weekly Leader and Chief 

Executive meetings 

D6) Regularly monitoring key service delivery indicators through regular reports to the Corporate Management 

Team and the Leader. Where below target performance is seen as significant, explanations and proposed 

corrective actions are requested 

D7) Setting a medium term financial strategy based on regularly refreshed priorities 

D8) Having in place a budget process including budgeting guidelines and protocols 

D9) Having a Consultation Policy & Programme 

D10) Protocols Exist for Partnership Working 

D11) Budget is prepared to align with plans and objectives. Plans and objectives are matched to budget in committee 

reports. 

Sub-principle D3: Optimising achievement of intended outcomes 

D7) Setting a medium term financial strategy based on regularly refreshed priorities 

D8) Having in place a budget process including budgeting guidelines and protocols 

D12) Having an annually updated Corporate Procurement Strategy, based on the National Procurement Strategy for 

Local Government 

D13) Stating clear and meaningful priorities and having effective arrangements in place to monitor progress against 

these 

D14) Setting clear targets which translate the agreed priorities into outcomes. These are regularly reviewed 

Commented [MB22]: As per D8. Inserted to meet CIPFA 
guidelines 

Commented [MB23]: As per B17, added to meet CIPFA 
guidelines 

Commented [MB24]: As per E2, added to meet CIPFA guidelines 

Commented [MB25]: Per B8, added to meet CIPFA guidelines 

Commented [MB26]: Inserted to meet CIPFA Guidelines 

Commented [MB27]: Inserted to meet CIPFA guidelines 

Page  81



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

D15) A regular review of the Council’s priorities 

D16) Securing continuous improvement through regular savings/income generation exercises and the annual 

programme of Scrutiny Committee reviews 

D17) An Efficiency and Value for Money Policy (reviewed biennially) 

D18) Clearly placing policy development as the role of the Executive 

D19) Ensuring that any new bid for resources is judged against how far it advances the corporate priorities and 

objectives 

D20) Clear recording of the reasons for member decisions 

 

 

Removed 

 Ensuring that the financial management of the Council is sound, by annual review of compliance with the CIPFA 

Financial Management Code. (included at F22) 

 Council considering its Resources Plan annually (done as part of the budget setting process) 

 Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it 

Sub-principle E1: Developing the Entity’s Capacity 

E1) Maintaining and updating a Triennial Asset Management Plan 

E2) Holding a regular cross-departmental Asset Management Group 

E3) Regularly monitoring key service delivery indicators through regular reports to the Corporate Management 

Team and the Leader. Where below target performance is seen as significant, explanations and proposed 

corrective actions are requested 

E4) Considering cost against a ‘family’ group of local authorities 

E5) Protocols Exist for partnership working 

E6) Adopting a ‘what works’ basis to service provision by using in-house provision, outsourcing, sharing service 

provision and partnership arrangements as appropriate  

E7) Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources 

Sub-principle E2: Developing the capability of the Entity’s leadership and other individuals 

E8) Providing job descriptions for all Member roles within the Constitution 

E9) Clearly setting out the rules for the Executive, Scrutiny Committees and the regulatory committees in the 

Constitution 

E10) All Officer roles have clear job descriptions including responsibilities 

E11) The Constitution is reviewed annually. 

E12) Having a Constitution which sets our clearly the roles and duties of the Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, chief Finance Officer (Director of Resources) and the Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution sets out key aspects of the Council’s internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit Rules, the Procurement Rules and the Scheme of Delegation.  

E13) Having a Scheme of Delegation which clearly sets out decisions delegated to officers. This is annually reviewed 

and updated 

E14) Giving effective induction training to new Elected Members and staff including Senior Officers 

Commented [MB28]: As per C8/D6. Inserted to meet CIPFA 
guidelines 

Commented [MB29]: Added to meet CIPFA guidance 

Page  82



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

E15) Providing pro-active Member training 

E16) Having clear, published employee policies 

E17) Having a performance and appraisal system so that all members of staff know what is expected of them. In 

addition, an annual training plan is agreed as part of the appraisal process 

 

Removed: 

 Providing strategic management through the monthly meeting of the Executive and weekly Leader and Chief 

Executive meetings (included at D5) 

 The Executive meets monthly; committees and panels meet regularly as set out in the Constitution. Apart from 

exempt items, all committee business is open to the public. Reports and minutes are publicly available (included at 

G6) 

 

 

 Principle F: Managing Risks and performance through robust internal control 

and strong public financial management 

Sub-principle F1: Managing Risk 

F1) The Council having a Risk Management Strategy which is annually reviewed and updated 

F2) The Council maintaining a Risk Register. This is reviewed quarterly by the management Team and Executive. It is 

scrutinised annually by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Management Team. After each quarterly 

update, all staff are reminded of its presence. New risks are often identified outside the quarterly reviews, 

mainly through Management Team discussion on particular issues 

F3) Having a ‘Risk Management Implications’ section in all committee reports 

F4) Having and maintaining an ICT Services Risk Register 

Sub-principle F2: Managing Performance 

F5) Approving SMART targets for the Council’s wholly owned company to give a basis for monitoring performance 

F6) Using Key Performance Indices to manage key strategic or higher risk contracts 

Sub-principle F3: Robust Internal Control 

F7) Having a Confidential Reporting Code which clearly documents the procedure for staff to report matters of 

concern, which is updated and communicated to staff 

F8) Having an annually updated Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Policy which is an accordance with the 

Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014) 

F9) Maintaining an effective internal audit function 

F10) Having codes of conduct for officers and Members in which there is guidance on officer/Member relationships 

Sub-principle F4: Managing Data 

F11) Having a Data Quality Statement 

F12) Having a clear and effective policy on data protection 

F13) Having clear and effective information governance policies, systems and procedures 

Commented [MB30]: Added to match CIPFA Framework 

Page  83



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

F14) Having clear and effective information security policies, systems and procedures 

Sub-principle F5: Strong Public Financial Management 

F15) The Executive received regular reports on budgets, capital scheme progress and the Risk Register 

F16) Having a dedicated contracts and procurement team to provide corporate support to the procurement process 

and direct oversight of a number of material out-sourced contracts. 

F17) Maintaining robust financial control with a suitably qualified section 151 Officer 

F18) Setting a medium term financial strategy based on regularly refreshed priorities 

F19) Considering cost against a ‘family’ group of local authorities 

F20) Ensuring that any new bid for resources is judged against how far it advances the corporate priorities and 

objectives 

F21) Securing continuous improvement through regular savings/income generation exercises and the annual 

programme of Scrutiny Committee reviews 

F22) Ensuring that the financial management of the Council is sound, by annual review of compliance with the CIPFA 

Financial Management Code. 

F23) Enabling Scrutiny to ‘call-in’ any Executive decisions contrary to the Budgetary and Policy framework.  

 

Removed as duplicated elsewhere and not relevant to this section per CIPFA guidelines: 

Maintaining and updating a triennial Asset Management Plan (included at E1) 
Holding regular cross departmental Asset Management Group (included at E2) 

 Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit 

to delivery effective accountability 

Sub-principle G1: Implementing good practice in transparency 

G1) Providing full information on the Council’s business on its website 

G2) Compliance with the Local Government Transparency Code and Open Data 

G3) The Council meets 9 times per year. The Executive meets monthly; committees and panels meet regularly as set 

out in the Constitution. Apart from exempt items, all formal business is open to the public. Reports and minutes 

are publically available 

G4) Clear recording of the reasons for member decisions 

G5) Ensuring that reports are written in an understandable style appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring 

that they are easy to access and interrogate 

G6) The Executive meets monthly; committees and panels meet regularly as set out in the Constitution. Apart from 

exempt items, all committee business is open to the public. Reports and minutes are publicly available 

Sub-principle G2: Implementing good practice in reporting 

G7) Performance is reported Quarterly to Executive and to Overview and Scrutiny 

G8) The Accounts and Governance Committee Approves the Annual Accounts 

G9) The Accounts and Governance Committee Approves the Annual Governance Statement 

Sub-principle G3: Assurance and effective accountability 

G10) The Overview & Scrutiny Committee is responsible for risk management arrangements 

Commented [MB31]: Old F24 simplified due to existence of 
Financial Management Code and matched to D7 

Commented [MB32]: Split from F4 to match F4 to A1 per 
auditor guidance 

Commented [MB33]: Amended to match B6 

Commented [MB34]: Added 

Page  84



Local Code of Governance April 2022 

G11) Maintaining an Accounts and Governance Committee that meets regularly and takes an active interest in the 

maintenance of standards across the Council. In particular, it is responsible for monitoring the corporate 

Complaints Procedure and Members Code of Conduct 

G12) Council considers the Annual Audit Letter from the external auditor 

G13) The Accounts and Governance Committee Receives all reports from the Internal Audit services and the external 

auditor 

G14) The Accounts and Governance Committee approves Anti-Fraud, Theft and Corruption Strategy which is in 

accordance with the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014). 

Removed: 

Conducting as much Council business in the public as possible (too vague – replaced with G5) 

 

 

2 Annual Review of Corporate Governance 
At the end of the year, the Council will produce its Annual Governance Statement which will review the effectiveness of 

the actual system of internal control in place against both the Local Code of Governance and the CIPFA best practice 

framework. The review will draw upon various sources of evidence including: 

 Detailed self-assessment against CIPFA best practice examples 

 Internal Audit reports and opinion 

 Relevant Reports from External Audit 

 Reports from Overview & Scrutiny and Accounts & Governance Committees 

 Assurances from senior management and significant partners 

 Review of compliance with Local Code of Governance and Financial Management Code 

As part of its governance role, the Accounts & Governance Committee will oversee this review on behalf of the Council. 

 

Commented [MB35]: Amended to match A3 

Page  85



Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and 

lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly 

and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the 

reputation of the organisation

„Codes of conduct A2

Having Codes of Conduct for Officers 

and Members in which there is guidance 

on Officer Member Relationships

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services / HR & 

OD Manager

Part 4 of the Constitution includes 

protocol on councillor/officer relations
None 1 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and 

lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly 

and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the 

reputation of the organisation

„„Individual sign off with regard to compliance 

with code
None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Not in place None

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and 

lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly 

and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the 

reputation of the organisation

„„Induction for new members and staff on 

standard of behaviour expected
E12

Giving effective induction training to 

new Elected Members and staff 

including Senior Officers

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

A full training induction programme 

was provided for all Councillors after 

the May 2019 elections. Agreed 

AGc/66/02/19, Update provided to 

Council AGc/83/04/19. Further training 

was provided following by-elections 

Penrith West Sept 21; Hartside May 

21; Skelton May 21)

None none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and 

lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly 

and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the 

reputation of the organisation

„„Performance appraisals E14

Having a performance and appraisal 

system so that all members of staff 

know what is expected of them. In 

addition, an annual training plan is 

agreed as part of the appraisal process

HR & OD 

Manager

Performance Appraisal process 

launched June 2022. Corporate 

Training Plan also launched June 2022 

and access to CCC portal of Training 

being arranged with launch date in 

October 2022

None
http://edcsharepoint/sites
/hr/Appraisal%20Docs/F
orms/AllItems.aspx

10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific 

standard operating principles or values for the 

organisation and its staff and that they are communicated 

and understood. These should build on the Seven 

Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles)

Communicating shared values with members, 

staff, the community and partners
None CEX

Values are included on the public 

website, however there is no provision 

to do this in the local code. No other 

evidence of how these are shared with 

community and partners. Values 

shared as part of performance 

appraisal with staff

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-
council/jobs/working-for-
the-council/council-
culture-and-values/

7 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Leading by example and using these standard operating 

principles or values as a framework for decision making 

and other actions

„„Decision making practices A4

Maintaining an Independent 

Remuneration Panel (IRP) to advise the 

Council on allowances to be paid to 

Members

AD Finance

IRP convened in Nov 2021 to advise on 

member allowances for 21/22 and 

22/23. Report presented to Council 

Nov 2021. 

None 10 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Leading by example and using these standard operating 

principles or values as a framework for decision making 

and other actions

„„Decision making practices A1/F5

Enabling Scrutiny to ‘call-in’ any 

Executive decisions contrary to the 

Budgetary and Policy Framework

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny 

Procedure Rules (Part 3, Section D14).  

There were no call-ins during 2021/22.

1 8 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Leading by example and using these standard operating 

principles or values as a framework for decision making 

and other actions

„„Decision making practices A11

All reports have to be seen by the Chief 

Finance Officer and the Monitoring 

Officer. Completion of these governance 

checks has to be noted on the report. 

The Monitoring Officer and s151 Officer 

sign off every committee report

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Report template includes Finance and 

Resources heading as well as Legal 

heading in the Implications Section. 

There is a sign-off section required for 

all Cabinet and Council papers to show 

evidence of review by the CFO and 

MO.

None 2 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Leading by example and using these standard operating 

principles or values as a framework for decision making 

and other actions

„„Declarations of interests made at meetings None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Declarations of interest are sought at 

the start of all committee meetings 

and results are minuted

None 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Leading by example and using these standard operating 

principles or values as a framework for decision making 

and other actions

„„Conduct at meetings
A3/A10/

G7

Maintaining an Accounts and 

Governance Committee that meets 

regularly and takes an active interest in 

the maintenance of standards across the 

Council. In particular, it is responsible 

for monitoring of the Corporate 

Complaints Procedure and Members 

Code of Conduct

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

AGC met 7 times in 21/22 with a varied 

agenda.  Complaints & Compliments 

Annual report presented Sept 2022 

and Nov 2021. Code of Conduct also 

reviewed Nov 21 by AGC.

None 7,8, 9 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Leading by example and using these standard operating 

principles or values as a framework for decision making 

and other actions

„„Shared values guide decision making None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Values are included on the public 

website, however there is no provision 

to do this in the local code. No 

evidence of values in decision making, 

pro-forma only includes corporate 

priorities

None 4 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Leading by example and using these standard operating 

principles or values as a framework for decision making 

and other actions

„„Develop and maintain an effective standards 

committee

A3/A10/

G7

Maintaining an Accounts and 

Governance Committee that meets 

regularly and takes an active interest in 

the maintenance of standards across the 

Council. In particular, it is responsible 

for monitoring of the Corporate 

Complaints Procedure and Members 

Code of Conduct

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

AGC met 7 times in 21/22 with a varied 

agenda.  Complaints & Compliments 

Annual report presented Sept 2022 

and Nov 2021. Code of Conduct also 

reviewed Nov 21 by AGC.

None 7,8, 9 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Anti-fraud and corruption policies are working 

effectively
A12

Having clear documented approach to 

fraud and whistle-blowing, which is 

regularly updated and communicated to 

staff and is in accordance with the Code 

of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014)

Employment Handbook section 6.12 

(Fraud) 

The Policies, plans, strategies other 

essential documents (eden.gov.uk) 

page on the website includes: 

Anti-fraud, theft, bribery and 

corruption strategy and response plan 

(2022)

Annual Fraud Report approved at AGC 

9 June 2022

None 4,5 8 none

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

Appendix D

P
age  86

../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/council-culture-and-values/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/council-culture-and-values/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/council-culture-and-values/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/council-culture-and-values/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/council-culture-and-values/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Up-to-date register of interests (members and 

staff)
None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Held by Democratic Services None

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Up-to-date register of gifts and hospitality None AD Finance
Held centrally and provided to auditors 

annually
None 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Whistleblowing policies are in place and 

protect individuals raising concerns
A12

Having clear documented approach to 

fraud and whistle-blowing, which is 

regularly updated and communicated to 

staff and is in accordance with the Code 

of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014)

Employment Handbook Section 6.6 

(Confidential Reporting 

(Whistleblowing)

The Policies, plans, strategies other 

essential documents (eden.gov.uk) 

page on the website includes: 

Confidential Reporting Code (2017). 

However this was replaced by the 

Whistleblowing Policy approved by 

AGC November 2018.

14 6

Action: Update 

Confidential 

Reporting Code / 

Whistleblowing 

Policy

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Whistleblowing policy has been made 

available to members of the public, 

employees, partners and contractors

A12

Having clear documented approach to 

fraud and whistle-blowing, which is 

regularly updated and communicated to 

staff and is in accordance with the Code 

of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014)

Employment Handbook Section 6.6 

(Confidential Reporting 

(Whistleblowing)

The Policies, plans, strategies other 

essential documents (eden.gov.uk) 

page on the website includes: 

Confidential Reporting Code (2017). 

However this was replaced by the 

Whistleblowing Policy approved by 

AGC November 2018.

14 6

Action: Update 

Confidential 

Reporting Code / 

Whistleblowing 

Policy

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

Complaints policy and examples of responding 

to complaints about behaviour
A14/B5 Having a clear complaints procedure.

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Procedures is on website: 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-

council/have-your-say/complaints/. 

Complaints are co-ordinated by the 

MO or Officers within Legal & 

Democratic Services. Officers involved 

will be directed as to what is expected 

of them depending on the 

circumstances. 

AGC September 2022 shows example 

report on Complaints and 

Compliments

None 7 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Changes/improvements as a result of 

complaints received and acted upon
A15/B6

Using complaints and compliments as a 

positive improvement tool.

AGC September 2022 shows example 

report on Complaints and 

Compliments. It evidences that 

recommendations were made but 

does not show evidence of the change 

having been made

None 7 8 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Changes/improvements as a result of 

complaints received and acted upon

A3/A10/

G7

Maintaining an Accounts and 

Governance Committee that meets 

regularly and takes an active interest in 

the maintenance of standards across the 

Council. In particular, it is responsible 

for monitoring of the Corporate 

Complaints Procedure and Members 

Code of Conduct

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

AGC met 7 times in 21/22 with a varied 

agenda.  Complaints & Compliments 

Annual report presented Sept 2022 

and Nov 2021. Code of Conduct also 

reviewed Nov 21 by AGC.

None 7,8, 9 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Members and officers code of conduct refers 

to a requirement to declare interests
A2

Having Codes of Conduct for Officers 

and Members in which there is guidance 

on Officer Member Relationships

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services / HR & 

OD Manager

Part 4 of the Constitution includes 

protocol on councillor/officer relations
None 1 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

„„Minutes show declarations of interest were 

sought
None

Declarations of interest are sought at 

the start of all committee meetings 

and results are minuted

None 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

A5

Having a Corporate Leadership Team, 

which includes the Chief Executive, 

Deputy Chief Executive, Directors’ 

Monitoring Officer and the Chief 

Financial Officer, which has access to 

papers to meetings. 

CLT meets regularly on mondays. None Diaries 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the 

standard operating principles or values through 

appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on 

a regular basis to ensure that they are operating 

effectively

A6

Having an Extended Leadership Team 

which includes all Assistant Directors as 

well as the Corporate Leadership Team 

meeting bi-weekly

ELT (CLT plus Assistant Directors) 

meets each Wednesday - minutes are 

sent out to all staff of the ELT meeting

None archived bulletin board 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the 

organisation’s ethical standards and performance
„„Scrutiny of ethical decision making None

Overview and Scrutiny perform the 

scrutiny function for EDC
None

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the 

organisation’s ethical standards and performance

„„Championing ethical compliance at governing 

body level
None

Overview and Scrutiny perform the 

scrutiny function for EDC
None

P
age  87



Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Underpinning personal

behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they 

permeate all aspects of the organisation’s culture and 

operation

Provision of ethical awareness training E13 Providing pro-active Member training

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Planning, Licensing & AGC training is 

compulsory every year for any 

member of those committees.  

Training sessions are provided on other 

topics such as Annual Accounts, 

Universal Credit and any other topic 

which may be beneficial for Members 

as required in advance of meetings 

discussing these topics.

None 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Developing and maintaining robust policies and 

procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical 

values

„Appraisal processes take account of values and 

ethical behaviour
E14

Having a performance and appraisal 

system so that all members of staff 

know what is expected of them. In 

addition, an annual training plan is 

agreed as part of the appraisal process

HR & OD 

Manager

Performance Appraisal process 

launched June 2022. Corporate 

Training Plan also launched June 2022 

and access to CCC portal of Training 

being arranged with launch date in 

October 2022

None
http://edcsharepoint/sites
/hr/Appraisal%20Docs/F
orms/AllItems.aspx

10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Developing and maintaining robust policies and 

procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical 

values

„„Staff appointments policy None
HR & OD 

Manager

EDC does not have one staff 

appointments policy, instead we have 

several policies:

Equality and Diversity Policy Statement

Equality of Opportunity in Employment 

Policy

Recruitment & Selection Policy

None 8 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Developing and maintaining robust policies and 

procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical 

values

„Procurement policy C2/D11

Having an annually updated Corporate 

Procurement Strategy, based on the 

National Procurement Strategy for Local 

Government

AD Finance

Procurement Strategy approved by 

Resources Portfolio Holder in May 

2023. Strategy published on 

procurement page on website. 

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/council-
business/council-
documents/policies-
plans-and-strategies/# ; 
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/council-
business/procurement/

none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Ensuring that external providers

of services on behalf of the

organisation are required to act with integrity and in 

compliance with high ethical standards expected by the 

organisation

„„Agreed values in partnership working:

–– Statement of business ethics

communicates commitment to

ethical values to external suppliers

–– Ethical values feature in contracts with 

external service providers

B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values

Ensuring that external providers

of services on behalf of the

organisation are required to act with integrity and in 

compliance with high ethical standards expected by the 

organisation

„„Protocols for partnership working B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong 

commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to 

relevant laws and regulations

„Statutory provisions A13
Having a policy on the Regulation of the 

Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA).

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 

Page on sharepoint including 

Corporate Guidelines and Policy, 

updated November 2021 (Cabinet). 

Published on sharepoint RIPA page

None 6 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong 

commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to 

relevant laws and regulations

„Statutory guidance is followed F11

Having a Confidential Reporting Code 

which clearly documents the procedure 

for staff to report matters of concern, 

which is updated and communicated to 

staff

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Employment Handbook Section 6.6 

(Confidential Reporting 

(Whistleblowing)

The Policies, plans, strategies other 

essential documents (eden.gov.uk) 

page on the website includes: 

Confidential Reporting Code (2017). 

However this was replaced by the 

Whistleblowing Policy approved by 

AGC November 2018.

3,14 6

Action: Update 

Confidential 

Reporting Code / 

Whistleblowing 

Policy

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong 

commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to 

relevant laws and regulations

„Constitution A8/E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong 

commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to 

relevant laws and regulations

„Constitution A9 The Constitution is reviewed annually.

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

The Constitution was reviewed in 

November 2021 by Council
None Council Papers 10 none

P
age  88

../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory 

officers, other key post holders and members are able to 

fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative 

and regulatory requirements

Job description/specifications A8/E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory 

officers, other key post holders and members are able to 

fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative 

and regulatory requirements

Compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the 

Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 

Government (CIPFA, 2016)

A8/E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory 

officers, other key post holders and members are able to 

fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative 

and regulatory requirements

Terms of reference/Consititution A8/E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory 

officers, other key post holders and members are able to 

fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative 

and regulatory requirements

Committee support None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Support for committees is provided by 

the Democratic Services Dept
None 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available 

for the benefit of citizens, communities and other 

stakeholders

Record of legal advice provided by officers None

Meeting reports have a legal section 

which is signed-off by the MO for 

cabinet and council

None 10 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions 

effectively
Monitoring officer provisions None Constitution none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions 

effectively
Record of legal advice provided by officers None

Meeting reports have a legal section 

which is signed-off by the MO for 

cabinet and council

None 8 none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions 

effectively
Statutory provisions None Constitution none

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with 

effectively

Effective anti-fraud and corruption

policies and procedures
A12

Having clear documented approach to 

fraud and whistle-blowing, which is 

regularly updated and communicated to 

staff and is in accordance with the Code 

of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014)

AD Finance / AD 

Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Employment Handbook Section 6.6 

(Confidential Reporting 

(Whistleblowing)

The Policies, plans, strategies other 

essential documents (eden.gov.uk) 

page on the website includes: 

Confidential Reporting Code (2017). 

However this was replaced by the 

Whistleblowing Policy approved by 

AGC November 2018.

4,5,14 6

Action: Update 

Confidential 

Reporting Code / 

Whistleblowing 

Policy

A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Respecting the rule of law

Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with 

effectively

Local test of assurance (where

appropriate)
None Not in place None

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, 

documenting and communicating the organisation’s 

commitment to openness

B1/G4
Conducting as much Council business in 

the public as possible

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

During 21/22 only 2 items were 

restricted and each had been reviewed 

to ensure they met the requirements

None Council agenda's 10 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, 

documenting and communicating the organisation’s 

commitment to openness

Annual report G9

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Approves the Annual 

Accounts

AD Finance

19/20 Accounts approved in August 

2021. 20/21 Accounts approved in 

August 2022

None 8 none

P
age  89



Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, 

documenting and communicating the organisation’s 

commitment to openness

Freedom of Information Act publication 

scheme
A7

Having published procedures to 

demonstrate compliance with the 

Freedom of Information Act and the 

Environmental Information Regulations

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Webpages are clear on procedure to 

follow. There is now also a link to the 

Access to Information Policy page from 

the FOI page.

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/requesting-

information/freedom-of-

information-foi/  ;   

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/requesting-

information/environmental-

information-regulations-

2004/

10 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, 

documenting and communicating the organisation’s 

commitment to openness

Online council tax information B2/G1
Providing full information on the 

Council’s business on its website

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

A large amount of information was 

available although not always in an 

obvious place

None https://www.eden.gov.uk 8 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, 

documenting and communicating the organisation’s 

commitment to openness

Authority’s goals and values C1
Having a Council Plan including Strategic 

Targets
AD CPH

Corporate Plan is in place and Strategic 

Priorities are set annually
None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-plan-

2019-to-2023/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-

strategic-priorities/

10 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, 

documenting and communicating the organisation’s 

commitment to openness

Authority website B2/G1
Providing full information on the 

Council’s business on its website

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

A large amount of information was 

available although not always in an 

obvious place

None https://www.eden.gov.uk/ 8 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, 

resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The 

presumption

is for openness. If that is not the case, a justification for 

the reasoning for keeping a decision confidential should 

be provided

Record of decision making and supporting 

materials
B3/G3

The Council meets 9 times per year. The 

Executive meets monthly; the 

committees and panels meet regularly 

as set out in the Constitution. Apart 

from exempt items, all formal business 

is open to the public. Reports and 

Minutes are publically available

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Council met 7 times only in 21/22 

(May, Jul, Sep,Nov, Jan, Feb, Apr - Mar 

was cancelled)

Cabinet met 12 times in the year. 

Minutes and agendas on the website. 

All items in public except if exempt.

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

9 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, 

resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The 

presumption

is for openness. If that is not the case, a justification for 

the reasoning for keeping a decision confidential should 

be provided

Record of decision making and supporting 

materials

B4/D2/

G5

Clear recording of the reasons for 

member decisions

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Minutes published for all committee 

meetings. Sample selected and 

checked that minutes had been taken 

and published. Minutes for Council 

have now been expanded to include 

comments/questions raised during the 

meeting

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

10 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 

both public records and explanations to stakeholders and 

being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 

impact and consequences of those decisions are clear

Decision making protocols None

Constitution sets out authority for 

decision making but no specific 

protocol for decision making

None 5 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 

both public records and explanations to stakeholders and 

being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 

impact and consequences of those decisions are clear

Report pro-formas None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

This is in existence but there is no 

provision in the local code
None 2 10 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 

both public records and explanations to stakeholders and 

being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 

impact and consequences of those decisions are clear

Record of professional advice in reaching 

decisions
None

Professional advice is sought but not 

reported on necessarily. A consultation 

section in the pro-forma report gives 

the opportunity for this but it is not 

specifically required.

None 2 7 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 

both public records and explanations to stakeholders and 

being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 

impact and consequences of those decisions are clear

Meeting reports show details of advice given None

Meeting reports have a section on 

consultation which would include 

advice given

None 2 7 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 

both public records and explanations to stakeholders and 

being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 

impact and consequences of those decisions are clear

Discussion between members and officers on 

the information needs of members to support 

decision making

E8

The Executive meets monthly; 

committees and panels meet regularly 

as set out in the Constitution. Apart 

from exempt items, all committee 

business is open to the public. Reports 

and minutes are publicly available

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Cabinet met 12 times in the year. 

Minutes and agendas on the website. 

All items in public except if exempt.

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

10 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 

both public records and explanations to stakeholders and 

being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 

impact and consequences of those decisions are clear

Agreement on the information that will be 

provided and timescales
None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

This is done in informal discussions 

with portfolio holders and cabinet. Pro-

forma report templates support 

standard information being provided

None 6 none

P
age  90

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 

both public records and explanations to stakeholders and 

being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 

impact and consequences of those decisions are clear

Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing 

and distributing timely reports is adhered to
None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Calendar of dates is published in 

advance of the year and includes dates 

for submitting and publishing

None 10 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Using formal and informal consultation and engagement 

to determine the most appropriate and effective 

interventions/ courses of action

Community strategy B16

Having a community engagement and 

Consultation section on the website 

which includes using the County Council 

hosted Consultation Finder on our 

website.

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Have your Say section includes 

information on complaints, 

consultations and other 

comments/enquiries.

Have your Say section not clear from 

Eden Website landing page

None
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/have-your-
say/consultations/

7 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Using formal and informal consultation and engagement 

to determine the most appropriate and effective 

interventions/ courses of action

Use of consultation feedback B10
Actively consulting through a range of 

channels

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Have your Say section includes 

information on complaints, 

consultations and other 

comments/enquiries. Social media is 

also used to share information but 

further channels could be used to 

consult

None
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/have-your-
say/

8 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement
Openness

Using formal and informal consultation and engagement 

to determine the most appropriate and effective 

interventions/ courses of action

Citizen survey None Not proposed at this time due to LGR None 0 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging comprehensively 

with institutional 

stakeholders

Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to 

ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended  

outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so 

that outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably

Community strategy B16

Having a community engagement and 

Consultation section on the website 

which includes using the County Council 

hosted Consultation Finder on our 

website.

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Have your Say section includes 

information on complaints, 

consultations and other 

comments/enquiries.

Have your Say section not clear from 

Eden Website landing page

None
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/have-your-
say/consultations/

7 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging comprehensively 

with institutional 

stakeholders

Developing formal and informal

partnerships to allow for resources to be used more 

efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively

Database of stakeholders with whom

the authority should engage and for what 

purpose and a record of an assessment of the 

effectiveness of any changes

None Not in place None

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging comprehensively 

with institutional 

stakeholders

Ensuring that partnerships are based on:

–– trust

–– a shared commitment to change

–– a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among 

partners 

and that the added value of

partnership working is explicit

Partnership framework B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging comprehensively 

with institutional 

stakeholders

Ensuring that partnerships are based on:

–– trust

–– a shared commitment to change

–– a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among 

partners 

and that the added value of

partnership working is explicit

Partnership protocols B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the 

organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve 

individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders 

to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing 

towards the achievement of intended outcomes.

Record of public consultations B17
Having a Consultation policy and 

programme

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Communications continues to work on 

an ad hoc basis with various 

departments to deliver 

communications strategies for various 

consultations. Recent campaigns 

include the Environmental Permit 

Public Consultation (ongoing to 6 

October 2022), the 2022/23 Budget 

Consultation, the Appleby CAAMP 

Consultation, the Economic Prospectus 

for the Inspiring Eden project, the 

Regulation 18: Eden Local Plan Partial 

review, the Draft Housing Strategy 

2021-2026, the Strategic Housing and 

Economic Needs Assessment and the 

Public Spaces Protection Order 

Extension. Details of all these 

consultations can be found at 

Community engagement and 

consultation (eden.gov.uk) (see links) 

Details of EDC’s Consultation policy can 

be found within Appendix 2 of the 

Eden District Council Statement of 

Community Involvement (see links)

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/policies-plans-

and-strategies/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/have-your-

say/consultations/; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/have-your-

say/consultations/; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

media/5994/appendix_2_s

ci_november_2019.pdf

8 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the 

organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve 

individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders 

to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing 

towards the achievement of intended outcomes.

Partnership framework B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

P
age  91

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Ensuring that communication

methods are effective and that members and officers are 

clear about their roles with regard to community 

engagement

Communications strategy B15

Communicating to the public through 

effective use of the media, as set out in 

the Council’s Communication Strategy

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Website, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, 

YouTube and VideoAsk channels were 

all utilised in 2021/22 and continue to 

be used in 2022/23. Social media 

protocols, policy and guidance have 

now been adopted and are in use. In 

addition, the communications team 

now has dedicated officer resource 

with sole access to the creation and 

management of all digital channels. 

Ongoing training and support has also 

been provided to ensure officers are 

up to date with the latest 

developments in accessibility and best 

practice. Orlo, a social media 

management tool is also being utilised 

to schedule, manage and evaluate 

social media content. The 

communications team is using file 

sharing software (ESB) to create a 

media monitoring form that will enable 

the team to record and manage media 

enquiries within an online form. This 

will create a central repository and 

archive of all media enquiries and 

assist with the collation of suitable 

responses, whilst also recording 

outcomes. The communications team 

continues to use and prepare more 

traditional media tools, such as media 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/news/media-
releases/ ; 
ttps://www.eden.gov.uk/y
our-council/news/media-
and-publicity/

none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and 

experiences of communities, citizens, service users and 

organisations of different backgrounds including 

reference to future needs

Communications strategy B15

Communicating to the public through 

effective use of the media, as set out in 

the Council’s Communication Strategy

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Website, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, 

YouTube and VideoAsk channels were 

all utilised in 2021/22 and continue to 

be used in 2022/23. Social media 

protocols, policy and guidance have 

now been adopted and are in use. In 

addition, the communications team 

now has dedicated officer resource 

with sole access to the creation and 

management of all digital channels. 

Ongoing training and support has also 

been provided to ensure officers are 

up to date with the latest 

developments in accessibility and best 

practice. Orlo, a social media 

management tool is also being utilised 

to schedule, manage and evaluate 

social media content. The 

communications team is using file 

sharing software (ESB) to create a 

media monitoring form that will enable 

the team to record and manage media 

enquiries within an online form. This 

will create a central repository and 

archive of all media enquiries and 

assist with the collation of suitable 

responses, whilst also recording 

outcomes. The communications team 

continues to use and prepare more 

traditional media tools, such as media 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/news/media-
releases/ ; 
ttps://www.eden.gov.uk/y
our-council/news/media-
and-publicity/

none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and 

experiences of communities, citizens, service users and 

organisations of different backgrounds including 

reference to future needs

Joint strategic needs assessment None Not proposed at this time due to LGR None 0 none

P
age  92

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to 

demonstrate how their views have been taken into 

account

Communications strategy B15

Communicating to the public through 

effective use of the media, as set out in 

the Council’s Communication Strategy

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Website, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, 

YouTube and VideoAsk channels were 

all utilised in 2021/22 and continue to 

be used in 2022/23. Social media 

protocols, policy and guidance have 

now been adopted and are in use. In 

addition, the communications team 

now has dedicated officer resource 

with sole access to the creation and 

management of all digital channels. 

Ongoing training and support has also 

been provided to ensure officers are 

up to date with the latest 

developments in accessibility and best 

practice. Orlo, a social media 

management tool is also being utilised 

to schedule, manage and evaluate 

social media content. The 

communications team is using file 

sharing software (ESB) to create a 

media monitoring form that will enable 

the team to record and manage media 

enquiries within an online form. This 

will create a central repository and 

archive of all media enquiries and 

assist with the collation of suitable 

responses, whilst also recording 

outcomes. The communications team 

continues to use and prepare more 

traditional media tools, such as media 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/news/media-
releases/ ; 
ttps://www.eden.gov.uk/y
our-council/news/media-
and-publicity/

none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups 

with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity

Processes for dealing with competing 

demands within the community, for example 

a consultation

B17
Having a Consultation policy and 

programme

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Communications continues to work on 

an ad hoc basis with various 

departments to deliver 

communications strategies for various 

consultations. Recent campaigns 

include the Environmental Permit 

Public Consultation (ongoing to 6 

October 2022), the 2022/23 Budget 

Consultation, the Appleby CAAMP 

Consultation, the Economic Prospectus 

for the Inspiring Eden project, the 

Regulation 18: Eden Local Plan Partial 

review, the Draft Housing Strategy 

2021-2026, the Strategic Housing and 

Economic Needs Assessment and the 

Public Spaces Protection Order 

Extension. Details of all these 

consultations can be found at 

Community engagement and 

consultation (eden.gov.uk) (see links) 

Details of EDC’s Consultation policy can 

be found within Appendix 2 of the 

Eden District Council Statement of 

Community Involvement (see links)

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/policies-plans-

and-strategies/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/have-your-

say/consultations/; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/have-your-

say/consultations/; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

media/5994/appendix_2_s

ci_november_2019.pdf

8 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Taking account of the interests of future generations of 

tax payers and service users
Reports B9

Promoting citizenship by active 

involvement with local schools
AD Communities

Provision was put on hold due to Covid 

and has not been restarted. It is not 

recommended to restart at this stage 

with only a few months until LGR.

None 0 none

B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

Engaging stakeholders 

effectively, including 

individual citizens and service 

users

Taking account of the interests of future generations of 

tax payers and service users
Joint strategic needs assessment None Not proposed at this time due to LGR None 0 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Having a clear vision which is an agreed formal statement 

ofthe organisation’s purpose and intended outcomes 

containing appropriate performance indicators, which 

provides the basis for the organisation’s overall strategy, 

planning and other decisions

Vision used as a basis for corporate and 

service planning
C1

Having a Council Plan including Strategic 

Targets
AD CPH

Corporate Plan is in place and Strategic 

Priorities are set annually
None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-plan-

2019-to-2023/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-

strategic-priorities/

10 none

P
age  93

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 

stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could 

be immediately or over the course of a year or longer

Community engagement and involvement B8
Having a Statement of Community 

Involvement

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

The statement of community 

involvement sits within consultation 

policy and programme not updated for 

2018/19. EDC has recently participated 

(Comms input and staff volunteered) in 

the preparation and delivery of 

Stakeholder Forums for the Council 

Plans of the Shadow Authorities of 

Cumberland and Westmorland and 

Furness. This involved online and in-

person events with other local 

authorities, statutory organisations, 

including infrastructure providers, 

organisations representing local 

geographic, economic, environmental 

and social interests, parish councils, 

town councils, local businesses, 

voluntary groups, others who have 

expressed an interest in the Council 

Plan and members of the general 

public. Stakeholder forums have also 

been held as part of the Appleby 

CAAMP consultation and are planned 

for the upcoming Alston CAAMP 

consultation

None 6 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 

stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could 

be immediately or over the course of a year or longer

Corporate and service plans C1
Having a Council Plan including Strategic 

Targets
AD CPH

Corporate Plan is in place and Strategic 

Priorities are set annually
None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-plan-

2019-to-2023/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-

strategic-priorities/

10 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 

stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could 

be immediately or over the course of a year or longer

Community strategy B16

Having a community engagement and 

Consultation section on the website 

which includes using the County Council 

hosted Consultation Finder on our 

website.

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Have your Say section includes 

information on complaints, 

consultations and other 

comments/enquiries.

Have your Say section not clear from 

Eden Website landing page

None
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/have-your-
say/consultations/

7 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within 

the resources that will be available
Regular reports on progress D4

Setting clear targets which translate the 

agreed priorities into outcomes. These 

are regularly reviewed

AD CPH

Performance Reports are presented to 

Overview and Scrutiny quarterly. These 

include Corporate Plan Dashboard, 

KPIs and Corporate Risk Map (Risk 

Register)

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-plan-

2019-to-2023/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-

strategic-priorities/

10 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 

outcomes

Performance trends are established and 

reported upon
D8

Regularly monitoring key service 

delivery indicators through regular 

reports to the Corporate Management 

Team and the Leader. Where below 

target performance is seen as 

significant, explanations and proposed 

corrective actions are requested.

AD CPH

Performance Reports are presented to 

Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny 

quarterly. These include Corporate 

Plan Dashboard, KPIs and Corporate 

Risk Map (Risk Register) eg 2 

December (Q2 report)

None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=344&MId=306
9&Ver=4

10 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 

outcomes
Risk management protocols F2

The Council having a Risk Management 

Strategy which is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Finance
Updated Risk Management Strategy 

approved by AGC on 9 June 2022
None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=264&MID=301
7

10 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Managing service users expectations effectively with 

regard to determining priorities and making the best use 

of the resources available

An agreed set of quality standard measures 

for each service element and included in 

service plans

None

No agreed set of quality standard 

measures for each service, however 

quarterly performance reports and 

financial reports include results for 

each service compared with expected

None 6 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits
Defining outcomes

Managing service users expectations effectively with 

regard to determining priorities and making the best use 

of the resources available

Processes for dealing with competing 

demands within the community
C4 Having published a Customer Charter AD CPH Last updated May 2022 None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/about-the-
council/customer-
charter/

10 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits

Sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits

Considering and balancing the combined economic, social 

and environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions 

when taking decisions about service provision

Capital investment is structured to achieve 

appropriate life spans and adaptability for 

future use or that resources (eg land) are 

spent on optimising social, economic and 

environmental wellbeing:

–– Capital programme

–– Capital investment strategy

None
AD Delivery / AD 

Finance
Not currently in place due to LGR None

P
age  94

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/customer-charter/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/customer-charter/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/customer-charter/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/customer-charter/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits

Sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits

Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision 

making, taking account of risk and acting transparently 

where there are potential conflicts between the 

organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors 

such as the political cycle or financial constraints

Discussion between members and officers on 

the information needs of members to support 

decision making

E8

The Executive meets monthly; 

committees and panels meet regularly 

as set out in the Constitution. Apart 

from exempt items, all committee 

business is open to the public. Reports 

and minutes are publicly available

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Cabinet met 12 times in the year. 

Minutes and agendas on the website. 

All items in public except if exempt.

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

10 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits

Sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits

Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision 

making, taking account of risk and acting transparently 

where there are potential conflicts between the 

organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors 

such as the political cycle or financial constraints

Record of decision making and supporting 

materials
None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Pro-forma template for meetings and 

minutes, ensures that decision making 

is recorded alongside supporting 

materials

None 7 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits

Sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits

Determining the wider public interest associated with 

balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 

various economic, social and environmental benefits, 

through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 

appropriate trade-offs

Record of decision making and supporting 

materials
C9

Considering the economic, social and 

environmental benefits as part of the 

decision making process

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

All Committee papers have an 

Implications Section which includes 

individual sections on 

Financial & Resources; Legal; Human 

Resources; Statutory Considerations 

(Equality & Diversity; Health, Social 

Environmental & Economic Impact; 

Crime and Disorder; Children 

Safeguarding)

Several papers from 21/22 were 

reviewed and all contained input in 

these sections

None 10 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits

Sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits

Determining the wider public interest associated with 

balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 

various economic, social and environmental benefits, 

through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 

appropriate trade-offs

Protocols for consultation B17
Having a Consultation policy and 

programme

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Communications continues to work on 

an ad hoc basis with various 

departments to deliver 

communications strategies for various 

consultations. Recent campaigns 

include the Environmental Permit 

Public Consultation (ongoing to 6 

October 2022), the 2022/23 Budget 

Consultation, the Appleby CAAMP 

Consultation, the Economic Prospectus 

for the Inspiring Eden project, the 

Regulation 18: Eden Local Plan Partial 

review, the Draft Housing Strategy 

2021-2026, the Strategic Housing and 

Economic Needs Assessment and the 

Public Spaces Protection Order 

Extension. Details of all these 

consultations can be found at 

Community engagement and 

consultation (eden.gov.uk) (see links) 

Details of EDC’s Consultation policy can 

be found within Appendix 2 of the 

Eden District Council Statement of 

Community Involvement (see links)

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/policies-plans-

and-strategies/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/have-your-

say/consultations/; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/have-your-

say/consultations/; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

media/5994/appendix_2_s

ci_november_2019.pdf

8 none

C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits

Sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits
Ensuring fair access to services

Protocols ensure fair access and statutory 

guidance is followed
c8 Having an Access to Services Policy

No Access to Services Policy found 

however Equal access information 

provided on website. 

The Policy should cover how we will 

meet the access needs of all local 

residents and businesses not just those 

with disabilities.

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/equality-and-
diversity/equal-access-to-
services/

4

ACTION: Access to 

Services Policy to 

be created 

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Determining interventions

Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous 

analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended 

outcomes would be achieved and including the risks 

associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best 

value is achieved however services are provided

Discussion between members and officers on 

the information needs of members to support 

decision making

E8

The Executive meets monthly; 

committees and panels meet regularly 

as set out in the Constitution. Apart 

from exempt items, all committee 

business is open to the public. Reports 

and minutes are publicly available

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Cabinet met 12 times in the year. 

Minutes and agendas on the website. 

All items in public except if exempt.

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Determining interventions

Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous 

analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended 

outcomes would be achieved and including the risks 

associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best 

value is achieved however services are provided

Decision making protocols
B4/D2/

G5

Clear recording of the reasons for 

member decisions

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Minutes published for all committee 

meetings. Sample selected and 

checked that minutes had been taken 

and published. Minutes for Council 

have now been expanded to include 

comments/questions raised during the 

meeting

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Determining interventions

Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous 

analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended 

outcomes would be achieved and including the risks 

associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best 

value is achieved however services are provided

D14/F22

Ensuring that any new bid for resources 

is judged against how far it advances the 

corporate priorities and objectives

DoR

Corporate Priorities are included 

within all committee reports; any bid 

for resources would need to be clear 

how it fits with these. Budget growth 

bids are considered by Portfolio 

Holders and then approved by 

Executive.

None 10 none

P
age  95

https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/equal-access-to-services/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/equal-access-to-services/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/equal-access-to-services/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/equal-access-to-services/
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Determining interventions

Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous 

analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended 

outcomes would be achieved and including the risks 

associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best 

value is achieved however services are provided

Option appraisals D6/F23

Securing continuous improvement 

through regular savings/income 

generation exercises and the annual 

programme of Scrutiny Committee 

reviews

AD Finance

One Eden Programme which included 

delivering savings, approved 

November 2019 and progress 

reviewed by Executive eg 20/10/20 

Agenda for Executive on Tuesday, 20th 

O+I129ctober, 2020, 6.00 pm 

(eden.gov.uk)

Overview and Scrutiny have a 

workplan to forward plan items for 

scrutiny eg Minutes from 12 May 2022

None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=344&MId=316
7&Ver=4

7 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Determining interventions

Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous 

analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended 

outcomes would be achieved and including the risks 

associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best 

value is achieved however services are provided

Agreement of information that will be 

provided and timescales
D14/F22

Ensuring that any new bid for resources 

is judged against how far it advances the 

corporate priorities and objectives

DoR

Corporate Priorities are included 

within all committee reports; any bid 

for resources would need to be clear 

how it fits with these. Budget growth 

bids are considered by Portfolio 

Holders and then approved by 

Executive.

None 10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Determining interventions

Considering feedback from citizens and service users 

when making decisions about service improvements or 

where services are no longer required in order to 

prioritise competing demands within limited resources 

available including people, skills, land and assets and 

bearing in mind future impacts

Financial strategy D13/F20
Setting a medium term financial strategy 

based on regularly refreshed priorities
AD Finance

MTFS & Resources Planning 2021-25 

Presented to Executive October 2020. 

MTFP for 21/22 updated in November 

21. MTFP for 22/23 approved Feb 22.

None 11 10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Establishing and implementing robust planning and 

control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, 

priorities and targets

Calendar of dates for developing and 

submitting plans and reports that are adhered 

to

None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Calendar of dates is published in 

advance of the year and includes dates 

for submitting and publishing

None 10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 

determining how services and other courses of action 

should be planned and delivered

Communication strategy B15

Communicating to the public through 

effective use of the media, as set out in 

the Council’s Communication Strategy

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Website, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, 

YouTube and VideoAsk channels were 

all utilised in 2021/22 and continue to 

be used in 2022/23. Social media 

protocols, policy and guidance have 

now been adopted and are in use. In 

addition, the communications team 

now has dedicated officer resource 

with sole access to the creation and 

management of all digital channels. 

Ongoing training and support has also 

been provided to ensure officers are 

up to date with the latest 

developments in accessibility and best 

practice. Orlo, a social media 

management tool is also being utilised 

to schedule, manage and evaluate 

social media content. The 

communications team is using file 

sharing software (ESB) to create a 

media monitoring form that will enable 

the team to record and manage media 

enquiries within an online form. This 

will create a central repository and 

archive of all media enquiries and 

assist with the collation of suitable 

responses, whilst also recording 

outcomes. The communications team 

continues to use and prepare more 

traditional media tools, such as media 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/news/media-
releases/ ; 
ttps://www.eden.gov.uk/y
our-council/news/media-
and-publicity/

none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 

determining how services and other courses of action 

should be planned and delivered

D9/E6

Providing strategic management 

through the monthly meeting of the 

Executive and weekly Leader and Chief 

Executive meetings

CEX

CLT meet weekly as do ELT. ELT 

minutes shared on bulletin board. 

Leader & CEX meet weekly but 

informal so not minuted

None 10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner 

when working collaboratively including shared risks
Partnership framework B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner 

when working collaboratively including shared risks
Risk management protocol F2

The Council having a Risk Management 

Strategy which is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Finance
Updated Risk Management Strategy 

approved by AGC on 9 June 2022
None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=264&MID=301
7

10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to 

changing circumstances

Planning protocols D10
Clearly placing policy development as 

the role of the Executive

Included in the constitution Part 2, 

Section E,12.6.1
None 1 10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to 

changing circumstances

D5
A regular review of the Council's 

priorities
AD CPH

Eden District Corporate Plan for 2019 

to 2023 in place

Corporate Strategic Priorities 2022/23 

in place

Performance Reports are presented to 

Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny 

quarterly. These include Corporate 

Plan Dashboard, KPIs and Corporate 

Risk Map (Risk Register)

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-plan-

2019-to-2023/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-

strategic-priorities/

10 none

P
age  96

https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-releases/ ; ttps:/www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/news/media-and-publicity/
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to 

changing circumstances

C5

Having a comprehensive approach to 

emergency and disaster planning. The 

Council regularly updates its Business 

Continuity Plan and the Emergency 

Response Plan, both of which are 

regularly tested through an exercise

AD Delivery / AD 

Finance

Published Emergency Response plan 

last updated April 2020, with draft 

updated version still to be published. 

No regular testing has occurred yet

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/emergency-

planning/about-emergency-

planning/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/emergency-

planning/business-

continuity-planning/

6

ACTION: Business 

Continuity Plans 

still need 

progressing 

further

ACTION: Updated 

Emergency 

Response plan to 

be published

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to 

changing circumstances

C6

Having a regular Emergency Planning 

Group which is responsible for 

maintaining the Eden Emergency 

Response Plan

AD Delivery 

Disaster Planning and Business 

Continuity Group re-convened in early 

22/23 with quarterly meetings. 

None 8 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to 

changing circumstances

C7
Having an ‘out of hours’ response 

service
AD Delivery

This page was not easy to find in an 

emergency. It should be considered to 

have a link to this on the front page 

directly. (Currently you have to click on 

Your Council, then select Emergency 

telephone numbers)

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/emergency-
planning/emergency-
telephone-numbers/

9

ACTION: Link to 

Emergency 

response contact 

details on front 

page of Eden 

website (ie 1 click)

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Establishing appropriate key performance indicators 

(KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify 

how the performance of services and projects is to be 

measured

KPIs have been established and approved for 

each service element and included in the 

service plan and are reported upon regularly

D8

Regularly monitoring key service 

delivery indicators through regular 

reports to the Corporate Management 

Team and the Leader. Where below 

target performance is seen as 

significant, explanations and proposed 

corrective actions are requested.

AD CPH

Performance Reports are presented to 

Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny 

quarterly. These include Corporate 

Plan Dashboard, KPIs and Corporate 

Risk Map (Risk Register) eg 2 

December (Q2 report)

None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=344&MId=306
9&Ver=4

10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information 

required to review service quality regularly

Reports include detailed performance results 

and highlight areas where corrective action is 

necessary

D4

Setting clear targets which translate the 

agreed priorities into outcomes. These 

are regularly reviewed

AD CPH

Performance Reports are presented to 

Overview and Scrutiny quarterly. These 

include Corporate Plan Dashboard, 

KPIs and Corporate Risk Map (Risk 

Register)

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-plan-

2019-to-2023/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-

strategic-priorities/

10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Preparing budgets in accordance with organisational 

objectives, strategies and the medium term financial plan

Evidence that budgets, plans and objectives 

are aligned
C3/D12

Council considering its Resources Plan 

annually
DoR

MTFS & Resources Planning 2021-25 

Presented to Executive October 2020. 

MTFP for 21/22 updated in November 

21. MTFP for 22/23 approved Feb 22.

None 11 8 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Informing medium and long term resource planning by 

drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 

expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 

strategy

Budget guidance and protocols None AD Finance

Budget guidance is provided to officers 

and members before eahc budget 

cycle

None 10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Informing medium and long term resource planning by 

drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 

expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 

strategy

Medium term financial plan C3/D12
Council considering its Resources Plan 

annually
DoR

MTFS & Resources Planning 2021-25 

Presented to Executive October 2020. 

MTFP for 21/22 updated in November 

21. MTFP for 22/23 approved Feb 22.

None 11 8 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes
Planning interventions

Informing medium and long term resource planning by 

drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 

expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 

strategy

Corporate plans D3

Stating clear and meaningful priorities 

and having effective arrangements in 

place to monitor progress against these

AD CPH

Eden District Corporate Plan for 2019 

to 2023 in place

Corporate Strategic Priorities 2022/23 

in place

Performance Reports are presented to 

Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny 

quarterly. These include Corporate 

Plan Dashboard, KPIs and Corporate 

Risk Map (Risk Register)

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-plan-

2019-to-2023/ ; 

https://www.eden.gov.uk/

your-council/council-

business/council-

documents/corporate-

strategic-priorities/

10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes

Optimising achievement of 

intended outcomes

Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates 

and balances service priorities, affordability and other 

resource constraints

Feedback surveys and exit/decommissioning 

strategies
None Not proposed at this time due to LGR None 0 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes

Optimising achievement of 

intended outcomes

Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates 

and balances service priorities, affordability and other 

resource constraints

Changes as a result None AD Finance

The Medium term financial strategy 

takes into account service priorities, 

affordability and other resource 

constraints each time it is reviewed (6 

monthly) and after any siginificant 

change

None none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes

Optimising achievement of 

intended outcomes

Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into 

account the full cost of operations over the medium and 

longer term

Budgeting guidance and protocols None AD Finance

Budget guidance is provided to officers 

and members before eahc budget 

cycle

None 10 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes

Optimising achievement of 

intended outcomes

Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the 

context for ongoing decisions on significant delivery 

issues or responses to changes in the external 

environment that may arise during the budgetary period 

in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising 

resource usage

Financial strategy D13/F20
Setting a medium term financial strategy 

based on regularly refreshed priorities
AD Finance

MTFS & Resources Planning 2021-25 

Presented to Executive October 2020. 

MTFP for 21/22 updated in November 

21. MTFP for 22/23 approved Feb 22.

None 11 10 none

P
age  97

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/emergency-planning/emergency-telephone-numbers/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/emergency-planning/emergency-telephone-numbers/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/emergency-planning/emergency-telephone-numbers/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/emergency-planning/emergency-telephone-numbers/
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes

Optimising achievement of 

intended outcomes

Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service 

planning and commissioning. The Public Services (Social 

Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional benefit 

to the community...over and above the direct purchasing 

of goods, services and outcomes”

Service plans demonstrate consideration of 

‘social value’
None

Service plans not currently published. 

Only Corporate Priorities
None 0 none

D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended outcomes

Optimising achievement of 

intended outcomes

Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service 

planning and commissioning. The Public Services (Social 

Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional benefit 

to the community...over and above the direct purchasing 

of goods, services and outcomes”

Achievement of ‘social value’ is monitored and 

reported upon
None AD CPH

Performance Reports are presented to 

Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny 

quarterly. These include Corporate 

Plan Dashboard, KPIs and Corporate 

Risk Map (Risk Register) eg 2 

December (Q2 report)

None None

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s 

capacity

Reviewing operations, performance use of assets on a 

regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness

Regular reviews of activities, outputs and 

planned outcomes
E2/F6

Maintaining and updating a triennial 

Asset Management Plan
AD Delivery

Forward maintenance plan in place, 

made by surveying all properties and  

making proposed costsing for 5 years 

ahead. Last updated early 2022.

None none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s 

capacity

Reviewing operations, performance use of assets on a 

regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness

Regular reviews of activities, outputs and 

planned outcomes
E3/F7

Holding a regular cross-departmental 

Asset Management Group
AD Delivery

Asset Management Group meets every 

2 months and reps attend from: 

external asset agent; legal; estates; 

economic development; asset 

management; finance

10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s 

capacity

Improving resource use through appropriate application 

of techniques such as benchmarking and other options in 

order to determine how the authority’s resources are 

allocated so that outcomes are achieved effectively and 

efficiently

Utilisation of research and benchmarking 

exercise
D1

An Efficiency and Value for Money 

Policy (reviewed biennially
AD Finance

Money Management Page

Efficiency and Value for Money Policy 

last updated April 2017

Annual Efficiency Report last published 

for 2017-18

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/council-
business/council-
finances/money-
management/ 

3

ACTION: Efficiency 

and Value for 

Money Policy 

review required.

ACTION: Annual 

Efficiency Report 

to be done.

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s 

capacity

Recognising the benefits of partnerships and collaborative 

working where added value can be achieved

Effective operation of partnerships which 

deliver agreed outcomes
B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s 

capacity

Developing and maintaining

an effective workforce plan to

enhance the strategic allocation

of resources

Workforce plan E5

Adopting a ‘what works’ basis to service 

provision by using in-house provision, 

outsourcing, sharing service provision 

and partnership arrangements as 

appropriate

ELT

Outsourcing of blue collar services, 

leisure management, pest control, 

internal audit, arboriculture and major 

capital scheme management. Provision 

by another local authority of services, 

for example, car parks (enforcement 

and cash collection). Shared IT Service 

with South Lakeland District Council. 

None 10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the entity’s 

capacity

Developing and maintaining

an effective workforce plan to

enhance the strategic allocation

of resources

Organisational development

plan
None

HR & OD 

Manager

Corporate Training plan introduced in 

June 2022 but no Organisational 

Development Plan as a whole. 

Organisational development is 

however discussed regularly at ELT 

meetings

None none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Developing protocols to ensure that elected and 

appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding 

their respective roles early on in the relationship and that 

a shared understanding of roles and objectives is 

maintained

Job descriptions E9
Providing job descriptions for all 

Member roles within the Constitution

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution None 1 9 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Developing protocols to ensure that elected and 

appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding 

their respective roles early on in the relationship and that 

a shared understanding of roles and objectives is 

maintained

Chief Executive and Leader pairings have 

considered how best to establish and maintain 

effective communication

A8/E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Publishing a statement that specifies the types of 

decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the 

collective decision making of the governing body

Scheme of delegation reviewed at least 

annually in the light of legal and organisational 

changes

E11

Having a Scheme of Delegation which 

clearly sets out decisions delegated to 

officers. This is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution, Part 2, Section G None 1 10 none

P
age  98

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-finances/money-management/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-finances/money-management/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-finances/money-management/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-finances/money-management/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-finances/money-management/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Publishing a statement that specifies the types of 

decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the 

collective decision making of the governing body

Standing orders and financial regulations 

which are reviewed on a regular basis
A8/E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Ensuring the leader and the chief executive have clearly 

defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure 

whereby the chief executive leads the authority in 

implementing strategy and managing the delivery of 

services and other outputs set by members and each 

provides a check and a balance for each other’s authority

Clear statement of respective roles and 

responsibilities and how they will be put into 

practice

A8/E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Developing the capabilities of members and senior 

management to achieve effective shared leadership and 

to enable the organisation to respond successfully to 

changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, 

political and environmental changes and risks by:

Access to update courses/ information 

briefings on new legislation
E13 Providing pro-active Member training

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Planning, Licensing & AGC training is 

compulsory every year for any 

member of those committees.  

Training sessions are provided on other 

topics such as Annual Accounts, 

Universal Credit and any other topic 

which may be beneficial for Members 

as required in advance of meetings 

discussing these topics.

None 10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate 

induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training 

and development matching individual and organisational 

requirements is available and encouraged

Induction programme E12

Giving effective induction training to 

new Elected Members and staff 

including Senior Officers

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

A full training induction programme 

was provided for all Councillors after 

the May 2019 elections. Agreed 

AGc/66/02/19, Update provided to 

Council AGc/83/04/19. Further training 

was provided following by-elections 

Penrith West Sept 21; Hartside May 

21; Skelton May 21)

None none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate 

induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training 

and development matching individual and organisational 

requirements is available and encouraged

Personal development plans for members and 

officers
E14

Having a performance and appraisal 

system so that all members of staff 

know what is expected of them. In 

addition, an annual training plan is 

agreed as part of the appraisal process

HR & OD 

Manager

Performance Appraisal process 

launched June 2022. Corporate 

Training Plan also launched June 2022 

and access to CCC portal of Training 

being arranged with launch date in 

October 2022

None
http://edcsharepoint/sites
/hr/Appraisal%20Docs/F
orms/AllItems.aspx

10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

ensuring members and officers have the appropriate 

skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their 

roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able 

to update their knowledge on a continuing basis

For example, for members this may include 

the ability to:

–– scrutinise and challenge

–– recognise when outside expert advice is 

required

–– promote trust

–– work in partnership

–– lead the organisation

–– act as a community leader

E12

Giving effective induction training to 

new Elected Members and staff 

including Senior Officers

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

A full training induction programme 

was provided for all Councillors after 

the May 2019 elections. Agreed 

AGc/66/02/19, Update provided to 

Council AGc/83/04/19. Further training 

was provided following by-elections 

Penrith West Sept 21; Hartside May 

21; Skelton May 21)

None none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

ensuring members and officers have the appropriate 

skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their 

roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able 

to update their knowledge on a continuing basis

B14
Encouraging prospective candidates for 

election to come forward
Limited evidence apart from website None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
voting-and-elections/be-
a-councillor/

5 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

ensuring members and officers have the appropriate 

skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their 

roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able 

to update their knowledge on a continuing basis

Efficient systems and technology used for 

effective support
None

HR & OD 

Manager

Most courses offered to date have 

been face to face or teams based, 

however access to the County's 

training portal has been arranged from 

October 2022

None none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Developing the capabilities of members and senior 

management to achieve effective shared leadership and 

to enable the organisation to respond successfully to 

changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, 

political and environmental changes and risks by:

F14

Maintaining robust financial control 

with a suitably qualified section 151 

Officer

DoR

The Council complies with the CIPFA 

Statement on the Role of the Chief 

Financial Officer in Local Government 

(2015). 

None 10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

ensuring personal, organisational and systemwide 

development through shared learning, including lessons 

learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and 

external

Arrangements for succession planning None
HR & OD 

Manager

This is being considered on a 

department by department basis 

taking into account LGR

None none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage 

public participation
Residents’ panels B11

Holding a Community Conference, 

which includes a wider range of public, 

private and voluntary organisations to 

inform the Council Plan

AD CPH

There was no new Council plan during 

21/22 and therefore no need to hold a 

community conference

None N/a N/a none

P
age  99

../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://www.eden.gov.uk/voting-and-elections/be-a-councillor/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/voting-and-elections/be-a-councillor/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/voting-and-elections/be-a-councillor/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage 

public participation
Residents’ panels B12

Using a range of customer feedback 

mechanisms including satisfaction 

surveys

Customer Feedback is sought is a 

variety of ways including consultations 

across the Council and ability to 

provide complaint or compliment 

through website.

None
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/have-your-
say/

9 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage 

public participation
Stakeholder forum terms of reference None Not in place None

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage 

public participation
Strategic partnershipframeworks B13

Maintaining and regularly updating a 

database of all major partnerships that 

the Council is involved in and that these 

are in accordance with the Council’s 

Partnerships’ Protocol. This database is 

reviewed in public annually

AD Finance

Protocol and Database updated and 

approved by ELT in 22/23.  Database 

due for review by Overview and 

Scrutiny in November/December 2022.

None 11,12 8

ACTION: 

Partnership 

Database to be 

reviewed in Public

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own 

effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to 

constructive feedback from peer review and inspections

Reviewing individual member performance on 

a regular basis taking account of their 

attendance and considering any training or 

development needs

None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Not in place None

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own 

effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to 

constructive feedback from peer review and inspections

Peer reviews None None

Not currently in place, 

however for Officers, 

Tier 2 downwards are 

part of the performance 

appraisal process

none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Holding staff to account through regular performance 

reviews which take account of training or development 

needs

Training and development plan E13 Providing pro-active Member training

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Planning, Licensing & AGC training is 

compulsory every year for any 

member of those committees.  

Training sessions are provided on other 

topics such as Annual Accounts, 

Universal Credit and any other topic 

which may be beneficial for Members 

as required in advance of meetings 

discussing these topics.

None 10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Holding staff to account through regular performance 

reviews which take account of training or development 

needs

Staff development plans linked to appraisals E14

Having a performance and appraisal 

system so that all members of staff 

know what is expected of them. In 

addition, an annual training plan is 

agreed as part of the appraisal process

HR & OD 

Manager

Performance Appraisal process 

launched June 2022. Corporate 

Training Plan also launched June 2022 

and access to CCC portal of Training 

being arranged with launch date in 

October 2022

None
http://edcsharepoint/sites
/hr/Appraisal%20Docs/F
orms/AllItems.aspx

10 none

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Holding staff to account through regular performance 

reviews which take account of training or development 

needs

Implementing appropriate human resource 

policies and ensuring that they are working 

effectively

E1
Having clear, published employee 

policies

HR & OD 

Manager

Working for the Council page contains  

links to policies. Some policies are 

overdue for renewal

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-
council/jobs/working-for-
the-council/

7
ACTION: Bring HR 

policies up to date

E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it

Developing the capability of 

the entity’s leadership and 

other individuals

Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the 

health and wellbeing of the workforce and support 

individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental 

wellbeing

Human resource policies E1
Having clear, published employee 

policies

HR & OD 

Manager

Working for the Council page contains  

links to policies. Some policies are 

overdue for renewal

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-
council/jobs/working-for-
the-council/

7
ACTION: Bring HR 

policies up to date

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing risk

Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all 

activities and must be considered in all aspects of 

decision making

Risk management protocol F2

The Council having a Risk Management 

Strategy which is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Finance
Updated Risk Management Strategy 

approved by AGC on 9 June 2022
None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=264&MID=301
7

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing risk

Implementing robust and integrated risk management 

arrangements and ensuring that they are working 

effectively

Risk management strategy/ policy formally 

approved and adopted and reviewed and 

updated on a regular basis

F2

The Council having a Risk Management 

Strategy which is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Finance
Updated Risk Management Strategy 

approved by AGC on 9 June 2022
None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=264&MID=301
7

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing risk

Implementing robust and integrated risk management 

arrangements and ensuring that they are working 

effectively

G6

The Overview & Scrutiny Committee is 

responsible for risk management 

arrangements

AD Finance

Per constitution. Risk Register 

presented to Overview & Scrutiny as 

part of quarterly performance 

reporting

None 1 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing risk

Implementing robust and integrated risk management 

arrangements and ensuring that they are working 

effectively

F3

The Council maintaining a Risk Register. 

This is reviewed quarterly by the 

management Team and Executive. It is 

scrutinised annually by the Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee and the 

Management Team. After each 

quarterly update, all staff are reminded 

of its presence. New risks are often 

identified outside the quarterly reviews, 

mainly through Management Team 

discussion on particular issues

AD Finance

Risk Register maintained and reviewed 

every 2-3 months by ELT.

Cabinet and O&S review Risk Register 

as part of quarterly performance 

reporting. Risk Register is publicised 

regularly on the bulletin board. New 

risks added outside of quarterly 

reviews

None 13 9 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing risk

Implementing robust and integrated risk management 

arrangements and ensuring that they are working 

effectively

F19
Having and maintaining an ICT Services 

Risk Register

Head of ICT 

Shared Service
IT Risk Register is in place 14 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing risk

Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks 

are clearly allocated
Risk management protocol F2

The Council having a Risk Management 

Strategy which is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Finance
Updated Risk Management Strategy 

approved by AGC on 9 June 2022
None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=264&MID=301
7

10 none

P
age  100

../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
../../../../../../hr/Appraisal Docs/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/jobs/working-for-the-council/
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3069&Ver=4


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Monitoring service delivery

effectively including planning,

specification, execution

and independent post

implementation review

Performance map showing all key activities 

have performance measures
D8

Regularly monitoring key service 

delivery indicators through regular 

reports to the Corporate Management 

Team and the Leader. Where below 

target performance is seen as 

significant, explanations and proposed 

corrective actions are requested.

AD CPH

Performance Reports are presented to 

Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny 

quarterly. These include Corporate 

Plan Dashboard, KPIs and Corporate 

Risk Map (Risk Register) eg 2 

December (Q2 report)

None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=344&MId=306
9&Ver=4

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Monitoring service delivery

effectively including planning,

specification, execution

and independent post

implementation review

Benchmarking information F21 / E4
Considering cost against a ‘family’ group 

of local authorities

Not evidenced by reports however 

EDC is part of the CWAG, CCFO and 

procurement groups of finance and 

procurement staff across Cumbria. This 

allows for comparison with our nearest 

neighbours. 

Option to join LG Futures financial 

information service which includes 

annual benchmarking information on 

Fees & Charges and Council Tax and 

Business Rates. However this may not 

be value for money and may not 

include cost comparisons

None 6 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Monitoring service delivery

effectively including planning,

specification, execution

and independent post

implementation review

Cost performance (using inputs and outputs) D6 / F23

Securing continuous improvement 

through regular savings/income 

generation exercises and the annual 

programme of Scrutiny Committee 

reviews

AD Finance

One Eden Programme which included 

delivering savings, approved 

November 2019 and progress 

reviewed by Executive eg 20/10/20 

Agenda for Executive on Tuesday, 20th 

October, 2020, 6.00 pm (eden.gov.uk)

Overview and Scrutiny have a 

workplan to forward plan items for 

scrutiny eg Minutes from 12 May 2022

None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=344&MId=316
7&Ver=4

7 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 

specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review

Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing 

and distributing timely reports that are 

adhered to

F1

The Executive receives regular reports 

on budgets, capital scheme progress and 

the Risk Register

AD Finance

June 21 - Risk Register 

Sept 21 - Risk Register

Nov 21 - Risk Register, Q2 Revised 

Budget & Capital Scheme Progress

Jan 22 - Budget 22/23

Feb 22 - Risk Register, Q3 budget 

monitoring, Budget 22/23

None 9 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 

specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review

F10

Using Key Performance Indices to 

manage key strategic or higher risk 

contracts

Contracts 

Manager

KPIs for one key contract (Waste) is 

included in EDC quarterly performance 

monitoring.

7 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 

specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review

F8

Approving SMART targets for the 

Council’s wholly owned company to give 

a basis for monitoring performa

DCEX

The Council is currently in the process 

of moving the Heart of Cumbria 

operations in-house and hence no 

targets have been set for 21/22 or 

22/23

None 0 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 

specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review

F9

Having a dedicated contracts and 

procurement team to provide corporate 

support to the procurement process and 

direct oversight of a number of material 

out-sourced contracts

Contracts 

Manager / AD 

Finance

Contracts team also does Cemeteries 

duties but includes 6 FTE. Procurement 

Role was included in this during 21/22 

but in Sept 22 was moved to Finance 

until 31/3/22 with no loss of FTE in 

Contracts team

None 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks 

inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook

Discussion between members and officers on 

the information needs of members to support 

decision making

E8

The Executive meets monthly; 

committees and panels meet regularly 

as set out in the Constitution. Apart 

from exempt items, all committee 

business is open to the public. Reports 

and minutes are publicly available

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Cabinet met 12 times in the year. 

Minutes and agendas on the website. 

All items in public except if exempt.

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks 

inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook

Publication of agendas and minutes of 

meetings
B3/G3

The Council meets 9 times per year. The 

Executive meets monthly; the 

committees and panels meet regularly 

as set out in the Constitution. Apart 

from exempt items, all formal business 

is open to the public. Reports and 

Minutes are publically available

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Council met 7 times only in 21/22 

(May, Jul, Sep,Nov, Jan, Feb, Apr - Mar 

was cancelled)

Cabinet met 12 times in the year. 

Minutes and agendas on the website. 

All items in public except if exempt.

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

9 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks 

inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook

F4

Having a ‘Risk Management 

Implications’ section in all committee 

reports 

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

A risk Management section is included 

in all council papers under the 

Implications Section. 

None 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks 

inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook

Agreement on the information that will be 

needed and timescales

D14 / 

F22

Ensuring that any new bid for resources 

is judged against how far it advances the 

corporate priorities and objectives

DoR

Corporate Priorities are included 

within all committee reports; any bid 

for resources would need to be clear 

how it fits with these. Budget growth 

bids are considered by Portfolio 

Holders and then approved by 

Executive.

None 10 none

P
age  101

https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=344&MId=3167&Ver=4
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 

place which encourages constructive challenge and 

debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 

performance and that of any organisation for which it is 

responsible

The role and responsibility for scrutiny has 

been established and is clear
A1/F5

Enabling Scrutiny to ‘call-in’ any 

Executive decisions contrary to the 

Budgetary and Policy Framework

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny 

Procedure Rules (Part 3, Section D14).  

There were no call-ins during 2021/22.

1 8 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 

place which encourages constructive challenge and 

debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 

performance and that of any organisation for which it is 

responsible

Agenda and minutes of scrutiny meetings B3/G3

The Council meets 9 times per year. The 

Executive meets monthly; the 

committees and panels meet regularly 

as set out in the Constitution. Apart 

from exempt items, all formal business 

is open to the public. Reports and 

Minutes are publically available

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Council met 7 times only in 21/22 

(May, Jul, Sep,Nov, Jan, Feb, Apr - Mar 

was cancelled)

Cabinet met 12 times in the year. 

Minutes and agendas on the website. 

All items in public except if exempt.

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgListCommittee
s.aspx?bcr=1

9 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 

place which encourages constructive challenge and 

debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 

performance and that of any organisation for which it is 

responsible

Evidence of improvements as a result of 

scrutiny
None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Example can be seen of the Scrutiny 

Committee considering s106 

monitoring and this resulting in a new 

FTC post and register of historical 

agreements being prepared

None 7 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 

place which encourages constructive challenge and 

debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 

performance and that of any organisation for which it is 

responsible

Terms of reference E7

Clearly setting out the rules for the 

Executive, Scrutiny Committees and the 

regulatory committees in the 

Constitution

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution was reviewed and 

updated November 2021
1 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 

place which encourages constructive challenge and 

debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 

performance and that of any organisation for which it is 

responsible

Training for members E13 Providing pro-active Member training

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Planning, Licensing & AGC training is 

compulsory every year for any 

member of those committees.  

Training sessions are provided on other 

topics such as Annual Accounts, 

Universal Credit and any other topic 

which may be beneficial for Members 

as required in advance of meetings 

discussing these topics.

None 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 

place which encourages constructive challenge and 

debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 

performance and that of any organisation for which it is 

responsible

Training for members E12

Giving effective induction training to 

new Elected Members and staff 

including Senior Officers

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

A full training induction programme 

was provided for all Councillors after 

the May 2019 elections. Agreed 

AGc/66/02/19, Update provided to 

Council AGc/83/04/19. Further training 

was provided following by-elections 

Penrith West Sept 21; Hartside May 

21; Skelton May 21)

None none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 

place which encourages constructive challenge and 

debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 

performance and that of any organisation for which it is 

responsible

Membership A1/F5

Enabling Scrutiny to ‘call-in’ any 

Executive decisions contrary to the 

Budgetary and Policy Framework

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny 

Procedure Rules (Part 3, Section D14).  

There were no call-ins during 2021/22.

1 8 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Providing members and senior management with regular 

reports on service delivery plans and on progress towards 

outcome achievement

Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing 

and distributing timely reports that are 

adhered to

None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Calendar of dates is published in 

advance of the year and includes dates 

for submitting and publishing

None 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring there is consistency between specification 

stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 

reporting (eg financial statements)

Financial standards, guidance D7

Ensuring that the financial management 

of the Council is sound, by annual 

review of compliance with the CIPFA 

Financial Management Code.

AD Finance Not yet done

To do review and 

present as part of this 

report

1

ACTION: review of 

compliance with 

financial 

management code 

to be done

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing performance

Ensuring there is consistency between specification 

stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 

reporting (eg financial statements)

Financial regulations and standing orders A8 / E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on 

internal control with achieving the objectives
Risk management strategy F2

The Council having a Risk Management 

Strategy which is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Finance
Updated Risk Management Strategy 

approved by AGC on 9 June 2022
None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=264&MID=301
7

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on 

internal control with achieving the objectives
Audit plan None AD Finance

Audit plan is approved in advance of 

the year starting by AGC
None 9 none

P
age  102

https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on 

internal control with achieving the objectives
Audit reports B7

Ensuring all inspection and audit reports 

considered by Members are public 

documents. Any recommendations from 

such reports are tracked through regular 

reports to the Accounts and Governance 

Committee

AD Finance

Publication of all external assessments. 

Internal Audit reports presented 

regularly through Accounts and 

Governance Committee agenda, 

including monitoring of 

implementation of recommendations 

quarterly

None
https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/mgCommitteeDet
ails.aspx?ID=264

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Evaluating and monitoring the authority’s risk 

management and internal control on a regular basis

Risk management strategy/ policy has been 

formally approved and adopted and is 

reviewed and updated on a regular basis

F2

The Council having a Risk Management 

Strategy which is annually reviewed and 

updated

AD Finance
Updated Risk Management Strategy 

approved by AGC on 9 June 2022
None

https://democracy.eden.
gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=264&MID=301
7

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements are in place

Compliance with the Code of Practice on 

Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 

(CIPFA, 2014)

F12

Having an annually updated Anti-Fraud, 

Theft, Bribery and Corruption Policy 

which is an accordance with the Code of 

Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud 

and Corruption (CIPFA 2014)

AD Finance / AD 

Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Anti-fraud, theft, bribery and 

corruption strategy and response plan 

(2022);

None 4 8
ACTION: combine 

with provision A12

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements are in place

Compliance with the Code of Practice on 

Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 

(CIPFA, 2014)

G12

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee approves Anti-Fraud, Theft 

and Corruption Strategy which is in 

accordance with the Code of Practice on 

Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption (CIPFA 2014)

AD Finance

Anti-fraud, theft, bribery and 

corruption strategy and response plan 

(2022); Aprpoved by AGC June 2022

None 4 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy 

and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 

management and control is provided by the internal 

auditor

Annual governance statement G10

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Approves the Annual 

Governance Statement

AD Finance

20/21 AGS approved by AGC in 

February 2022 (Local Code of 

Governance in Dec 21)

None 8 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy 

and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 

management and control is provided by the internal 

auditor

G11

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Receives all reports from the 

Internal Audit services and the external 

auditor

AD Finance

Quarterly reports are received from 

the Internal Auditors and presented to 

Committees. These include all reports

10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy 

and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 

management and control is provided by the internal 

auditor

Effective internal audit service is resourced 

and maintained
F13

Maintaining an effective internal audit 

function
AD Finance

Internal Audit provision during 

2021/22 was all provided by TIAA (

External review of Council’s Internal 

Audit Service in February 2019. Per the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

this should be done every 5 years.

Annual Internal Audit Plan 21/22 was 

presented to Accounts and 

Governance Committee April 2021 

(22/23 March 22).

In year updates were provided during 

the year.

None 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group or 

function which is independent of the executive and 

accountable to the governing body: –– provides a further 

source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for 

managing risk and maintaining an effective control 

environment –– that its recommendations are listened to 

and acted upon

Audit committee complies with best practice. 

See Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for 

Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA, 2018)

None
A review of this has not been 

completed
None 0 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group or 

function which is independent of the executive and 

accountable to the governing body: –– provides a further 

source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for 

managing risk and maintaining an effective control 

environment –– that its recommendations are listened to 

and acted upon

Terms of reference A8 / E10

Having a constitution which sets out 

clearly the roles and duties of the 

Council’s statutory officers, that is, the 

Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer 

(Director of Resources) and the 

Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director: 

Legal and Governance). The Constitution 

sets out key aspects of the Council’s 

internal control mechanism, in 

particular, the Accounting and Audit 

rules, the Procurement rules and the 

Scheme of Delegation

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Constitution rewritten in 2021 which 

included making clearer the roles and 

responsibilities of officers and 

members. It also sets out the 

Accounting & Audit rules, the 

Procuremet Rules and the Scheme of 

Delegation

None 1 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group or 

function which is independent of the executive and 

accountable to the governing body: –– provides a further 

source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for 

managing risk and maintaining an effective control 

environment –– that its recommendations are listened to 

and acted upon

Membership None AD Finance

Membership of the audit committee is 

considered but has not decided to 

include external advisors

None 5 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Robust internal control

Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group or 

function which is independent of the executive and 

accountable to the governing body: –– provides a further 

source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for 

managing risk and maintaining an effective control 

environment –– that its recommendations are listened to 

and acted upon

Training E13 Providing pro-active Member training AD Finance

Training is provided to AGC members 

at start of each year and to new 

members during the year. Further 

training is provided before key 

meetings if required (eg Accounts 

approval)

None 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe 

collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including 

processes to safeguard personal data

Data management framework and procedures F16
Having a clear and effective policy on 

data protection

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Data Protection Policy last updated 

Dec 2018

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
media/5252/data-
protection-policy_v11.pdf

Action: Data 

Protection Policy 

to be udated

P
age  103

https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=264
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=264
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=264
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://democracy.eden.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MID=3017
https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf
https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf
https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf
https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe 

collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including 

processes to safeguard personal data

Designated data protection officer None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

AD Legal & Democratic Services is the 

designated data protection officer
None 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe 

collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including 

processes to safeguard personal data

Data protection policies and procedures F16
Having a clear and effective policy on 

data protection

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Data Protection Policy last updated 

Dec 2018

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
media/5252/data-
protection-policy_v11.pdf

Action: Data 

Protection Policy 

to be udated

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and 

operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies
Data sharing agreement None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Not checked None

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and 

operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies
Data sharing register None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Not checked None

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and 

operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies
Data processing agreements None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Data processing agreements are put in 

place as part of relevant contracts. 

There has also been a data sharing 

agreement put in place for LGR

None

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy 

of data used in decision making and performance 

monitoring

Data quality procedures and reports F15 Having a Data Quality Statement

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Data Quality statement on external 

website but last updated March 2016, 

needs updating and approval by 

management team

ACTION: update 

Data Quality 

Statement

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy 

of data used in decision making and performance 

monitoring

Data validation procedures F15 Having a Data Quality Statement

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Data Quality statement on external 

website but last updated March 2016, 

needs updating and approval by 

management team

ACTION: update 

Data Quality 

Statement

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy 

of data used in decision making and performance 

monitoring

F17

Having clear and effective information 

governance policies, systems and 

procedures

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

The Policies, plans, strategies other 

essential documents (eden.gov.uk) 

page includes:

Access to Information Policy (Approved 

July 2020)

Data Protection Policy (approved Dec 

2018)

Data Quality Statement (approved Mar 

2016)

Information Security Policy (approved 

Nov 2020)

Records Retention Policy approved by 

ELT 28/9/22, Due for Cabinet Approval 

in October 2022

None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/council-
business/council-
documents/policies-
plans-and-strategies/

4

Action: Data 

Protection Policy 

to be updated

Action: Data 

Quality Statement 

to be updated

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management
Managing data

Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy 

of data used in decision making and performance 

monitoring

F18

Having clear and effective information 

security policies, systems and 

procedures

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Last updated December 2020 None 12 10 none

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management

Strong public financial 

management

Ensuring financial management supports both long term 

achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and 

operational performance

Financial management supports the delivery 

of services and transformational change as 

well as securing good stewardship

D7

Ensuring that the financial management 

of the Council is sound, by annual 

review of compliance with the CIPFA 

Financial Management Code.

AD Finance Not yet done

To do review and 

present as part of this 

report

1

ACTION: review of 

compliance with 

financial 

management code 

to be done

F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management

Strong public financial 

management

Ensuring well-developed financial management is 

integrated at all levels of planning and control, including 

management of financial risks and controls

Budget monitoring reports F24

Ensuring that the financial management 

of the Council is sound, by regular and 

timely reporting to budget holders, 

Management Team, Leaders and the 

Council as whole. This includes both 

revenue and capital monitoring. It is the 

responsibility of the relevant budget 

holder to investigate and take action on 

any identified budget variance. Every 

budget is owned by a budget holder

AD Finance

Quarterly programme of budget 

monitoring in place and enhanced in 

Q1 2022 with reports provided and 

meetings held with budget holders.

Management Team discuss quarterly 

monitoring reports before they are 

presented to Cabinet and Finance 

Scrutiny. All budgets are assigned to an 

AD

None 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practice 

in transparency

Writing and communicating reports for the public and 

other stakeholders in an understandable style 

appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that 

they are easy to access and interrogate

Website B2/G1
Providing full information on the 

Council’s business on its website

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

A large amount of information was 

available although not always in an 

obvious place

None https://www.eden.gov.uk/ 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practice 

in transparency

Writing and communicating reports for the public and 

other stakeholders in an understandable style 

appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that 

they are easy to access and interrogate

B18
Using the County Council hosted 

Consultation Finder

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Evidence of 3 consultations on the CCC 

Consultation finder page (Beacon Hill, 

Appleby Conservation Area and Eden 

Local Plan:Climate Change and Design)

None

https://cumbria.citizensp
ace.com/consultation_fin
der/?advanced=1 (filter 
on department = Eden)

10 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practice 

in transparency

Writing and communicating reports for the public and 

other stakeholders in an understandable style 

appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that 

they are easy to access and interrogate

Annual report G9

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Approves the Annual 

Accounts

AD Finance

19/20 Accounts approved in August 

2021. 20/21 Accounts approved in 

August 2022

None 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practice 

in transparency

Striking a balance between providing the right amount of 

information to satisfy transparency demands and 

enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to 

provide and for users to understand

No specific examples provided None

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Draft reports for Committees are 

discussed with portfolio holders and 

cabinet in advance of meetings to 

ensure that the level of information 

provided is appropriate to the decision 

being made

None

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practice 

in transparency
G2

Compliance with the Local Government 

Transparency Code and Open Data

AD Legal & 

Democratic 

Services

Webpage provides all the information 

and is regularly updated
None

https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/council-
business/requesting-
information/open-data/

10 none

P
age  104

https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf
https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf
https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf
https://www.eden.gov.uk/media/5252/data-protection-policy_v11.pdf
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/policies-plans-and-strategies/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
https://cumbria.citizenspace.com/consultation_finder/?advanced=1%20(filter%20on%20department%20=%20Eden)
https://cumbria.citizenspace.com/consultation_finder/?advanced=1%20(filter%20on%20department%20=%20Eden)
https://cumbria.citizenspace.com/consultation_finder/?advanced=1%20(filter%20on%20department%20=%20Eden)
https://cumbria.citizenspace.com/consultation_finder/?advanced=1%20(filter%20on%20department%20=%20Eden)
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/requesting-information/open-data/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/requesting-information/open-data/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/requesting-information/open-data/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/requesting-information/open-data/


Principle 

Letter
Principle Text Sub principle

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice

Examples of systems, processes,

documentation and other evidence

demonstrating compliance

Local 

Code Ref
Local Code Text

Responsible 

Officer
Comments Outstanding Checks Evidence ref / link

Self Assessment 

level (1 to 10) - 

one per Local 

Code Ref

ACTION

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering good governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities (2016 edition) - Chapter Five Self-assessment

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practices 

in reporting

Reporting at least annually on performance, value for 

money and the stewardship of its resources

Formal annual report which includes key 

points raised by external scrutineers and 

service users’ feedback on service delivery

None Not proposed at this time due to LGR None 0 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practices 

in reporting

Reporting at least annually on performance, value for 

money and the stewardship of its resources
Annual financial statements G9

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Approves the Annual 

Accounts

AD Finance

19/20 Accounts approved in August 

2021. 20/21 Accounts approved in 

August 2022

None 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practices 

in reporting

Ensuring members and senior management own the 

results
Appropriate approvals None

Quarterly reports  on performance and 

financial monitoring presented to 

cabinet and Scrutiny. 

None 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practices 

in reporting

Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to 

which the principles contained in the Framework have 

been applied and publishing the results on this 

assessment including an action plan for improvement and 

evidence to demonstrate good governance (annual 

governance statement)

Annual governance statement G10

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Approves the Annual 

Governance Statement

AD Finance

20/21 AGS approved by AGC in 

February 2022 (Local Code of 

Governance in Dec 21)

None 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practices 

in reporting

Ensuring that the Framework is applied to jointly 

managed or shared service organisations as appropriate
Annual governance statement G10

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Approves the Annual 

Governance Statement

AD Finance

20/21 AGS approved by AGC in 

February 2022 (Local Code of 

Governance in Dec 21)

None 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Implementing good practices 

in reporting

Ensuring the performance information that accompanies 

the financial statements is prepared on a consistent and 

timely basis and the statements allow for comparison 

with other similar organisations

Format follows best practice None AD Finance

Format of accounts follows best 

practice and is reported on as part of 

external audit report

None none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Assurance and effective 

accountability

Ensuring that recommendations

for corrective action made by

external audit are acted upon

Recommendations have informed positive 

improvement
G8

Council considers the Annual Audit 

Letter from the external auditor
AD Finance

Only considered by Accounts & 

Governance, not considered by Council
None 0

ACTION: External 

Audit letter for 

21/22 to be taken 

to Council

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Assurance and effective 

accountability

Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action 

made by external audit are acted upon

Compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the 

Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010)
F13

Maintaining an effective internal audit 

function
AD Finance

Internal Audit provision during 

2021/22 was all provided by TIAA (

External review of Council’s Internal 

Audit Service in February 2019. Per the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

this should be done every 5 years.

None 10 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Assurance and effective 

accountability

Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct 

access to members is in place which provides assurance 

with regard to governance arrangements and 

recommendations are acted upon

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards
F13

Maintaining an effective internal audit 

function
AD Finance

Internal Audit provision during 

2021/22 was all provided by TIAA (

External review of Council’s Internal 

Audit Service in February 2019. Per the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

this should be done every 5 years.

None 10 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Assurance and effective 

accountability

Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from 

regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations

Recommendations have informed positive 

improvement
None

Ad hoc reports exist, no register of 

these so hard to evidence
None 5 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Assurance and effective 

accountability

Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering 

services through third parties and that this is evidenced in 

the annual governance statement

Annual governance statement G10

The Accounts and Governance 

Committee Approves the Annual 

Governance Statement

AD Finance

20/21 AGS approved by AGC in 

February 2022 (Local Code of 

Governance in Dec 21)

None 8 none

G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability

Assurance and effective 

accountability

Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements 

for accountability are clear and that the need for wider 

public accountability has been recognised and met

Community strategy B16

Having a community engagement and 

Consultation section on the website 

which includes using the County Council 

hosted Consultation Finder on our 

website.

Communication 

& Engagement 

Manager

Have your Say section includes 

information on complaints, 

consultations and other 

comments/enquiries.

Have your Say section not clear from 

Eden Website landing page

None
https://www.eden.gov.uk/
your-council/have-your-
say/consultations/

7 none

P
age  105

https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/
https://www.eden.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/consultations/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report No:  DoR97/22 

Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee 

15 December 2022 

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 

Portfolio: None 
Report from: Assistant Director Finance 
Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To provide the External Auditors, Grant Thornton, with assurance that the 
Management Responses to the Audit Risk Assessment Document in 
Appendix A are a true and fair representation. 

2 Recommendation 

 It is recommended that Accounts & Governance Committee approve the 
management responses included in Appendix 1 as being consistent with their 
understanding and make any further comments to the auditors in relation to 
the report. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 Our external auditors, Grant Thornton, are performing their external audit work 
for the 2020-21 accounts during January 2022. As part of this process, they 
are required to make enquiries of the Accounts and Governance Committee 
under auditing standards. 

3.2 As part of their risk assessment procedures they are required to obtain an 
understanding of management processes and Eden District Council’s 
oversight of the following areas: 

 General Enquiries of Management 

 Fraud 

 Laws & Regulations 

 Related Parties; and 

 Accounting Estimates. 
3.3 The report in Appendix 1 includes a series of questions on each of the above 

areas and the responses that management have provided to these questions. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 
 Healthy, safe and secure; 

Page  107

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 Connected; and 
 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 The management responses have been collated by the Interim Director of 
Resources and Interim Accountancy Manager. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources. 
6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications. 
6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no human resource implications. 
6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental implications including significant effects on 
carbon emissions and ecosystems. 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no implications 
Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

There are no implications 

Crime and Disorder There are no implications 
Children and 
Safeguarding 

There are no implications 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Risk that the audit does 
not provide proper 
assurance if the work 
programme is not based 
on accurate information 

There may be errors in 
the accounts causing 
reputational of financial 
damage 

The Accounts and 
Governance Committee 
consider and approve 
the management 
responses to the audit 
risk assessment 

Page  108



 

 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To support the auditors in performing the audit in an efficient way, considering 
risk. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Relevant Assistant Director 2 December 2022 

Background Papers: None 
Appendices: Appendix 1: Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
Contact Officer: Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance 

Page  109



Informing the audit risk assessment 
for Eden District Council 2021/22

P
age  110



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 
weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 
basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 
other purpose.

2

P
age  111



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                         22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates 26 

3

P
age  112



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Eden District Council's external auditors and Eden 
District Council’s Accounts and Governance Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor 
risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Accounts and Governance Committee under auditing standards.   

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Accounts and Governance 
Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Accounts and Governance Committee and 
also specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Accounts and Governance Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit 
and developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Accounts and 
Governance Committee and supports the Accounts and Governance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting 
process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of the 
following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

P
age  113



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Eden District Council’s management. The 
Accounts and Governance Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any 
further comments it wishes to make. 

5

P
age  114



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 
will have a significant impact on the financial statements 
for 2021/22?  

EDC joined the other District councils in contributing approximately £1.6m to a central reserve to fund the 
project to create the Unitary Authorities.
During 2021/22, the staff restructure element of the One Eden Programme was completed with some 
redundancies totalling £230k. However, there were also significant vacancies in the year caused in part by 
the restructure and also by the uncertainty caused by the Local Government Reorganisation.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies adopted by Eden District Council?
Have there been any events or transactions that may 
cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies? 
If so, what are they?

The accounting policies are reviewed by management on an annual basis and there have been no changes 
for 2021/22 and no events or transactions requiring amendment to any policies.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 
derivatives? If so, please explain

No

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 
the normal course of business? If so, what are they?

Covid grants continues to be received, both as agency (passported) and principal. The majority of these 
grants were to pass on to the public, however some were additional burdens grants which were for the 
Council to use to fund the administration involved in the grants.
The contract for the renovation of Voreda House was entered into and works commenced.

6

P
age  115



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 
would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so, 
what are they?

We are not aware of any.

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 
please provide further details

We are not aware of any

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 
and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 
statements? If so, please provide further details We are not aware of any

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 
of those solicitors utilised by Eden District Council
during the year. Please indicate where they are working 
on open litigation or contingencies from prior years?

Bevan Brittain – Constitutional advice and advice re dissolution of Heart of Cumbria
Richard Humphreys QC – matters relating to Newton Rigg
TIAA and CH&I Associates – matters relating to Parish councils
There are no open litigation cases being worked on.

7

P
age  116



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of the Eden District Council’s service 
providers reported any items of fraud, non-compliance 
with laws and regulations or uncorrected misstatements 
which would affect the financial statements? If so, 
please provide further details

None reported

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 
during the year and the issue on which they were 
consulted? See Section 8 for all legal advisors consulted in the year

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which 
expected credit loss provisions may be required under 
IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and 
investments? If so, please provide further details

Note 17 in the accounts on Financial Instruments covers IFRS9 requirements for credit loss provisions 
Note 43 in the accounts on Leases considers IFRS9 requirements for finance leases where the council is 
the lessor. No charge for expected loss allowance has been deemed necessary for the financial year.
For collection fund we have bad debt provision for NNDR and CT. For Sundry debtors we include a bad debt 
provision and an appeals provision for NNDR to account for credit loss.
For long term debtors we individually assess each debt and for this year have assessed that there is no 
credit loss provision required.

8

P
age  117



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud
Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Accounts and Governance Committee and management. 
Management, with the oversight of the Accounts and Governance Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 
deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Accounts and Governance Committee 
should consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Eden District Council’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the 
potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud;

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks; 

• communication with the Accounts and Governance Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud; 
and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Accounts and Governance Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make 
inquiries of both management and the Accounts and Governance Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged
fraud. These areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Eden District Council’s 
management. 

9

P
age  118



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

1. Has Eden District Council assessed the risk of 
material misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 
the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 
results of this process? 

How do the Council’s risk management processes link to 
financial reporting?

The management team have assessed the risk of material misstatement due to fraud as low. In order to 
reach this assessment, they prepare an Annual Fraud Report which was reviewed by Accounts & 
Governance Committee on 9 June 2022. This report gives an update on how the Council has sought to 
detect and prevent fraud in 2021/22 as well as reporting any incidents of fraud. No incidents were 
reported.
The report considers the actions taken in relation to the Anti-Fraud Plan which is reviewed, updated and 
approved annual by Accounts & Governance Committee. 
The Council maintains a Strategic Risk Register which is reviewed monthly by the Extended Leadership 
Team and quarterly by members. The quarterly financial monitoring process considers in particular the 
risks and pressures on the financial results and reports on these. Discussions with managers focus on 
the areas of uncertainty to highlight and mitigate any risks.

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to 
fraud? 

Cash will always be one of the biggest risk areas. We have reduced the use of cash significantly during 
the pandemic and continue to consider regularly whether it can be reduced further.
Supplier fraud is also subject to particular risk, especially in changes in bank details and new supplier set-
up. Finance staff involved in these processes attend regular fraud updates to keep up to date on the latest 
fraud types and methods. Procedures are written to include controls to mitigate these risks.
Grant applications are also a risk of fraud, however all grant programmes have stringent rules on the 
documentation which much be provided and the checks that will be done. This covers as much as 
possible the risk that grants are applied for fraudulently.
Revenues and Benefits fraud is also something to be considered. The organisation works closely with 
DWP to compare data to national data to highlight a risk of fraud and internal and external quality checks 
are done regularly.

10

P
age  119



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected 
or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either 
within Eden District Council as a whole, or within 
specific departments since 1 April 2021? If so, please 
provide details.

No

4. As a management team, how do you communicate 
risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with 
governance?                                                                                         

Management prepare an Annual Fraud Report which was reviewed by Accounts & Governance Committee 
on 9 June 2022. This report gives an update on how the Council has sought to detect and prevent fraud in 
2021/22 as well as reporting any incidents of fraud. No incidents were reported.
If a significant fraud were identified mid-year then this would be reported to the Accounts & Governance 
Committee

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so, 
please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at 
risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Eden District 
Council where fraud is more likely to  occur?

These are set out in the Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan

No

Not geographically

6. What processes do Eden District Council have in 
place to identify and respond to risks of fraud? These are set out in the Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan

11

P
age  120



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

7. How do you assess the overall control environment for Eden 
District Council, including:

• the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 
duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of 
internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the 
risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect 
fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 
controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 
process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 
financial targets)? If so, please provide details

TIAA are appointed as our internal auditors. They prepare an annual audit plan which is 
approved by Accounts & Governance committee in February/March each year. Progress 
against plan and results of each audit are reported back to Accounts & Governance 
regularly throughout the year and a final year end report produced, which reviews the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control. 

The individual reports identify control weaknesses with recommendations for correcting, 
which are accepted by management. Follow ups are undertaken by the auditors and 
reported to the Committee as part of regular reports. 

None that aren’t included in the control environment for Internal Audit. 

The Outturn report is prepared by the Assistant Director Finance and reviewed by the 
Interim Director of Resources. The data is checked with the Accountancy Manager who 
reconciles the data back to the ledger. Due to the number of staff involved, there is not 
considered a risk of override to the financial reporting process.

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If 
so, please provide details No. All estimates are backed up with working papers. All actuals are supported by 

external or internal documents and reviewed as part of the preparation of the accounts.

12

P
age  121



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

9. How does Eden District Council communicate 
and encourage ethical behaviours and business 
processes of it’s staff and contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 
about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 
fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If 
so, please provide details

Through it’s procurement policy and Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response 
Plan. These are both published on the Councils website and reminders sent to staff when reviews are 
completed. 

The Council has a Confidential Reporting Code, which is reviewed annually. 

The code encourages any employee, to feel that it is acceptable to raise any serious concern about the 
Council, its services and the conduct of its staff, Members, contractors or service providers. This is 
specifically in relation to the unauthorised use of public funds, possible fraud or corruption and sexual or 
physical abuse may be criminal offences. 

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what 
are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 
assessed and managed?

The Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan doesn’t identify any specific 
posts, however it does identify areas where fraud can occur such as benefits and creditors, which are 
the subject of the highest exposure to Internal Audit. 

11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 
or transactions that could give rise to instances of 
fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 
related to related party relationships and 
transactions?

No 
All staff and members have to register annually their Related Party Transactions and on a regular basis 
declare their interests in specific agenda items at Council or Committee’s 

13

P
age  122



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Accounts and Governance 
Committee? 

How does the Accounts and Governance 
Committee exercise oversight over management's 
processes for identifying and responding to risks of 
fraud and breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 
so far this year?

An Annual Fraud Report is presented to Accounts & Governance Committee. 

Through the review of the Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and Response Plan, but 
also through the receipt of the regular reports from TIAA. 

There have been nor breaches of internal control in 2021/22, the review of Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and 
Corruption Strategy and Response Plan was reported in June 2022

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 
or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 
what has been your response?

No

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act? If so, please provide details

No

14

P
age  123



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Accounts and Governance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Eden District Council's operations 
are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or 
error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 
inquiries of management and the Accounts and Governance Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where 
we become aware of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible 
effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

15

P
age  124



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Eden District Council have in place to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory 
environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’s 
financial statements?

The Council’s Constitution and policies set out how the Council conducts its business. These 
documents comply with relevant legislation. The Monitoring Officer has sight of all Council 
and Executive documents and other relevant committee documents as these come the 
Corporate Leadership Team for review and confirming that any proposals are compliant with 
the relevant laws and regulations; these are the route for any material change to Council 
policy. There is an active programme of annual constitutional review to ensure procedures 
reflect current legislation. The Monitoring Officer is a member of Corporate Leadership team 
where strategic issues are discussed allowing for early discussion of any potential legal 
implications of future initiatives. Additionally the Constitution has recently undergone a 
process of a full and detailed review to ensure we are legally compliant and following best 
practise. Currently the Monitoring Officer has sufficient resources to carry out their duties. 

2. How is the Accounts and Governance Committee provided 
with assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with?

There is an active programme of annual constitutional review to ensure procedures reflect 
current legislation which Member of the Accounts and Governance Committee are involved 
with.

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 
April 2021 with an on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial 
statements? If so, please provide details

None that the Council is aware of. 

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that 
would affect the financial statements? If so, please provide 
details

None that the Council is aware of. 

16

P
age  125



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

5. What arrangements does Eden District Council 
have in place to identify, evaluate and account for 
litigation or claims? 

Litigation and claims are passed to our insurers who progress the matter on behalf of the Council.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 
details

None that we are aware of

17

P
age  126



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Matters in relation to Related Parties
Eden District Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties. These may include:

• bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Eden District Council;
• associates;
• joint ventures;
• a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;
• key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and
• post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any body that is a related party of the 

Council.
A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council’s 
perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.
ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 
financial statements are complete and accurate. 

18

P
age  127



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Question Management response

1. Have there been any changes in the related 
parties including those disclosed in Eden District 
Council’s 2020/21 financial statements? 
If so please summarise: 
• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Eden District Council
• whether Eden District Council has entered into 

or plans to enter into any transactions with these 
related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions 

No

2. What controls does Eden District Council have in 
place to identify, account for and disclose related 
party transactions and relationships?

The Council requires a related party transaction statement from all members and senior members (AD’s 
and above). Any related transactions are then included 

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions and arrangements 
with related parties?

The Councils procurement policies protect the Council from any influence when contracting with related 
parties. Significant transactions require approval of the CFO and significant contractual arrangements 

would require approval of Cabinet. 

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions outside of the 
normal course of business?

As above

19

P
age  128



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Matters in relation to Going Concern
The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial 
statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's 
Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.
Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 
significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 
for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 
to going concern is unlikely to exist. 
For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies. 
This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 
line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that the 
financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 
services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 
evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, the 
underlying services will continue. 
For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 
interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 
is through such work that it will be considered. P

age  129



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Question Management response

1. What processes and controls does management have in 
place to identify events and / or conditions which may indicate 
that the statutory services being provided by Eden District 
Council will no longer continue?

Weekly Extended Leadership Team (ELT) meetings are used to share and discuss information 
on significant external and internal factors affecting the provision of statutory services.

The strategic Risk register is reviewed monthly by ELT with discussion on any changes to the 
environment which may affect service delivery 

2. Are management aware of any factors which may mean 
for Eden District Council that either statutory services will no 
longer be provided or that funding for statutory services will 
be discontinued? If so, what are they?

No except for LGR: Local Government Reorganisation will mean that Eden District Council will 
cease to exist at midnight on 31 March 2023 and all services will be provided by Westmorland 
and Furness Council from 1 April 2023. There is an extensive programme in place to ensure 
that services are able to run as usual from 1 April 2023.
The ELT discuss the progress of the programme at their regular meetings and include and 
risks for day 1.

3. With regard to the statutory services currently provided by 
Eden District Council, does Eden District Council expect to 
continue to deliver them for the foreseeable future, or will they 
be delivered by related public authorities if there are any 
plans for Eden District Council to cease to exist?

Local Government Reorganisation will mean that Eden District Council will cease to exist at 
midnight on 31 March 2023 and all services will be provided by Westmorland and Furness 
Council from 1 April 2023. There is an extensive programme in place to ensure that services 
are able to run as usual from 1 April 2023.
The ELT discuss the progress of the programme at their regular meetings and include and 
risks for day 1.

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting 
framework permits Eden District Council to prepare its 
financial statements on a going concern basis? Are 
management satisfied that preparing financial statements on 
a going concern basis will provide a faithful representation of 
the items in the financial statements?

Yes

Yes

P
age  130



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates

Matters in relation to accounting estimates
ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 
including:
• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;
• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;
• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 
• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and
• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.
As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important 
where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 
Specifically do Accounts and Governance Committee members:
• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;
• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 

management; and
• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?
We would ask the Accounts and Governance Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

22

P
age  131



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and 
conditions, that are significant to the financial 
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, 
accounting estimate and related disclosures?

The following are the areas where we make financial estimates for the purposes of the accounts: 
PPE – including useful life, valuation, impairment 
Heritage Assets – valuation 
Investments - valuation 
Holiday entitlements – pay rate for 21/22 estimated as pay award pending 
Pension Scheme – valuation of assets and liabilities 
Provisions - in relation to NNDR valuation claims 
Accruals – where exact value of work done / services received is not available 

2. How does the Council’s risk management process 
identify and address risks relating to accounting 
estimates?

Senior management and the s151 officer will consider the risk and judgements of material accounting 
estimates during the production of the accounts and ensure that the basis for the estimates and the effects 
of any judgements made and their associated risks are transparently reported 

3. How does management identify the methods, 
assumptions or source data, and the need for changes 
in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

Key finance staff engage with experts, where they are involved, in clearly defining and reviewing the basis 
and appropriateness of assumptions and source data for use in key accounting estimates used in the 
financial statements (external experts are engaged for valuation of property and pensions liabilities). This is 
done on an annual basis as the first stage of the preparation for closedown. The discussion and challenge is 
documented. 
Where external experts are not involved and the estimates are material, senior finance staff review and 
challenge the appropriateness of methods, assumptions and source data of those estimates 

4. How do management review the outcomes of 
previous accounting estimates?

The previous accounting estimates are reviewed as part of the process of setting estimates at the year end. 
The outcomes of previous relevant estimates will be considered as part of the estimation process

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes 
in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the reason for these?

None. However we did a more detailed valuation on all Heritage Assets.

P
age  132



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 
apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 
accounting estimates?

We use experts for the valuation of property, plant and equipment and pensions liabilities as these are 
material estimates and are recognised as key areas where an in-depth technical knowledge/specialism is 
required to provide adequate assurance over the validation of assumptions and required specialist 
knowledge is not be readily available in the Authority. Where specialist skills are required we have clear 
contracting requirements and a documented system of review and challenge. . Where a new estimate is 
required, management will consider the type of estimate required and any gap in internal resource 
knowledge, if necessary seeking external advise. For material new estimates, Accounts & governance 
Committee will make the decision. 

7. How does the Council determine what control 
activities are needed for significant accounting 
estimates, including the controls at any service 
providers or management experts? 

Where specialist skills are required the contracting requirements set out the assumptions, control activities 
and the format of the outputs required to enable an effective review and challenge process. Where controls 
are system driven these are documented and reviewed for appropriateness, with management oversight 
providing a separate professional view that the controls have been actioned appropriately and therefore that 
reliance can be placed on the figures. 

8. How does management monitor the operation of 
control activities related to accounting estimates, 
including the key controls at any service providers or 
management experts? 

We document the review and challenge oversight by senior management. This includes independent 
verification of estimates and discussions with experts to understand the processes they have used and the 
reliability of the results. 

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 
governance over management’s financial reporting 
process relevant to accounting estimates, including:
- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates;
- The methods and models used; and
- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

The nature and extent of the oversight in relation to accounting estimates includes: 
The agreement of assumptions in advance, including their appropriateness 
Verification of the underlying data in advance 
The methodology to be used to determine the value of estimates and its appropriateness 
Review of the results for reasonableness, including comparative analysis with previous years and within the 
portfolio. 
Sensitivity of the results to the key assumptions to assess materiality 
S151 approval of the outcomes of the quality assurance process

P
age  133



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

10. Are management aware of any transactions, 
events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 
give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 
accounting estimates that require significant 
judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 
what are they?

Management keep up to date on external factors through updates from sector experts and discussions in 
CCFO and CWAG (local council finance) groups. 
Management are not currently aware of any transactions, events or conditions which will affect any 
significant accounting estimates or create the need for any significant accounting estimates 

11. Why are management satisfied that their 
arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 
detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

Management have reviewed the method of each estimation and have considered the different methods 
of estimation available to them. They have used expert opinion whenever reasonable and have 
interrogated that expert opinion where required. Where an expert was unavailable or it was not 
reasonable to seek expert opinion, management have collated all reasonable information available to 
them in calculating the estimates.

12. How is the Accounts and Governance 
Committee provided with assurance that the 
arrangements for accounting estimates are 
adequate?

Any new estimate models required would be considered by Accounts & Governance 

25

P
age  134



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

managemen

t have used 

an expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Land and 
buildings 
valuations

Experts using industry knowledge 
and experience, using trade 
publications, data and established 
estimation techniques. 

Full disclosure given to 
the council and challenge 
meetings to investigate 
estimates used

Expert – Walton 
Goodland 

Walton Goodland are experts in their field and 
all calculations are backed up by industry 
standard data. All estimates are based on 
industry standard methods

No

Council dwelling 
valuations

Experts using industry knowledge 
and experience, using trade 
publications, data and established 
estimation techniques

Full disclosure given to the 
council and challenge 
meetings to investigate 
estimates used

Expert – Walton 
Goodland 

Walton Goodland are experts in their field and 
all calculations are backed up by industry 
standard data. All estimates are based on 
industry standard methods

No

Investment 
property 
valuations

Experts using industry knowledge 
and experience, using trade 
publications, data and established 
estimation techniques

Full disclosure given to the 
council and challenge 
meetings to investigate 
estimates used

Expert – Walton 
Goodland 

Walton Goodland are experts in their field and 
all calculations are backed up by industry 
standard data. All estimates are based on 
industry standard methods

No

Surplus Assets Experts using industry knowledge 
and experience, using trade 
publications, data and established 
estimation techniques

Full disclosure given to the 
council and challenge 
meetings to investigate 
estimates used

Expert – Walton 
Goodland 

Walton Goodland are experts in their field and 
all calculations are backed up by industry 
standard data. All estimates are based on 
industry standard methods

No

Depreciation Walton Goodland provide 
estimated useful lives of asset 
which are used to calculate 
depreciation 

Full disclosure given to the 
council and challenge 
meetings to investigate 
estimates used

Expert – Walton 
Goodland 

Walton Goodland are experts in their field and 
all calculations are backed up by industry 
standard data. All estimates are based on 
industry standard methods

No

26

P
age  135



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Valuation of 
defined benefit 
net pension 
fund liabilities

Expert knowledge/experience In-year communications 
from experts compared 
against final year-end 
actuals to ensure 
consistent responses. 

Expert –
Mercers 

Expert knowledge/experience. Limited in-
house experience so alternative methods 
of estimation are not available. 

No

Level 2 
investments

Expert knowledge/experience In-year communications 
from experts compared 
against final year-end 
actuals to ensure 
consistent responses. 

Expert – Arling
Close

Expert knowledge/experience. Limited in-
house experience so alternative methods 
of estimation are not available. 

No

Level 3 
investments

Expert knowledge/experience In-year communications 
from experts compared 
against final year-end 
actuals to ensure 
consistent responses. 

Expert – Arling
Close

Expert knowledge/experience. Limited in-
house experience so alternative methods 
of estimation are not available. 

No

Fair value 
estimates

Expert knowledge/experience In-year communications 
from experts compared 
against final year-end 
actuals to ensure 
consistent responses. 

Expert – Arling
Close

Expert knowledge/experience. Limited in-
house experience so alternative methods 
of estimation are not available. 

No

27

P
age  136



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Provisions No material provisions except 
NNDR appeals –see below

n/a n/a n/a n/a

Accruals Use of actual data wherever 
possible. Estimated amounts 
will be based on known 
values, orders, commitments 

Comparison against 
previous years actuals 
and/or value of orders 
etc. 

No Known commitments/amounts so degree 
of inaccuracy will be limited. 

No

Credit loss and 
impairment 
allowances

Models have been used 
specific to the type of 
debt/asset. 

In-year communications 
from experts

For some 
allowances

Each assessment has included 
consideration of likelihood, value and risk

No

28

P
age  137



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Eden District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management have 

used an expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

Finance lease 
liabilities

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Provision for 
business rates 
appeals

NNDR appeals - Fixed 
percentage of net rates 
payable

n/a No Alternative estimates have 
been considered. 
Historical appeals level 
have been considered.

No

29

P
age  138



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 
one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 
provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age  139



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report No:  DoR95/22 

Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee 

15 December 2022 

Internal Audit: Summary Progress Report 2022/23 

Portfolio: None 
Report from: Assistant Director Finance 
Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To inform the Committee of the progress of the Council’s internal audit plan 
for 2022-23. 

2 Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Committee: 
2.1 Note the report and the Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2022/23 

at Appendix 1. 
2.2 Note the finalised reports at Appendix 2 and Follow-up Report at Appendix 3. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 TIAA deliver our internal audit function. The Internal audit plan for 2022/23 
was approved by this Committee on 16 March 2022. 

3.2 Appendix 1 a provides the Summary Internal Controls Assurance report from 
TIAA updating on the internal audit progress against plan up to 28 November 
2022.  

3.3 Appendix 2 provides the finalised reports completed since the last report to 
this committee on 29 September 2022. 
o Budget Management - Assurance 
o ICT Asset Management - Assurance 
o Business Continuity - Advisory 

3.4 Appendix 3 is the follow-up report November 2022 showing progress against 
actions from previous reports. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 
 Healthy, safe and secure; 
 Connected; and 
 Creative 

Page  141

Agenda Item 7



 

 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors or Portfolio Holders. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources. 
6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications. 
6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no human resource implications. 
6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental implications, including significant effects on 
carbon emissions and ecosystems. 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no implications. 
Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

There are no implications. 

Crime and Disorder There are no implications. 
Children and 
Safeguarding 

There are no implications. 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Issues raised by Internal 
Audit are not 
appropriately actioned 
by management 

Weak systems control, 
increased risk of theft 
and fraud 

Reporting of internal 
audit recommendations 
publicly to Committee 
and tracking 
implementation of 
these. 

Audit programme 
slippage 

Approved programme 
not delivered, resources 
not directed as planned 
and reported 

Regular reporting on 
internal audit progress. 

Page  142



 

 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To keep members updated on the progress of internal audit. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Relevant Assistant Director 29 November 2022 

Background Papers: None 
Appendices: Appendix 1 – TIAA Summary Internal Controls 

Assurance (SICA) Report 
 Appendix 2 – TIAA Finalised Reports 
 Appendix 3 – TIAA Follow-up Report November 2022 
Contact Officer: Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance 

Page  143



Internal Audit 

November 2022 

Eden District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

2022/23 

FINAL 

Appendix 1

P
age  144



 

 
 
 

 
Eden District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 1 
 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance 

Introduction 

1. This summary controls assurance report provides the Accounts and Governance Committee with an update on the emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control related issues 

and the progress of our work at Eden District Council as at 28th November 2022. 

Emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control Related Issues 

2. Corporate social responsibility (CSR) refers to the self-imposed responsibility of businesses to society in areas such as the environment, the economy, employee well-being, and 

competition ethics. Many businesses use internal CSR regulation as a form of moral compass to positively influence the ethical development of their business.  

Traditionally, CSR was viewed as something only large businesses practiced. In the past, simply having a CSR intention in place was already enough for a business to be recognised 

as socially responsible, even if the idea of social responsibility did not influence the business model or the production processes. In today’s market however, businesses of all sizes 

are increasingly held responsible for their social and environmental impact by their customers. And because every business is part of a value/supply chain consisting of other 

businesses, when they advocate for sustainability, ethical practices, and generosity, this creates a positive ripple effect on all stakeholders. 

 

 

 

P
age  145



 

 
 
 

 
Eden District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 2 
 

Audits completed since the last SICA report to the Accounts and Governance Committee 

3. The table below sets out details of audits finalised since the previous meeting of the Accounts and Governance Committee. 

Audits completed since previous SICA report 

  Key Dates Number of Recommendations 

Review Evaluation Draft issued Responses Received Final issued 1 2 3 OEM 

Business Continuity N/A 25/11/2022 28/11/2022 28/11/2022 0 1 0 0 

ICT Asset Management Reasonable 01/11/2022 28/11/2022 28/11/2022 0 1 1 0 

Budget Management Reasonable 05/10/2022 21/10/2022 24/10/2022 0 2 0 0 

Progress against the 2022/23 Annual Plan 

4. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2022/23 is set out in Appendix A. 

Changes to the Annual Plan 2022/23 

5. The review of Capacity and Resource Planning has been cancelled at the request of the client.  

Progress in actioning priority 1 recommendations 

6. We have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e., fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately) since the previous SICA.  

Frauds/Irregularities 

7. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last SICA report was issued. 

Other Matters 

8. We have issued a number of briefing notes and fraud digests, shown in Appendix B, since the previous SICA report.  

Responsibility/Disclaimer 

9. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. The matters 

raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No responsibility to any third party 

is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive 

this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

--------------- 

 

P
age  146



 

 
 
 

 
Eden District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 3 
 

Appendix A 

Progress against Annual Plan 

 

System 
Planned 

Quarter 
Current Status Comments 

Capacity and Resource Planning 1 Cancelled Review cancelled at the request of the client 

ICT Asset Management 1 Complete Final Report Issued 

Residential Property Compliance 1 Complete Final Report Issued 

Management of Health and Safety 1 Complete Final Report Issued 

Budget Management 2 Complete Final Report Issued 

Data Integrity 2 Complete Final Report Issued 

Procurement 2 Site Work Commenced  

Creditor Payments – Supplier Management 2 Complete Final Report Issued 

Performance Monitoring 3 Planned Start Date 2nd January 2023  

Development Control 3 Planned Start Date 11th January 2023  

Data Protection 3 Planned Start Date 19th December 2022  

Business Continuity 4 Complete Final Report Issued 

Follow Up 1 - 4 On-going Next Report to December Committee 

KEY: 

 

 To be commenced   Site work commenced   Draft report issued   Final report issued 

P
age  147



 

 
 
 

 
Eden District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 4 
 

Appendix B 

Briefings on developments in Governance, Risk and Control 

TIAA produces regular briefing notes to summarise new developments in Governance, Risk and Control which may have an impact on our clients. These are shared with clients and made 

available through our Online Client Portal. A summary list of those CBNs and Fraud Alerts issued in the last three months which may be of relevance to Eden District Council is given below. 

Copies of any CBNs are available on request from your local TIAA team. 

Summary of recent Client Briefing Notes (CBNs) 

CBN Ref Subject Status TIAA Comments 

CBN - 22030 

Government Response – Consultation on 

extending National Fraud Initiative data matching 

to new purposes 

 

No Action required 

For information only to Audit Committees and Boards / Governing Bodies. 

CBN - 22031 
Five-year local authority audit procurement 

results announced 

 

Action Required:  

Audit Committees and Boards / Governing Bodies are advised to familiarise themselves 

with the new guidance. 

 

P
age  148



October 2022 

Internal Audit 

FINAL 

Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of Budget Management 

2022/23

Appendix 2

P
age  149



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of Budget Management 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

The current capital expenditure plan is not supported by third party 

condition surveys covering all areas of operation. 

 

Sensitivity analysis is not incorporated within the annual budgetary planning 

process evaluating the impact of uncertainties in the wider macro-economic 

climate.  
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

Having an unsustainable budget and running out of reserves. 

 

 

There is adequate segregation of duties across all processes involved in 

annual budget preparation along with adequate budget holder involvement.  
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the process for producing management accounts in a timely manner 

including timetabling, preparation, liaison with budget holders, publishing, variations and 

reporting through to senior management, Council and relevant committees.  

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 2 0 0 

 

P
age  150



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      Eden District Council 
Assurance Review of Budget Management 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed The capital expenditure budget is broken 

down by schemes allocated to designated 

individuals. Working papers generally include 

detailed rolling programmes and needs 

identified within all operational segments. 

Expenditure for premises related expenditure 

is not supported by condition surveys.  

Up to date condition surveys be 

undertaken to provide detailed insight 

into the condition of assets to be 

utilised in capital expenditure planning.  

2 Site surveys have been completed and 

have been used to inform the revenue 

maintenance programme. 

However the recommendation will be 

passed on to the Finance Budgeting 

team in the Unitary authority in 

relation to capital planning. 

N/A due to LGR AD Delivery – 

Laura Cadman 

2 Directed The revenue and capital expenditure budgets 

for 2022/23 did not include scenario planning 

and sensitivity analysis in light of the macro-

economic climate.  

Sensitivity analysis be incorporated 

within the wider budgetary planning 

process in order to evaluate the 

sensitivity of overall results in light of 

key macro-economic factors.  

2 Agreed. This recommendation will be 

passed on to the Finance Budgeting 

team in the Unitary authority. 

N/A due to LGR AD Finance – 

Marianne 

Bastille 

 

P
age  151



   

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

Eden District Council 
Assurance Review of Budget Management 

Page 3 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age  152



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of Budget Management 
Page 4 

 

Findings 
 

 

Directed Risk:  

Failure to properly direct the service to ensure compliance with the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 

arrangements 

Cross Reference 

to MAP 

Cross Reference 

to OEM 

GF Governance Framework 
There is a documented process instruction which accords with the relevant regulatory guidance, 

Financial Instructions and Scheme of Delegation. 
Partially in place 1, & 2 - 

RM Risk Mitigation 
The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements set out in the corporate risk 

register. 
In place - - 

C Compliance 
Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is demonstrated, with action 

taken in cases of identified non-compliance. 
In place - - 

 

Other Findings 

 
The Constitution provides detailed information regarding the budgetary and financial planning process including key approval requirements. The Finance Scrutiny Committee 

is responsible for supporting and scrutinising the budget setting strategy and process for: 

 The general fund and the capital programme; 

 Assets and treasury management; and 

 Reserves and investments. 

P
age  153



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of Budget Management 
Page 5 

 

 
Budgetary Planning is carried out using a Microsoft Excel based financial model. As a starting point, the prior year model is rolled forward and segmental reports circulated to 

relevant budget holders for up to date plans. Finalised segmental reports are subsequently consolidated and prepared for Senior Management Team and Council approval. 

Virements are utilised in budget monitoring which are required to be formally approved and can relate to either: 

 The current budget only; or 

 The base recurring budget. 

Both revenue and capital budget lines are allocated to relevant managers within the planning templates clarifying budget ownership and aiding data collation during the planning 

process. 

 
Senior Managers are responsible for ensuring that authorised budget holders effectively monitor the revenue and capital budgets for their designated areas. The Director of 

Resources is responsible for ensuring that the Financial Management System is up-to-date and that all authorised budget holders are appropriately trained in its use. 

 
In cases where there is a material variation (over 10%) in actual expenditure or income against the approved budget, the relevant Senior Manager is required to provide adequate 

details to the Director of Resources and to report to the Cabinet Member if required. 

 
Through a review of the working papers supporting capital expenditure, it was noted that an up to date third party condition survey is not in place to support expenditure on 

estates. Individual lines of the capital expenditure budget were supported by rolling investment programmes; need for equipment and areas requiring major repairs with the IT 

department maintaining up to date trackers for all IT equipment. 

 
A sample of five virements was selected to ensure that approval was sought in line with the Constitution and no issues were found. 

 
A sample of eight variances to budget was selected for testing and no issues were found. 

 

  

P
age  154



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of Budget Management 
Page 6 

 

 

Delivery Risk:  

Failure to deliver the service in an effective manner which meets the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 

arrangements 

Cross Reference 

to MAP 

Cross Reference 

to OEM 

PM Performance Monitoring 
There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with the business plan requirements and are 

independently monitored, with corrective action taken in a timely manner. 
In place - - 

S Sustainability The impact on the organisation's sustainability agenda has been considered. In place - - 

R Resilience 
Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to enhance the economic, effective 

and efficient delivery is adopted. 
In place - - 

 

Other Findings 

 
Variance analysis and financial performance review is carried out on a quarterly basis along with a review of cash-flow forecasts. Reports are formally submitted to the Finance 

Scrutiny Committee for review as part of a comprehensive pack. A review of cash-flow is maintained regularly by the Senior Accountant using an excel model which provides 

details regarding cash available in short-term deposit accounts and considers a one year forecast horizon. The finalised model is reviewed by the Assistant Director: Finance and 

HR.  As at 20th September 2022, the available cash maintained within short term deposit accounts amounted to £30,238,357. 

P
age  155



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of Budget Management 
Page 7 

 

EXPLANATORY INFORMATION Appendix A 
 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

1. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of 

management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. As set out in 

the Audit Charter, substantive testing is only carried out where this has been 

agreed with management and unless explicitly shown in the scope no such work 

has been performed. 

Disclaimer 

2. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the 

auditor during the course of the review, and are not necessarily a comprehensive 

statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be 

made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not 

be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior 

written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has 

not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither 

owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever 

nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Effectiveness of arrangements 

3. The definitions of the effectiveness of arrangements are set out below. These 

are based solely upon the audit work performed, assume business as usual, and 

do not necessarily cover management override or exceptional circumstances. 

In place The control arrangements in place mitigate the risk from arising. 

Partially in place 
The control arrangements in place only partially mitigate the risk 

from arising. 

Not in place 
The control arrangements in place do not effectively mitigate the 

risk from arising. 

Assurance Assessment 

4. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial 

Assurance 

There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to 

ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating 

effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks 

are managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not 

operating effectively and significant improvements are required to 

ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance 
There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls 

requiring immediate action. 

Acknowledgement 

5. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 

course of our work. 

Release of Report 

6. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Stage Issued Response Received 

Audit Planning Memorandum: 12th September 2022 12th September 2022 

Draft Report: October 2022 21st October 2022 

Final Report: 24th October 2022  

 

P
age  156



   

 

 

AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM Appendix B 
 

Client: Eden District Council 

Review: Budget Management 

Type of Review: Assurance Audit Lead: Tausif Taj 

 

Outline scope (per Annual Plan): The review will consider the process for producing management accounts in a timely manner including timetabling, preparation, liaison with budget holders, 

publishing, variations and reporting through to senior management, Council and relevant committees.  

Detailed scope will consider: Governance Framework: 

• Assessing whether policies and procedures are appropriate 

Risk Mitigation: 

• Assessing whether risks are properly identified, monitored and mitigated 

Compliance: 

• Assessing the extent of compliance with relevant legislation, policies and procedures, including sample testing 

Performance Monitoring: 

• Assessing whether performance monitoring is sufficient to enable key decisions to be made in a timely manner 

Sustainability: 

• Assessing the extent to which arrangements align within sustainability targets 

Resilience: 

• Assessing whether there are sufficient resources in place to provide the required service 

Planned Start Date: 12/09/2022 Exit Meeting Date: 23/09/2022 Exit Meeting to be held with: Assistant Director: Finance and HR 

SELF ASSESSMENT RESPONSE 

Matters over the previous 12 months relating to activity to be reviewed Y/N (if Y then please provide brief 

details separately) 

Has there been any reduction in the effectiveness of the internal controls due to staff absences through sickness and/or vacancies etc? N 

Have there been any breakdowns in the internal controls resulting in disciplinary action or similar? N 

Have there been any significant changes to the process? N 

Are there any particular matters/periods of time you would like the review to consider? N 

 

P
age  157



 November 2022 

 

 

 

 

 ICT Audit  

  FINAL  

     

 Eden District Council    

 Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management    

 2022/23    

     

 

P
age  158



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

Greater clarity of which devices are in scope for the ICT Asset Register is 

required. 

 

The Asset Register does not include key network infrastructure components 

including servers, switches and firewall appliances. 

 

The Asset Register requires review and updating to ensure a complete record 

of assets with pertinent detail is recorded. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

5 - Failure of IT business critical systems or unauthorised access is gained to our 

Information and Technology (I&T) infrastructure. 

 

 

An ICT Support Staff Leaver Form is in place to ensure corporate IT 

equipment is returned to IT at the end of the users last working day. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the processes in place to manage, maintain and confirm the 

existence of ICT assets. This included the processes in place for identifying and managing 

the return of equipment for those leaving their posts. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 1 0 

 

P
age  159



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      Eden District Council 
Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Directed On review of the 473 Laptops and PCs listed 

on the Asset Register, it was found that: 

• Some usernames listed are ambiguous 

e.g. Judith, Tony, Ian; 

• 31 'In service' devices had no serial 

number listed and, of these, 22 had no 

MAC address; 

• 10 highlighted in yellow; 

• EDC02694 has comment “been retagged 

EDC02884” but this is not listed; and 

• EDC02885 - only the user listed, no 

details on the device. 

The Asset Register be reviewed and 

updated to ensure a complete record 

of assets with pertinent detail is 

recorded. 

2 Usernames were out of AD and did tie 

to individual users however this is not 

clear; these have been updated to full 

names. E.g. Judith Glennie, Tony 

Ryniejski and Ian Brown. 

All in service assets now have serial 

numbers included on the register. MAC 

address is only used to aid with builds 

so not worried if missing but have 

updated them for all in service 

machines.  

Yellow highlighted machines are still 

with users who have left and we are 

chasing the return. Have removed the 

highlight and added a status of locating 

so this is clearer. The 10 is down to 5, 

which we continue to chase.  

EDC02884 was in the disposal pile and 

has now been disposed of. The asset 

register has been updated to reflect 

this.  

EDC02885 now has updated the 

information in the asset register.  

Completed 

 

 

 

Completed 

 

 

 

 

Completed 

 

 

 

 

Completed 

 

 

 

Completed 

 

ICT Operations 

Lead 

 

 

ICT Operations 

Lead 

 

 

 

ICT Operations 

Lead 

 

 

 

ICT Operations 

Lead 

 

 

 

ICT Operations 

Lead 

P
age  160



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      Eden District Council 
Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed The Information Security Policy does not 

define what assets are considered to be in 

scope for the Asset Register. This may be 

based on value, potential to hold Council 

and/or sensitive data or criticality of the 

device to Council operations. 

Greater clarity on which devices are in 

scope for the ICT Asset Register be 

developed and stated in policy. 

3 Agreed we need to define the scope of 

assets. Will liaise with Finance to 

discuss the value. Then talk to 

Governance to discuss updating the 

Information Security Policy. We could 

include anything IT wise with a value 

over £100.  

 

01/03/22 – 

dependant on 

governance 

process/timescale for 

policy changes 

Head of 

Shared ICT 

 

P
age  161



   

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

Eden District Council 
Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 

Page 4 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age  162



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 
Page 5 

 

Findings 
 

 

Directed Risk:  

Failure to properly direct the service to ensure compliance with the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 

arrangements 

Cross Reference 

to MAP 

Cross Reference 

to OEM 

GF Governance Framework 
There is a documented process instruction which accords with the relevant regulatory guidance, 

Financial Instructions and Scheme of Delegation. 
Partially in place 1 - 

RM Risk Mitigation 
The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements set out in the corporate risk 

register. 
In place - - 

C Compliance 
Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is demonstrated, with action taken 

in cases of identified non-compliance. 
Partially in place 2 - 

 

Other Findings 

 
Section 5.1.3 of the Eden District Council Information Security Policy covers ICT assets - classification and control. The Policy was approved by the Council on 26th November 2020 and is next due 

for review in November 2022. The officer responsible for the Policy is the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO). 

 
The Policy states that IT Services are responsible for maintaining a database of all ICT assets, who they are allocated to and records any authorised uses and security procedures related to them. 

ICT assets are also required to be regularly audited to ensure that no breaches of the Information Security Policy are taking place. 

 
An ICT Acceptable Use Policy, appropriately approved and current, details the obligations users have in the use of Council ICT equipment and systems. Access is only given once staff have signed 

the ICT Authorised User Agreement and confirmed that they agree to its terms.  

P
age  163



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 
Page 6 

 

Other Findings 

 
The Eden District Council ICT Asset Register is a spreadsheet comprising of the following tabs: 

• Laptops and PCs; • Monitors; 

• Mobiles; and • Westmorland and Furness Council Mobile Phones. 
 

 
The Laptops and PCs component of the Asset Register includes the following fields: 

• Asset Tag; • User Name; • Location; • Department; 

• Category; • Manufacturer; • Model Number; • Serial Number; 

• MAC Address; • Date Rolled Out; • Year Of Purchase; • Warranty Expiration; 

• Replacement Year; • Comments; and • Status.  
 

 
Monitors have recently started to be added to the Asset Register. At the time of audit, only IT monitors had been included but plans are in place for site walkarounds to further populate the register 

(Recommendation 2 refers). 

 
No infrastructure components are listed on the Asset Register, for example servers, switches and firewall appliances (Recommendation 1 refers). 

 
An ICT Support Staff Leaver Form is in place to ensure corporate IT equipment is returned to IT at the end of the users last working day. This is the responsibility of the line manager to arrange. The 

form, populated by IT, lists assets to be returned including Laptop, Monitor, Mobile Phone and Peripherals/Other, where applicable. 

 
A Guide for contractors/agency workers is in place which includes the provision and return of ICT assets. 

 

  

P
age  164



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 
Page 7 

 

 

Delivery Risk:  

Failure to deliver the service in an effective manner which meets the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 

arrangements 

Cross Reference 

to MAP 

Cross Reference 

to OEM 

PM Performance Monitoring 
There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with the business plan requirements and are 

independently monitored, with corrective action taken in a timely manner. 
In place - - 

S Sustainability The impact on the organisation's sustainability agenda has been considered. In place - - 

R Resilience 
Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to enhance the economic, effective 

and efficient delivery is adopted. 
In place - - 

 

Other Findings 

 

During the course of the audit, a walkaround of Penrith Town Hall sampled 10 devices, which were all confirmed to be correctly asset tagged and recorded on the Asset Register. 

P
age  165



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 
Page 8 

 

EXPLANATORY INFORMATION Appendix A 
 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

1. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of 

management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. As set out in 

the Audit Charter, substantive testing is only carried out where this has been 

agreed with management and unless explicitly shown in the scope no such work 

has been performed. 

Disclaimer 

2. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the 

auditor during the course of the review, and are not necessarily a comprehensive 

statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be 

made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not 

be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior 

written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has 

not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither 

owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever 

nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Effectiveness of arrangements 

3. The definitions of the effectiveness of arrangements are set out below. These 

are based solely upon the audit work performed, assume business as usual, and 

do not necessarily cover management override or exceptional circumstances. 

In place The control arrangements in place mitigate the risk from arising. 

Partially in place 
The control arrangements in place only partially mitigate the risk 

from arising. 

Not in place 
The control arrangements in place do not effectively mitigate the 

risk from arising. 

Assurance Assessment 

4. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial 

Assurance 

There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to 

ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating 

effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks 

are managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not 

operating effectively and significant improvements are required to 

ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance 
There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls 

requiring immediate action. 

Acknowledgement 

5. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 

course of our work. 

Release of Report 

6. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Stage Issued Response Received 

Audit Planning Memorandum: 9th June 2022 9th June 2022 

Draft Report: 1st November 2022 28th November 2022 

Final Report: 28th November 2022  

 

P
age  166



   

 

Eden District Council 
Assurance Review of ICT Asset Management 

Page 9 

 

AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM Appendix B 
 

Client: Eden District Council 

Review: Asset Management 

Type of Review: Assurance Audit Lead: Simon Butterfield 

 

Outline scope (per Annual Plan): The review will consider the processes in place to manage, maintain and confirm the existence of ICT assets. This will include the processes in place for identifying and 

managing the return of equipment for those leaving their posts. 

 Governance Framework: 

• Assessing whether policies and procedures are appropriate 

Risk Mitigation: 

• Assessing whether risks are properly identified, monitored and mitigated 

Compliance: 

• Assessing the extent of compliance with relevant legislation, policies and procedures, including sample testing 

Performance Monitoring: 

• Assessing whether performance monitoring is sufficient to enable key decisions to be made in a timely manner 

Sustainability: 

• Assessing the extent to which arrangements align within sustainability targets 

Resilience: 

• Assessing whether there are sufficient resources in place to provide the required service 

 

Detailed scope will consider: 

 

Requested additions to scope: (if required then please provide brief detail) 

Exclusions from scope:  

 

Planned Start Date: 04/07/2022 Exit Meeting Date: 30/08/2022 Exit Meeting to be held with: ICT Operations Lead 

SELF ASSESSMENT RESPONSE 

Matters over the previous 12 months relating to activity to be reviewed Y/N (if Y then please provide brief 

details separately) 

Has there been any reduction in the effectiveness of the internal controls due to staff absences through sickness and/or vacancies etc? N 

Have there been any breakdowns in the internal controls resulting in disciplinary action or similar? N 

Have there been any significant changes to the process? N 

Are there any particular matters/periods of time you would like the review to consider? N 

 

P
age  167



 November 2022 

 

 

 

 

 ICT Audit  

  FINAL  

     

 Eden District Council    

 Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity    

 2022/23    

     

 

P
age  168



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

The Council has identified that the current business continuity arrangements 

are out of date and require improvement to ensure they are fit for purpose. 

 

The emerging business continuity management (BCM) system follows 

established methodologies. 

 

The Recovery Point Objective (RPO) needs to be defined on an ICT 

system/service basis as a result of business impact analyses. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

2 - A major incident or service failure which effect the services provided by the Council to 

our Council Taxpayers, including but not limited to IT failure; 3rd party service provider goes 

into administration; fire in a Council building.  

 

 

The Business Continuity strategy is based on the Government's Business 

Continuity Management Toolkit with alignment to Business Continuity 

Management Standard (BS25999). 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the business continuity arrangements that the Council has in place 

should it be subject to a cyber-security attack/incident. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 0 0 

 P
age  169



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      Eden District Council 
Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed Recovery Point Objective (RPO) is not defined 

leading to a lack of clarity of business 

expectations with regard to ICT services. 

Recovery Point Objective (RPO) be 

defined on an ICT system/service basis 

as a result of business impact analyses. 

2 This information is currently being 

collected as part of the critical activity 

register. 

31/01/23 Marianne 

Bastille 

(Assistant 

Director 

Finance) 

 

P
age  170



   

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

Eden District Council 
Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 

Page 3 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age  171



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 
Page 4 

 

Findings 
 

 

Directed Risk:  

Failure to properly direct the service to ensure compliance with the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 

arrangements 

Cross Reference 

to MAP 

Cross Reference 

to OEM 

GF Governance Framework 
There is a documented process instruction which accords with the relevant regulatory guidance, 

Financial Instructions and Scheme of Delegation. 
Partially in place 1 - 

RM Risk Mitigation 
The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements set out in the corporate risk 

register. 
In place - - 

C Compliance 
Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is demonstrated, with action taken 

in cases of identified non-compliance. 
In place - - 

 

Other Findings 

 

Since coming into post in April 2021, the Assistant Director: Finance and HR has identified that the current business continuity arrangements are out of date and require improvement to ensure 

they are fit for purpose. In consequence, many of the documents provided for review are in draft and work is ongoing. This review will, therefore, focus on the framework and methodology of the 

emerging business continuity management (BCM) system. 

 

BCM documentation includes: 

• Business Continuity Management at Eden District Council; • Eden District Council Business Continuity Management Critical Activity Register; 

• Business Continuity Toolkit; • Business Continuity Risk Register; 

• Business Continuity Corporate Strategy; and • Business Continuity Plan. 
 

 

The document 'Business Continuity Management at Eden District Council' provides a framework for the Council's Business Continuity strategy based on the Government's Business Continuity 

Management Toolkit with alignment to Business Continuity Management Standard (BS25999). 

P
age  172



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 
Page 5 

 

Other Findings 

 

A key task to ensure mitigating actions fulfil business needs is to identify which activities are critical and what impact an incident may have on them. These take the form of a Business Impact 

Analysis (BIA) for each service in the Council and are currently in progress. A template to assist in these BIAs was provided for review which was confirmed to include: 

• Business Activity; • Directorate; • Service; • Responsible; 

• How Vital Score; • Alternative Provider Score; • Days without Service Score; • Overall Score; 

• Comments; • Key Systems; • Key Staff; and • Other Key Resources. 

Where activities have ICT dependencies, to provide appropriate metrics for ICT to plan accordingly, Recovery Point Objective (RPO), Recovery Time Objective (RTO), and Maximum Tolerable 

Downtime (MTD) are required. The RTO is required to be within the MTD (which is indicated with the Days without Service Score but may require refinement on highly critical activities) whilst the 

RPO refers to data loss. If nightly backups are taken for example, an identified RPO of 4 hours would require more frequent backups. Once these metrics are defined for each activity, ICT can 

introduce mitigations to ensure its arrangements meet with business expectations (Recommendation 1 refers). 

 

A Business Continuity Risk Register is in development with identified risks and scenarios including: 

• Localised Weather or Natural Event; • Localised Public Disorder; • Localised Transport Accident; 

• Unplanned absence affecting key staff; • Loss of Utilities due to national event; • Loss of Utilities due to supplier event; 

• Loss of Utilities due to building specific Issue; • Fire at EDC Property or Service Location; • Cyber Attack; 

• District or county wide disaster pulling on EDC 

resources; 

• Hosted Software Disruption; • IT hardware or software fault within EDC; 

• Industrial Action; • Collapse / Withdrawal or failure to deliver of 

supplier; 

• National / Local shortage of Vehicle Fuel; and 

• Loss of Telecomms Network.   

For each risk, the following details can be recorded: 

• Effect; • Impact; • Likelihood; • Risk Score; 

• Mitigating Controls/Actions in 

place; 

• Residual Impact; • Residual Likelihood; • Residual Risk Score; and 

• Further Actions Proposed.    

At the time of audit, Mitigating Controls/Actions in place, Residual Impact, Residual Likelihood, Residual Risk Score and Further Actions Proposed were incomplete. 

 

  

P
age  173



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 
Page 6 

 

 

 

Delivery Risk:  

Failure to deliver the service in an effective manner which meets the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 

arrangements 

Cross Reference 

to MAP 

Cross Reference 

to OEM 

PM Performance Monitoring 
There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with the business plan requirements and are 

independently monitored, with corrective action taken in a timely manner. 
In place - - 

S Sustainability The impact on the organisation's sustainability agenda has been considered. Out of scope - - 

R Resilience 
Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to enhance the economic, effective 

and efficient delivery is adopted. 
In place - - 

 

Other Findings 

 

An Emergency Planning/Business Continuity Group meets quarterly. A review of the Terms of Reference confirmed the standing agenda includes: 

• Action Plan Update; • Evaluations and Lessons Learnt from Recent Events; 

• Update on Risks and Changes Nationally, Regionally and Locally; • Input from EDC Staff including IT; 

• Business Continuity Plans; • Any proposed updates to Business Continuity Plans;  

• Emergency Response Plan; • Any proposed updates to Emergency Response Plan;  

• Upcoming Training and Exercises.  
 

P
age  174



   

 

   
Eden District Council 

Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 
Page 7 

 

EXPLANATORY INFORMATION Appendix A 
 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

1. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of 

management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. As set out in 

the Audit Charter, substantive testing is only carried out where this has been 

agreed with management and unless explicitly shown in the scope no such work 

has been performed. 

Disclaimer 

2. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the 

auditor during the course of the review, and are not necessarily a comprehensive 

statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be 

made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not 

be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior 

written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has 

not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither 

owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever 

nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Effectiveness of arrangements 

3. The definitions of the effectiveness of arrangements are set out below. These 

are based solely upon the audit work performed, assume business as usual, and 

do not necessarily cover management override or exceptional circumstances. 

In place The control arrangements in place mitigate the risk from arising. 

Partially in place 
The control arrangements in place only partially mitigate the risk 

from arising. 

Not in place 
The control arrangements in place do not effectively mitigate the 

risk from arising. 

Assurance Assessment 

4. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial 

Assurance 

There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to 

ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating 

effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks 

are managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not 

operating effectively and significant improvements are required to 

ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance 
There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls 

requiring immediate action. 

Acknowledgement 

5. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 

course of our work. 

Release of Report 

6. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Stage Issued Response Received 

Audit Planning Memorandum: 15th June 2022 15th June 2022 

Draft Report: 25th November 2022 28th November 2022 

Final Report: 28th November 2022  

 

P
age  175



   

 

Eden District Council 
Advisory Review of ICT Business Continuity 

Page 8 

 

AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM Appendix B 
 

Client: Eden District Council 

Review: ICT-Business Continuity 

Type of Review: Assurance Audit Lead: Simon Butterfield 

 

Outline scope (per Annual Plan): The review will consider the business continuity arrangements that the Council has in place should it be subject to a cyber-security attack/incident. 

 Directed Delivery 

 Governance Framework: There is a documented process instruction which accords 

with the relevant regulatory guidance, Financial Instructions and Scheme of 

Delegation. 

Performance monitoring: There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with 

the business plan requirements and are independently monitored, with 

corrective action taken in a timely manner. 

Detailed scope will consider: Risk Mitigation: The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements 

set out in the corporate risk register. 

Sustainability: The impact on the organisation's sustainability agenda has been 

considered. 

 Compliance: Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is 

demonstrated, with action taken in cases of identified non-compliance. 

Resilience: Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to 

enhance the economic, effective and efficient delivery is adopted. 

Requested additions to scope: (if required then please provide brief detail) 

Exclusions from scope:  

 

Planned Start Date: 17/10/2022 Exit Meeting Date: 23/11/2022 Exit Meeting to be held with: Assistant Director: Finance and HR 

SELF ASSESSMENT RESPONSE 

Matters over the previous 12 months relating to activity to be reviewed Y/N (if Y then please provide brief 

details separately) 

Has there been any reduction in the effectiveness of the internal controls due to staff absences through sickness and/or vacancies etc? N 

Have there been any breakdowns in the internal controls resulting in disciplinary action or similar? N 

Have there been any significant changes to the process? N 

Are there any particular matters/periods of time you would like the review to consider? N 

 

P
age  176



Internal Audit 

November 2022 

Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review 

2022/23 

FINAL 

Appendix 3

P
age  177



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of the recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed below at 

Eden District Council. The review was carried out in November 2022. 

Review Year Date Presented to 

Accounts and Governance Committee 

Follow-up – July 2022 2022/23 29th September 2022 

ICT Service Level Agreement 2021/22 29th September 2022 

Creditor Payments – Supplier Management 2022/23 29th September 2022 

Data Integrity 2022/23 29th September 2022 

Residential Property Compliance 2022/23 29th September 2022 

Management of Health and Safety 2022/23 29th September 2022 

P
age  178



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 2 

 

Key Findings & Action Points 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of these 

recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations of the progress of 

the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

Evaluation Number of Recommendations 

Implemented 16 

Outstanding 23 

Considered but not Implemented 3 

Not Implemented - 

3. The key issue identified is that 16 of the 42 recommendations raised have been implemented. Of the 23 recommendations that are outstanding, 52% are due to slippage beyond 

the original implementation date, predominantly due to the work demands associated with the Local Government Reorganisation, and 48% are because the original 

implementation date has not yet arrived. One recommendation has been given a revised due date as subsequent to the vesting date of the new Council so has been marked as 

‘Considered but not implemented’. Two further recommendations have been marked as ‘Considered but not implemented’ as they are no longer considered to provide value for 

money. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review  

4. The review considered the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and established the extent to which management 

has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 

weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit 

procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control may not be proof against collusive 

fraud. 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the 

authenticity of these documents. 

P
age  179



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 3 

 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all 

the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole 

or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other 

purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of 

whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Release of Report 

8. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 28th November 2022 

Date management responses rec’d: 30th November 2022 

Date final report issued: 30th November 2022 

  

P
age  180



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 4 

 

Executive Summary 

Follow Up 

9. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations and limited testing has been carried out to confirm these management 

representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

10. Follow-up – July 2022 

Audit title Legal Case Management – Land 

Charges 

Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation The information required by Regulation 9 of the Local Authorities (England) (Charges for Property Searches) Regulations 2008 be published annually on the Council's 

website. 

Initial management response Land Charges Supervisor/Planning Services Manager to look at publishing annually on Council’s Website. 

Responsible Officer/s Land Charges Supervisor/ 

Planning Services Manager 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2022 

Latest Update The Local Land Charges Officer previously advised that discussions are ongoing. No further update was provided for this review. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Legal Case Management – Land 

Charges 

Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A service review be undertaken, to include the Officer resources required to provide an efficient and effective service on an ongoing basis, having regard to the 

skills and experience required for each Officer role. Succession planning be considered in the review, including the identification and delivery of any training needs. 

Initial management response Will make Assistant Director of Development aware of this recommendation as part of the One Eden Review presently underway. 

Responsible Officer/s Assistant Director Development Original implementation 

date 

Unknown – presently 

scheduled for July/August 

2021 

Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2021 

30/09/2022 

Latest Update The Local Land Charges Officer previously advised that discussions are ongoing. No further update was provided for this review. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age  181



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 5 

 

Audit title Insurance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation Insurance related risks, milestones and/or KPIs be included in future monitoring reports. 

Initial management response A review of KPIs related to risk will be considered and KPIs included in the Pentana Software. The KPIs will then be reported on at ELT on a quarterly basis. 

Responsible Officer/s Diane Jones (Senior Finance 

Officer). 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/07/2022 

Latest Update The Assistant Director Finance & HR advised that identification has been made of KPIs which could be included in the quarterly performance reporting. A KPI on 

playground inspections is now included in Pentana (the performance and risk monitoring system). The Council is working towards having the KPI included in the 

Performance Monitoring for quarter 3. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Cyber Security Fraud 

Arrangements 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation Revision of the Incident Response policy to continue to ensure it reflects the working practices required to respond to incidents occurring. 

Initial management response We will continue to review the document and update as necessary. 

Responsible Officer/s Head of Shared ICT Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2023 

Latest Update The Head of Shared ICT provided a revised implementation date of 31/03/2023. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding The original implementation date will not be met. 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The general ledger month-end procedures checklists be properly completed and signed each month. 

Initial management response Agreed. Vacancies in staffing caused the omission of the approval of the checklists. This will be re-instated straight away. 

Responsible Officer/s Senior Accountant – Operations Original implementation 

date 

30/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2022 

Latest Update No further update was received during this review. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not been met. 

 

P
age  182



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 6 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The format of the aged sundry debtor report be enhanced to include a column for current debts and a column for debts over four months old. Negative amounts 

be properly analysed into their respective aging analysis column. 

Initial management response We will commission the report to be adapted. 

Responsible Officer/s Senior Accountant – Operations Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2022 

Latest Update The Assistant Director Finance advised that this was no longer being considered due to Local Government Reorganisation. As part of the plans for the new Unitary, 

the existing financial system at Eden will be phased out. Current debts already show as those 0-30 days old. Negative amounts are analysed manually.  

New implementation date - Status Considered by Not 

implemented 

The recommendation will not now be implemented. 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The quarterly Budget Monitoring reports presented to Cabinet be enhanced to include a summary and analysis of sundry debts. 

Initial management response We will include a report on sundry debtors as part of the quarterly budget monitoring. 

Responsible Officer/s Assistant Director Finance & HR Original implementation 

date 

31/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Assistant Director Finance & HR stated that this was not included in Quarter 1 or 2 but instead was included as a KPI on the Performance Monitoring Report. It 

is planned to include a report on Sundry Debtors for quarter 3 financial monitoring. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not been met. 

 

P
age  183



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 7 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation Accurate Officer contact details be provided for all invoices and credit notes relating to sundry debtor income streams. As far as possible, a named Officer be 

provided, in preference to a more general reference to the service area. 

Initial management response We will remind all sales invoice input staff to complete the calling card field when raising invoices. This will include giving an individual Officer name but 

recommending a generic email address to cover absences. 

Responsible Officer/s Senior Accountant – Operations Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2022 

Latest Update No further update was received during this review. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation Risks, milestones and KPIs specific to sundry debtors be included in future quarterly Corporate Performance Reports. 

Initial management response We will include a report on sundry debtors as part of the quarterly budget monitoring. We will consider what KPI’s would be useful to include in the report. 

Responsible Officer/s Assistant Director Finance & HR Original implementation 

date 

31/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Assistant Director Finance advised that the Corporate Performance Report now includes Debtor days as a KPI that is reported on with commentary. This is 

considered proportionate to the risk. A report on Sundry debtors will be added to the Quarter 3 budget monitoring report. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age  184



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 8 

 

Audit title Leisure Management – Contract 

Review 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 1 

Recommendation Contractual and payment arrangements for the grounds maintenance works specified within the Council's contract with GLL be reviewed such that value for money 

for the services performed be provided and that such services be aligned with the Council's Accounting and Audit Rules and with its Procurement Rules. 

Arrangements for the potential recovery of monies previously paid to GLL in respect of grounds maintenance works not performed under the contract be included 

within this review. 

Initial management response The Grounds Maintenance payment, made to GLL during the COVID arrangements has ceased from 1 April 22. The contract for GM sub contracted to Urbaser by 

GLL is to be extended on the current rates with an RPI increase through until end March 23 to ensure that the function can continue, EDC paying Urbaser direct. 

Contractual arrangements to be reviewed in order to agree a way forward beyond 1 April 23 so that function is provided for through and beyond the LGA 

arrangements. 

Responsible Officer/s Peter Appleton Original implementation 

date 

01/06/2022 through to 

31/03/2023 

Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Interim Assistant Director Communities advised that current arrangements of EDC dealing directly with the GM contractor to remain in place and continue 

post Vesting Day, subject to alternative arrangements being determined between the principal parties. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

Audit title Leisure Management – Contract 

Review 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation A review of current leisure contract operations against the terms and conditions of the contract be undertaken. A contract variation be formally agreed as necessary. 

Initial management response Due to financial pressures exacerbated by COVID GLL is operating the LM function a long way from the T&C’s of the contract. The contract document does need to 

be reviewed. The document is a large one and would require the Health & Wellbeing Officer setting aside a large allocation of time to undertake. The outcome is 

likely to be a major variation to the contract. The above is set against current negotiations between GLL and the Council as the contract is currently operating at a 

significant deficit plus recent large increases in utility costs. Is causing large financial pressures for which GLL is requesting support. 

Responsible Officer/s Peter Appleton Original implementation 

date 

Present going forward Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update  The Interim Assistant Director Communities advised that the Council agreed to provide interim financial support to GLL at its November 2022 meeting. A 

fundamental contract review will be resource intensive for both parties and require significant operational and legal input. Given the capacity pressures within EDC 

and in consideration of LGR it is considered more appropriate for Westmorland and Furness to review all its LM arrangements collectively as opposed to a piecemeal 

approach. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not been met. 

 

P
age  185



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 9 

 

Audit title Leisure Management – Contract 

Review 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Risks specific to the leisure contract with GLL be identified and regularly reported to an appropriate committee. 

Initial management response The Leisure Management Contract is under serious threat due to the core deficit of the contract, plus the utility costs. This should be identified as a risk both 

financially and practically should GLL walk away from the contract. 

Responsible Officer/s Peter Appleton Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2022 

Latest Update  The Interim Assistant Director Communities advised that the risk of a contractor seeking to terminate or default on delivery of the contract is included in the 

Strategic Risk Register. A report on GLL utility costs was agreed by Council in November 2022. If required, further reports will be brought to Members. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Leisure Management – Contract 

Review 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation An annual review be undertaken of the fees charged in the management fee invoices from GLL to ensure such fees are applied correctly and in compliance with 

the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Initial management response The arrangements for setting F&C and the removal of a number of different fees has occurred during COVID. GLL now see this as their operating model. This does 

not now fit with the original contract and the annual review, this makes the annual review within the contract unworkable. 

Responsible Officer/s Peter Appleton Original implementation 

date 

Now going forward Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update  The Interim Assistant Director Communities advised that the original contract needs a fundamental review as referred to above. Proposed product price increases 

are managed through dialogue between GLL and EDC and reflected accordingly in customer communications.  

New implementation date - Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not been met. 

 

P
age  186



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 10 

 

Audit title Leisure Management – Contract 

Review 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The quarterly Budget Monitoring reports presented to Cabinet be enhanced to include a narrative on the Council's position regarding its leisure contract with GLL. 

Initial management response Item describing situation to be included in the monitoring report. 

Responsible Officer/s Peter Appleton Original implementation 

date 

31/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update  The Interim Assistant Director Communities advised that the Q3 Budget Monitoring Report will include reference to the LM contract. 

New implementation date 31/01/2023 Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Leisure Management – Contract 

Review 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation Milestones and KPIs pertinent to the leisure contract with GLL be included in future quarterly Corporate Performance Reports. 

Initial management response Need to look at this however during the current situation it is difficult to understand which KPIs can be included, the main priority at the present time is to just 

keep the service functioning. 

Responsible Officer/s Peter Appleton Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update  The Interim Assistant Director Communities advised that Sport England’s   ‘Moving Communities’  performance and benchmarking initiative will be used for Q4;  

thereafter it is envisaged that Westmorland and Furness will seek to standardise KPI’s across its LM function.  

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

11. Creditor Payments – Supplier Management 

Audit title Creditor Payments – Supplier 

Management 

Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation The purchase ordering system be adhered to for all invoices and adequately matched at the point of invoice processing. 

Initial management response Agreed. However achieving the recommendation is not realistic given capacity constraints and LGR. We will endeavour to increase the no. of POs raised. 

Responsible Officer/s AD – Finance & HR Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update Given that the due date is not until 31/03/2023, no update was sought for this recommendation. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

P
age  187



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 11 

 

Audit title Creditor Payments – Supplier 

Management 

Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation Supplier accounts be consolidated and inactive accounts be archived. 

Initial management response Agreed. This needs to be completed as part of the LGR process. 

Responsible Officer/s AD – Finance & HR Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update Given that the due date is not until 31/03/2023, no update was sought for this recommendation. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

Audit title Creditor Payments – Supplier 

Management 

Audit year 2022/23 Priority 3 

Recommendation Settings be explored to prevent the entry of incorrect dates in the course of invoice processing. 

Initial management response Agreed. Although this is likely to be caused by the limitations of an ageing Finance System, which will be overtaken by LGR. 

Responsible Officer/s AD – Finance & HR Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update Given that the due date is not until 31/03/2023, no update was sought for this recommendation. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

Audit title Creditor Payments – Supplier 

Management 

Audit year 2022/23 Priority 3 

Recommendation Additional referencing be developed to aid the classification between actual trade creditors and grant recipients. 

Initial management response Agreed. Although this is likely to be caused by the limitations of an ageing Finance System, which will be overtaken by LGR. 

Responsible Officer/s AD – Finance & HR Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update Given that the due date is not until 31/03/2023, no update was sought for this recommendation. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

P
age  188



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 12 

 

12. Data Integrity 

Audit title Data Integrity Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation The level of insurance cover required in relation to cyber-crime be reassessed, in particular relating to information stored in Cumbria LGR Data & Intelligence Hub 

for which the Council is the Data Controller. Should additional cover be considered unnecessary, this conclusion be reported to Committee. 

Initial management response Agreed. 

Responsible Officer/s AD – Finance & HR Original implementation 

date 

30/11/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Assistant Director Finance & HR advised that the Council has sought advice on this from the insurance brokers and from other local authorities. A local authority 

on similar systems to EDC has been refused cyber-cover based on their IT arrangements. This indicates that EDC would not be successful in achieving cover. 

Conversations with brokers have identified that the cyber-insurance market is very limited currently with few policies being issued. The work involved would be 

2 stage and would involve an initial assessment which would take a significant amount of staff resource. Once a possible supplier was then found, further 

assessments, investigations and reports would need to be provided which would take further significant resource which is currently needed to ensure the new 

Unitary is safe and legal on Day 1. It is therefore not considered value for money at this time to pursue cyber-insurance. 

New implementation date - Status Considered but not 

implemented 

The recommendation will not now be implemented. 

13. Residential Property Compliance 

Audit title Residential Property Compliance Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation Contracts be drawn up between Heart of Cumbria Limited and third parties wherever services are required by the Company. (This recommendation replaces 

Recommendation 1 of the Assurance Review of Property Management – Landlord Compliance including Heart of Cumbria Limited issued in June 2021). 

Initial management response This will be considered by the HoC transition group. HoC properties will be brought in house meaning HoC contracts will be replaced by EDC contracts. 

Responsible Officer/s Les Clark Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The transfer of properties from Heart of Cumbria Limited has yet to be affected. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

P
age  189



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 13 

 

Audit title Residential Property Compliance Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation A contractual agreement be arranged between Heart of Cumbia Limited and the Council for the services performed by Council Officers in favour of the Company. 

(This recommendation replaces Recommendation 2 of the Assurance Review of Property Management – Landlord Compliance including Heart of Cumbria Limited 

issued in June 2021). 

Initial management response This will be considered by the HoC transition group. HoC properties will be brought in house meaning HoC contracts will be replaced by EDC contracts. 

Responsible Officer/s Les Clark Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The transfer of properties from Heart of Cumbria Limited has yet to be affected. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

Audit title Residential Property Compliance Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation Following transfer to the Council of the title to any properties owned by Heart of Cumbria Limited, Council procedures be updated to specifically cover the legislative 

requirements of such properties. (This recommendation replaces Recommendation 3 of the Assurance Review of Property Management – Landlord Compliance 

including Heart of Cumbria Limited issued in June 2021). 

Initial management response Agreed. 

Responsible Officer/s Garry Atkinson Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update Given that the recommendation requires the transfer of properties from Heart of Cumbria Limited which have yet to be completed, and has a due date of 

31/03/2023, no update was sought for this recommendation. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

P
age  190



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 14 

 

Audit title Residential Property Compliance Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation Reminders of due dates be included in any adopted method of controlling the planning, oversight and completion of the various legislative requirements relating 

to landlords' health and safety duties. (This recommendation replaces Recommendation 4 of the Assurance Review of Property Management – Landlord Compliance 

including Heart of Cumbria Limited issued in June 2021). 

Initial management response Agreed. 

Responsible Officer/s Garry Atkinson Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update Given that the recommendation requires the transfer of properties from Heart of Cumbria Limited which have yet to be completed, and has a due date of 

31/03/2023, no update was sought for this recommendation. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

14. Management of Health and Safety 

Audit title Management of Health and 

Safety 

Audit year 2022/23 Priority 1 

Recommendation The Council's Wellbeing Health and Safety Action Plan spreadsheet be completed, including a responsible Officer, and formally approved as a matter of urgency. 

A traffic light system or similar be added for each action. A brief narrative outlining next steps be added for each action. The approved Action Plan be regularly 

monitored and progress against actions be regularly reported. 

Initial management response Agree with comments. 

Responsible Officer/s Assistant Director Delivery Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Corporate Health and Safety Advisor stated that all priority 1 actions on the Action Plan are closed out. Priority 2 actions are in progress and should be closed 

out in the next month. The remaining actions are either closed or in progress. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Due date for implementation has not yet arrived. 

 

P
age  191



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 15 

 

Audit title Management of Health and 

Safety 

Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation Procedure documents referenced C_030 to C_040, as listed in the Council's Health and Safety Policy Statement, be added to SharePoint. 

Initial management response Agreed. 

Responsible Officer/s Assistant Director Delivery Original implementation 

date 

31/08/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Corporate Health and Safety Advisor stated that these procedures are not in the system. They have been removed from the Health and Safety Policy and have 

been added to the EDC Health and Safety Action Plan for 2022/23. 

New implementation date - Status Considered but not 

implemented 

The recommendation will not now be implemented. 

 
  

P
age  192



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 16 

 

15. The following recommendations have been implemented. 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Creditor Payments – Supplier 

Management 

As part of the review of payment files, all individual batch totals be agreed back to the 

supporting paperwork. 

2 AD – Finance & HR Immediate 

Creditor Payments – Supplier 

Management 

The Supplier Registration Forms be updated to include checks to ensure bank details are 

verified and adequate checks are made within the purchase ledger to prevent the duplication 

of accounts. 

3 AD – Finance & HR Immediate 

Data Integrity A risk specific to the timely and accurate completion of the Council's statutory obligations 

under the Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 2022 be added to the Strategic Risk Map 

appended to the quarterly Corporate Performance Reports presented to Cabinet and to 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

Debtors Sufficient resource be allocated on an ongoing basis to the successful recovery of long-

outstanding sundry debts. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 31/07/2022 

Homelessness Contract Annual refresher training be arranged for all members of staff involved in procurement and 

contract management activities to ensure that all contracts are approved in line with the 

Constitution and general rules around procurement. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 31/10/2022 

Homelessness Contract The Contracts Register be subject to periodic reviews to ensure that re-tendering or extensions 

are processed well in advance having been subject to the appropriate levels of approval. A prior 

period sample of completed tenders or extended contracts be reviewed at least bi-annually in 

full to ensure adherence to the procurement rules. A checklist be introduced which can be 

utilised at completion stage ensuring that all required approval and review channels have been 

followed. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 31/10/2022 

Local Code of Governance Each of the 21 sub-principles of the CIPFA/Solace publication “Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government: Framework (2016)” be specifically mentioned in the Council's Local Code of 

Governance. Alternatively, reasons for deviation from the Framework be detailed in the annual 

report to Accounts and Governance Committee on the extent of the Council's compliance with 

its Local Code. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

Local Code of Governance Local arrangements mapped to the same principle be unique. 2 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 P
age  193



 

 
Eden District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 17 

 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Local Code of Governance When determining its self-assessment responses in accordance with the 2016 Framework, the 

schedule provided in Chapter Five of the related Guidance Notes be followed. Alternatively, 

reasons for deviation from the Framework be detailed in the annual report to Accounts and 

Governance Committee on the extent of the Council's compliance with its Local Code. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

Local Code of Governance When determining the extent of its self-assessment compliance in accordance with the 2016 

Framework, a numerical scale of compliance be followed as suggested in Chapter Five of the 

Guidance Notes. Alternatively, reasons for deviation from the Framework be detailed in the 

annual report to Accounts and Governance Committee on the extent of the Council's 

compliance with its Local Code. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

Local Code of Governance Each of the seven core principles of the CIPFA/Solace publication “Delivering Good Governance 

in Local Government: Framework (2016)” be adopted word for word. Alternatively, reasons for 

deviation from the Framework be detailed in the annual report to Accounts and Governance 

Committee on the extent of the Council's compliance with its Local Code. 

3 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

Local Code of Governance To aid clarity and to better comply with the 2016 Framework, reference be made exclusively 

to a “Local Code of Governance” rather than to a “Local Code of Corporate Governance” or to 

a “Code of Local Governance”. 

3 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

Local Code of Governance In conducting the annual review of its Local Code of Governance, inconsistencies of wording be 

eliminated between local arrangements intended to be identical. 

3 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

Management of Health and Safety Procedure documents listed in the Council's Health and Safety Policy Statement be consistent 

with the titles and references of the related procedure documents. 

3 Assistant Director 

Delivery 

31/08/2022 

Payroll The Council's existing Right to Work checks be enhanced to include the line "the date on which 

this right to work check was made: [insert date]", or “adjusted check undertaken on [insert 

date] due to COVID-19" under the recent temporary measures, on each copy document 

retained. A Right to Work Checklist be completed for each check. 

2 Principal Human 

Resources Advisor 

30/09/2022 

Risk Management Framework Training requirements be considered by the Risk Management Group on a regular basis. From 

an identification of key Officers' current needs, appropriate risk management training be 

delivered as soon as is practicable. 

2 AD – Finance & HR 30/09/2022 

 

P
age  194



Report No: DoR89/22 

Eden District Council 

Accounts & Governance 
15 December 2022 

Council 
26 January 2023 

Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

Six-monthly Review 

Portfolio: Resources 

Report from: Assistant Director Finance 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To provide Members with a half-yearly report on the Strategy and Plan for 
Treasury Management during the financial year 2022/23. 

2 Recommendation 

 It is recommended that Accounts & Governance: 

2.1 Note the report. 

2.2 Endorse the decision to amend the upper limit for long-term investments to 
£8000k in Section 10.1 of the Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 
2022/23, as set out in Section 3.4 of this report, and recommend to Council. 

 It is recommended that Council: 

2.3 Note the report. 

2.3 Approve the amendment of the upper limit for long-term investments to 
£8000k in Section 10.1 of the Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 
2022/23, as set out in Section 3.4 of this report. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 At Council on 24 February 2022, the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for 2022/23 was approved (CI/79/02/22). Members should be 
briefed at least twice a year on the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. 
The requirement to do this is in line with the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code (2018) and is included in the Council’s Treasury Management Policy 
Document (available via the Council’s website). 

3.2 The Q4 outturn position was approved at Cabinet on 18 October 2022 (Item 
CAB/47/10/22). The provisional outturn position has not identified any 
changes required to borrowing limits. 

3.3  The audit of the Statement of Accounts for 21/22 has not yet been completed 
and the final outturn against the prudential indicators presented in Appendix A 

Page  195

Agenda Item 8



has been prepared using the draft outturn figures which were presented to 
Cabinet on 18 October 2022. 

3.4  As part of the six-monthly review, it has been identified Treasury Management 
Strategy and Plan for 2022/23 amended the Investment Limit of 364 days in 
Section 10.1 down to £4,000k from £8,000k. As the level of long-term 
investments at that time was over £4,000k, this was done in error and we 
recommend that this is returned to the original value of £8,000k. This 
investment limit is set to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may 
arise as a result of the Council having to seek early realisation of the sums 
invested. Given the high level of cash and cash equivalents currently held by 
the Council (£17,361k at 31 March 2022), this is considered a low risk. 

3.5 Included at Appendix B, are the Quarter 2 results for the Treasury 
Management Service. There are two major variances to budget: 

 3.4.1 Interest Received. The base interest rate at the time of setting the 
budget was 0.5% and although the budget allowed for a small increase in 
interest rates in-line with the market forecast at the time, the rate has 
increased more than anticipated to the current rate of 3%. The revised 
forecast is prudent and may well be exceeded if interest rates maintain their 
high level. The amounts invested are also above that planned due to delays in 
capital programme, in particular in relation to Voreda House. 

 3.4.2 Heart of Cumbria. No loan interest was budgeted for the loan to Heart 
of Cumbria as, at the time of budget setting, it was hoped to bring the assets 
and hence loan into the Council by 31 March 2022. However, due to a 
shortfall in resourcing, this has been delayed and is now planned for January 
2023. This additional income, alongside the savings in costs, are offset by the 
reduction in direct rent received due to the delays. 

3.6 There are no other changes to the Strategy or Plan required following the first 
six months of 2022/23. All investment activity has been in line with the 
approved strategy. No external borrowing has been required, or is anticipated 
to be required, to support the Capital Programme. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 The report is for noting and does not contain any decisions that require wider 
consultation. 

Page  196



6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 Determining and pursuing a suitable Strategy will ensure that the expected 
budget income from interest on investments for the year 2021/22 is achieved. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no human resource Implications. 

6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental implications. 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity No implications. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

No implications. 

Crime and Disorder No implications. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

No implications. 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls 
Required 

The main risks in treasury 
management are financial ones.  
These are identified in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Practices 
and the main risks in these 
activities are:  

• liquidity;  

• markets or investment;  

• inflation;  

• credit and counterparty; 

• legal and regulatory. 

Poor practices 
implemented, 
diminished 
interest returns, 
loss of capital 
invested, poor 
liquidity (funds 
available when 
required). 

The Council’s 

strategies guard 

against most of 

these risks. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

Page  197



8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To ensure that the controls around investment and borrowing activity are met. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Relevant Assistant Director 29/11/22 (AD Finance) 

 

Background Papers:  Treasury Management Strategy, approved at Council, 25 February 

2021, available via the Council agenda, report Reference 

CI/77/02/21  

  CIPFA’s Treasury Management and Prudential Codes  

  Treasury Management Practices document available via the website  

Appendices:  Appendix A - Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2021/22 Outturn  

Appendix B – Treasury Management Service Q2 Financial Monitoring 

Contact Officer:  Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance 

Page  198



5  

Appendix A 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2021/22 Outturn  

1.  Background 

1.1  There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local 
authorities to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code and Prudential 
Code for Capital  

Finance in Local Authorities (the “CIPFA Prudential Code”) when setting and 
reviewing their Prudential Indicators. Authorities are required to report actual 
performance against these indicators and this is presented below.  

2.  Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement  

2.1  This is a key indicator of prudence.  In order to ensure that, over the medium 
term, borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that the 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital 
financing requirement (CFR) in the preceding year, plus the estimates of any 
additional increases to the capital financing requirement for the current and next two 
financial years.  

  Table 1: Gross debt and the Capital Financing Requirement  

 2020/21  2021/22  2021/22  

  Actual  Estimate  Actual  

 £’000  £’000  £’000  

CFR closing  1,375  1,957 1,973 

Gross Borrowing  1,024  594 610 

Under/over borrowed (-/+)  -351 -1,363 -1,363 

2.2  Table 1 shows that the Council had no difficulty meeting this requirement in 
2021/22, nor are there any difficulties envisaged for future years.    

3.  Capital Expenditure  

3.1  This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure is 
reflected within the Council’s Treasury strategy:  

  Table 2: Capital Expenditure  

 2020/21  2021/22  2021/22 

  Actual  Estimate  Actual  

 £000  £’000  £’000  

Capital Expenditure  2,485  4,307 4,161 

  The full details of the capital expenditure and the variances against the capital 
budgets for 2021/22 are included within the capital outturn report, presented to 
Cabinet on 18 October 2022.  

Page  199



6  

4.  Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  

4.1  This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of 
capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to 
meet financing costs.  The definition of financing costs is set out in the Prudential 
Code.  

4.2  The ratio is based on costs net of investment income:  

  Table 3: Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  

 2020/21  2021/22  2021/22  

  Actual  Estimate  Actual  

 £000  %  £’000  

Ratio of Financing Costs 

to Net Revenue Stream  
-5.2%  -3.5% -3.5% 

 The negative value shows that EDC have net financing income rather than costs. 

5. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  

5.1  The authorised limit and operational boundary set maximum level of external 
borrowing for the Council. There was no new borrowing during 2021/22; the level of 
external debt (maximum balance during the period of £nil) was within these limits 
(authorised limit £nil, operational boundary £nil).  

6.  Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code  

6.1  This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted the principles of best 
practice. The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code for 2021/22.  

7.  Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest 
Rate Exposure  

7.1  These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed 
to changes in interest rates.  This Council calculates these limits on net principal 
outstanding sums (fixed rate debt net of fixed rate investments).  

7.2  The indicators provide freedom to manage the portfolio in line with the needs of 
the Council and the instruments available in the market. Borrowings were all fixed 
interest instalment type loans. Investments were a mixture of fixed and variable 
instruments.  

 Table 4: Interest rate exposure  

Interest Rate 
Exposures  

2020/21 
Actual 
£000  

2021/22 
Estimate 

£000  

2021/22 
Actual 
£000  

 %  %  %  

Upper Limit for Fixed 
Interest Rate Exposure 
on Debt  

100  100  100  

Upper Limit for Fixed 
Interest Rate Exposure 
on Investments  

-100%  -100  -100  

Page  200



7  

Net Fixed Exposure  0%  0%  0  

Upper Limit for Variable 
Interest Rate Exposure 
on Debt  

0  0  0  

Upper Limit for Variable 
Interest Rate Exposure 
on Investments  

-100%  -100  -100  

Net Variable Exposure  -0%  -0%  0  

8.  Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

8.1  This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate 
debt needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed 
to protect against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 
particular, in the course of the next ten years.  

8.2  It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing 
in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate.  The 
maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the 
lender can require payment. The total level of external debt outstanding at 31 March 
2021 was £0, so this is not judged to present a significant risk in terms of cash flow. 

Table 5: Maturity structure of external borrowing  

Maturity Structure of 
Fixed Rate Borrowing  

At 31/3/21  At 31/3/22  Lower 
Limit for 
2022/23  

Upper 
Limit for 
2022/23  

Under 12 months  0%  0%  0%  100%  

12 months and within 
24 months  

0%  0%  
0%  100%  

24 months and within 
5 years  

0%  0%  
0%  100%  

5 years and within 
10 years  

0%  0%  
0%  100%  

10 years and above  0%  0%  0%  100%  

9.  Upper Limit for Total Principal Sums Invested over 364 Days  

9.1  The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that 
may arise as a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the sums 
invested.  

  

Page  201



8  

Table 6: Sums invested for more than 364 days:  

  2020/21 
Actual  
£000  

2021/22 
Limit  
£’000  

2021/22 
Actual  
£’000  

Upper Limit/Actual for 
total principal sums 
invested over 364 days  

4,169 4,000 4,901 

This Upper Limit represents investment in CCLA Fund. This valuation of EDC investment in 

this fund was £4,901k as at 31 March 2022. This limit was set at £8,000k in previous years 

however was amended in error down to £4,000k in the Treasury Management Strategy and 

Plan for 2022/23. A recommendation is being made to set this limit back to £8,000k. 

 

Page  202



9  

Appendix B 
 
Treasury Management Q2 Financial Monitoring 
 

YTD Budget Q2 Actual Variance FY Budget Forecast Variance Commentary

£ £ £ £ £ £

Interest Received (40,500) (96,995) (56,495) (81,000) (200,000) (119,000)

Increased interest rate and increased funds due to 

delays in capital programme

Finance Lease Interest (9,462) (10,500) (1,038) (20,500) (20,810) (310)

Interest Loans (11,870) (9,444) 2,426 (17,370) (18,887) (1,517)

Property Fund Dividend (92,000) (98,083) (6,083) (184,000) (196,165) (12,165) Forecast based on year to date performance

Heart of Cumbria Loan 0 (46,812) (46,812) 0 (72,068) (72,068)

Loan interest has been received due to the delay 

in bringing Heart of Cumbria operations into the 

Council. The additional income as well as delays to 

direct costs being incurred are offset by lack of 

rent which was budgeted for.

Interest Costs of Internal Borrowing 20,769 0 (20,769) 45,000 45,000 0 This is added as a year end adjustment

Professional Fees 5,893 7,665 1,772 11,870 11,450 (420)

Other Costs/Income 13,930 15,260 1,330 27,860 30,000 2,140

TOTAL (113,239) (238,908) (125,670) (218,140) (421,480) (203,340)

Year to Date - 6 months Full Year

 

P
age  203



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report No:  DoR84/22 

Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee 

15 December 2022 

Work Programme 

Report from: Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To set out the work programme for the Accounts and Governance Committee. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee approve the 
Work Programme as set out at Appendix 1. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 The proposed work programme for the Accounts and Governance Committee 
is set out at Appendix 1. 

3.2 The work programme sets out the timeline for the business for the Committee 
throughout the municipal year. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets sustainable and healthy, safe and secure corporate 
priorities. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 No consultation has taken place. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 There are no financial or resources implications. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Page  205

Agenda Item 9



6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from this report. 

6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity None arising from this report. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

None arising from this report. 

Crime and Disorder None arising from this report. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

None arising from this report. 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

None None None 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options were considered 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The work programme keeps members informed of the business to be 
considered at each meeting. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 25/10/22 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) N/A 

Relevant Assistant Director N/A 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Accounts and Governance Committee  
 Work Programme 

Contact Officer: Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources 

Page  206



APPENDIX 1 
 

Accounts & Governance Committee – Work Programme 
 

Committee Date Report Title 
 

Public/ 
Private 

15 December 2022 External Audit 2021/22 Plan Public 

15 December 2022 Internal Audit Update Public 

15 December 2022 Annual Governance Statement incl Local Code of 
Governance 

Public 

15 December 2022 Treasury Management Strategy & Plan 2022/23 Six 

Monthly Review 

Public 

15 December 2022 Informing the Audit Risk Assessment Public 

15 December 2022 Work Programme Public 

   

1 February 2023 External Audit 2021/22 Progress Report Public 

1 February 2023 Internal Audit Update Public 
 

P
age  207



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 External Audit Update
	5 Annual Governance Statement and Local Code of Governance 2021/2022
	6 Informing the Audit Risk Assessment
	7 Internal Audit: Summary Progress Report 2022/2023
	8 Treasury Management Strategy and Plan 2022/2023 - Six-monthly Review
	9 Work Programme 2022/2023



